AGENDA

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2010
7:00 PM
Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance

Moment of Silence — Supervisor Carmen Battavio
Ask if Anyone is Recording the Meeting
Public Comment — Hearing of Residents (Optional)

S i a

Chairman’s Report

a. The Board met in Exec. Session on 10/26/2010 to discuss Personnel and Legal
Matters.

7. Public Hearings
8. Police Chief’s Report - none
9. Old Business
a. Status report on Save the Dam Committee
10. New Business
a. Consider Constant Contact Contest
b. Consider approval of Resolution 10-112 entitled Random Drug Testing
c. Consider approval for an apartment for the care of a relative agreement.

d. Review The Home Improvement Consumer Protection Act/Contractor
Licensing.

e. Review E-mail Archiving
11. Any Other Matter
12. Approval of Minutes

a. October 26, 2010

b. October 27, 2010
13. Treasurer’s Report

a. October 26, 2010 Report
14. Review Action List

15. Correspondence, Reports of Interest

F:\Data\Shared Data\Agendas\Board of Supervisors\2010\110310.doc



a. Acknowledge email from Linda Waterhouse regarding M. Gordon’s efforts in
selling her property.

b. Acknowledge email from Linda Waterhouse thanking the township in support
of her property though out the 12 years of residency.

16. Meetings & Dates of Importance

November 2, 2010  Election Day — no meeting

November 3, 2010  Board of Supervisors 12 pm (2011 Budget)
November 3, 2010  Board of Supervisors 7 pm
November 3, 2010  Planning Commission 7 pm
November 4,2010  Park & Recreation 7 pm
November 8, 2010  Municipal Authority 7 pm
November 9, 2010  Board of Supervisors 7 pm
November 10,2010 Conservancy Board 7 pm
November 11, 2010 Veterans Day — Office Closed
November 11,2010 Historical Commission 7 pm
November 15,2010 Deer Committee 7 pm
November 16, 2010 Board of Supervisors 7 pm
November 23,2010 Board of Supervisors 7 pm

November 25 - 26, 2010 Office Closed
November 30,2010 Board of Supervisors 7 pm
17. Public Comment — Hearing of Residents

18. Adjournment

The Chairperson, in his or her sole discretion, shall have the authority to rearrange the agenda in
order to accommodate the needs of other board members, the public or an applicant.

Please Visit the Township website, www.eastgoshen.org to sign up for “Constant Contact”, an
email service which provides timely updates on current information regarding Upcoming
Events, Meeting Dates, and important Public Notices; just to name a few. To sign up, just visit
the bottom left hand side of the home page and submit your email address and you will be
prompted to select the type of information you want to receive. This is a free service that acts
as an up to date “electronic newsletter” keeping you informed of what is happening in your
community. Your privacy is very important to us, be assured East Goshen Township will not
disclose your email address to anyone for any purpose.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Agendas\Board of Supervisors\2010\110310.doc




q)" O.b BOWES

s

Ny

Rick Smith Dy

i
From: Rick Smith [rsmith@eastgoshen.org]
Sent: Friday, October 29, 2010 9:52 AM
To: 'joedantonio@comcast.net'; 'nbde@verizon.net'
Subject: Hershey Mill Dam
Joe & Neil

Can you provide me with an update on the status of the formation of the “save the Dam Committee" for the Board of
Supervisors meeting on Wednesday night?

An e-mail will suffice unless you want to attend an make a verbal report.
Thanks

Rick Smith, Township Manager
East Goshen Township



\ O . }\}%}}Q \ﬁ’\)iﬁfﬁ?& f;:;;’

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS =y
EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP \M

MEMO

TO: Board of Supervisors

FROM: Office Manager Diane Degnan
RE: Constant Contact Contest
DATE: October 27, 2010

As you may already know, we have been asking all residents who come into the
office to sign up for Constant Contact. Stickers requesting the same also went
out on the last mailing of sewer/refuse bills. To date, 654 reS|dents have signed
up. Our goal is to reach 1,000 by next year.

Please consider the following for inclusion in the Winter Newsletter.

SIGN UP FOR CONSTANT CONTACT NOW,
AND BE ENTERED FOR A CHANCE TO WIN
A PRINT OF THE EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
BLACKSMITH SHOP.

Thank you.

did
cc:  Manager Rick Smith

F:\Data\Shared Data\Admin Dept\Newsletter\memo\102710memotobosreconstantcontactartilce.doc



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS )\D
EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP 2

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
RESOLUTION 10-112
BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the East Goshen Township Personnel Manual is
revised, effective November 3, 2010, revoking Section 9-10.1, entitled Random [Drug

and Alcohol] Testing.

ADOPTED this 3" day of November 2010.

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

ATTEST:

F:\Data\Shared Data\ABC'S\Board of Supervisors\Resolutions\2010\word docs of Adopted Resolutions\10-112
Revoking Random Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy for Office Staff TOWNSHIP.doc



PERSONNEL MIANUAL

§ 9-10. Reasonable suspicion testing.

The Township shall require an employee to submit to an alcohol or controlled substances test
when it has reasonable suspicion to believe that the employee is under the influence of alcohol
and/or one or more controlled substances. A Department Head’s, Appointing Authority’s or offi-
cial's determination that reasonable suspicion exists must be based on specific observations con-
cerning the appearance, behavior, speech or body odors of the employee. The Department
Heads, Appointing Authorities or officials will be trained on the indicators of probable con-
trolled substances or alcohol misuse. The person who makes the determination that reasonable
suspicion exists shall not conduct the drug or alcohol test.

§ 9-10.1. Random testing. [Added 11-18-2008 by Res. No. 08-56°]

If the Township does its own testing, then each year a minimum of 25% of the average num-
ber of employees shall undergo random alcohol testing. Each year 50% of the average num-
ber of employees shall undergo random controlled substances testing. If the Township joins a
testing consortium, then those minimum percentages shall apply to the total pool of employ-
ees. The employees shall be tested during normal working hours and the test will be unan-
nounced. Employees will be paid at their regular salary rate for the time spent by them
undergoing any such testing.

ARTICLE II
Policy for Employees Holding Commercial Driver’s Licenses

§ 9-11. Policy.

East Goshen Township (the "Township") has a commitment to provide a safe workplace for
its employees and to ensure efficient service to the public. The Township's objective is to as-
sure that the workplace is free from the effects of drug and alcohol use and that employees
are fit to perform their job duties and report for work regularly and on time.

§ 9-12. Definitions.

Definitions for purposes of this Policy and the Township's Drug and Alcohol Testing Pro-
gram are as follows:

BREATH ALCOHOL TECHNICIAN (BAT) — An individual certified per 49 CFR
40.51 in the alcohol testing process and who is qualified to operate an evidential breath-
testing device (EBT).

8 Editor's Note: This resolution stated that it would take effect 1-1-2009.

45 12 -30 - 2008







Buckley, Brion, McGuire,

Morris & Sommer LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
118 W. Market Street, Suite 300 610-436-4400
West Chester, PA 19382-2928 610-436-8305 FAX
www.buckleyllp.com
MEMORANDUM
To: Rick Smith, Managet
East Goshen Township

From: Jeffrey R. Sommer

Date: January 12, 2009

Subject: Act 132 of 2008- The Home Improvement Consumer Protection Act

[ T T T T T ]

The Pennsylvania legislature recently passed Act 132 of 2008, the Home Imptovement Consumer
Protection Act (the “Act”), which takes effect July 1, 2009. T wanted to provide you with a summary of the
material terms in the Act and to advise what impact the new law has on existing licensing requirements that
the "Township has enacted for various contractors.

Summary of the Act:

A Definitions:

The first section of the Act defines terms that are used throughout the Act. Some of the key terms are
defined below:

“Contractor” - includes any person who owns and opetates a home improvement
business or who undettakes, offers to undestake or agrees to petform any home improvement. The term
includes a subcontractot or independent contractor who has contracted with a home improvement retailer [ie
Home Depot], tegardless of the retailer’s net worth, to provide home improvement services to the retailet’s
customers. It does not include a person whose total cash value of home imptovements is less than $5,000
during the previous year or a home improvement retailer having a net worth of more than $50,000,000.

“Home improvement” - is defined under the Act as all repait, replacement, remodeling,
demolition, removal, renovation, installation, altetation, conversion, modernization, improvement,
rehabilitation ot sandblasting work done in connection with land adjacent to a private sesidence ot any building
used or designed to be used as a private residence for which the total cash price of the work is mote than $500.
The tetm includes consttuction, teplacement, installation or improvement of driveways, swimming pools, pool
houses, porches, gatages, roofs, siding, insulation, solar encrgy systems, secutity systems, flooring, patios,




fences, gazebos, sheds, cabanas, landscaping of a type that is not excluded elsewhete, painting, doots, and
windows and waterptoofing. “Home improvements” exclude (1) the construction of a new home, (2)
supplying of matetials used for home improvements, (3) sctvices used for commercial or business putposes,
(4) the sale of home appliances, (5) work performed without compensation by the owner of the propetty, (6)
work petformed by a landscaper under the Plant Pest Act, except fot the landscaping work outlined above, (N
emergency wotk under Section 7 of the Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, and (8) the
conversion of existing commercial structutes into residential structuges.

B. Registration Requirement;

Section 3 of the Act provides that no person shall operate as a contractor not perform home
improvements without first registering with the Pennsylvania Bureau of Consumer Protection. Contractors
can apply for tegistration in writing or electronically. They must ptovide information such as date of bitth,
home and wotk addtess, business name and identification number, drivet’s license number and proof of liability
insurance. The Buteau will publicize certain contact infotmation for each contractor on its website, howevet,
the Buteau will not disclose confidential information to the public. Section 5 of the Act provides that the
Bureau will charge a $50.00 registration fee and renewals shall be on a biennial basis.

C. Proof of Registration and Home Improvement Contracts:

Section 6 of the Act provides that all contractors must include their registration numbet in all contracts.
Section 7 of the Act provides that all contracts for home imptovements must be in writing, contain the
signatute of both the ownet and the contractor, outline the work to be performed, include the sales price and
down payment and identify the insurance coverage of the contractor. Propetty owners may rescind a home
improvement conttact within three (3) days of execution for any reason. In order to register with the
Commonwealth, the contractors must present proof of liability insurance fot personal injury and property
damage in a minimum amount of $50,000.00.

D. Preemption:

The most impottant section of the Act with regard to the Township is Section 12 which provides that
registtation of contractors under the Act shall preclude any tequitement of payment of a fee or
registration or licensing of any home improvement contractor by any political subdivision. The
Township may still require building permits and enforce the municipal building code and impose fees fot the
same. The Township may also still requite proof that contractots maintain wotkers’ compensation insutance
as tequited by state law. Section 12 does not preempt “existing licensing standards in effect on the effective
date of [the Act], with respect to electricians and plumbets and other trades, where licensing is conditioned on
requitements of testing ot possession of cetificates obtained through specific training in electricity or plumbing
ot othe trades.” Moteover, Section 12 does not apply to local regulations ot standards for liability insurance
adopted prior to January 1, 2006 and cutrently in effect,




40?)1’2/

L. Implications for the Township:

Chapter 128 of the Township Code titled, “Electtical Code” tequires that all clectticians, electrical
contractors and HVAC contractors be licensed by the Township or have a valid license from the Intetnational
Code Council, Inc. Likewise, Chapter 150 of the Code titled “Mechanical Standatds” requires the licensing
of conttactors for heating, ait conditioning and ventilation systems and Chapter 175 of the Code titled,
“Plumbing” requires that all plumbers must present proof that they were licensed by the Township ot have a
valid license from the Intetnational Code Council, Inc.

As you know, the Township adopts the International Building Code and the International Plumbing
Code. I cannot tell from our Code whethet ot not the Township requites payment of a fee or tegistration by
contractors. We will have to review the Ordinances to determine how that fits in, What is interesting is that
Section 12 indicates that it is not going to preempt existing licensing standasrds in effect on the effective date
of the Act. So an argument can be made that we can maintain the fee although that is certain to be challenged
in Court.  We should take a look at what we do in otder to eliminate a potential future litigation expense.

The Act will not effect these licensing provisions because under Section 12 of the Act, any licensing
requirements which were in effect as of July 1, 2009, may be gtandfathered in provided that the license is
conditioned on requirements of testing or possession of cettificates obtained through specific training in
clectricity, plumbing ot other trades. Because the Township’s licensing requirements were in effect ptiot to
July 1, 2009 and because they ate conditioned on adequate testing ot cettification in a specified ttade, they may
still be enforced.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.




Sopir

“onsumers: Protecting Consumers - Pennsylvania Office of Attorney General Page 4.0f 5
individuals/businesses are considered contractors under the law and rnust register and comply with the
act, '
top

% Do contractors need to show thair registration to their customers or display the registration
in thejr business?

Tz fRe 02§ NOLTEQUITE v

ERTY i copies of they ramstration, After registering, a8 home
improvement contractor registration certificate wilf be issued to the contractor. If contractors wish to
display it, they may but they are not required to do so. However, contractors must include thair
ragistration number in thelr advertisements, cantracts, estimates ard prepesa’s.
top

Do contractors need to display their registration number on their vehicles?

Tha taw raquiras ragistration numbars in any advartisamants used by contractors, If a contractor has

an ad for thair businass on thair vehicle, the ad must include thair registration number. If tha vehicla

does not hava advartising promoting tha business, then the contractor is not required to display thair

registration number on the vehicle. '
(top ) .
Is there an exemption for work performed by or on behalf of a charity or a non-profit

corporation? ,
No. Charities and non-profits, and those acting on their behalf, must register and comply with the act if ,
they offer or perform home improvements in Pennsylvania.
top

Does the law apply to home improvements done on commercial properties?

The lavs only applies "private residences” which is defined as: single family dwellings; multifamily
dwellings consisting of not more than two units; and single units located within any multifamily
dwelling, including condominiums and cooperative units,

top

home improvement contractors by counties, cities or towns?

Yes, Poiitical subdivisions in Pennsylvania cannot separately license or register home {mprovement
contractors after July 1, 2009, with the limited exception of licensing standards that are in effect on July
1, 2009, with respect to electricians, plumbers and other trades where licensing is conditioned on
requirements of testing or possession of certificates obtalned through specific tralning in electricity,
plumbing or other trades.

top

I >§ Does the Home Improvement Consumer Protection Act affect the licensing or registration of

Are there additional requirements in the act besides the registration requirement?

Yes, The law prohibits various unfair business practices such as abandoning a home improvement
project or failing to complete the work. The law also creates a criminal penalty for home improvement
fraud, as defined by the statute. The act also requires all contracts for home improvements of more
than $500 to be in writing and be signed by the consumer and the contractor, These contracts must
also include important provisions like a description of the work; an approximate start date and
completion date; the total price of the contract; and notice of the consumer's right to cancel the
contract, The law also limits down payments or deposits for any home improvement project for which
the total price is more than $1,000.

top

Does the faw apply to out-of-state contractors?

Yes. Any contractor who offers or performs home improvements [n Pennsylvania must comply with the
law,

top

The law says that registration numbers must be included in all advertisements, contracts,
estimates and proposals - how do I display my number?,

You must include the abbreviation "PA" and the number assigned to you (example: PA123456). You do
not need to include extra zeroes which come before your number but you must have these letters and
your actual registration number. For instance, if you were assigned PA000372, you may list your
number that way, or simply use PA372.

Although it Is not required by the faw, you can more fully explain the meaning of the number to
consuniers in your advertisements and in contracts, by displaying the number as: Pennsylvania Home
{mprovement Contractor Registration Number: PA123456,

top

Where should I put my registration number in my advertisements and contracts?

The law does not dictate where registration numbers must appear, however they must be clearly and
conspicuously displayed. You should place your registration number in a spot where consumers will be
able to see it and read it clearly.

top

How should I list the Bureau of Consumer Protection's phone number in my contracts?

Wa suggest that you include the following fanguage in your contracts, and display it prominently so
your custemers can review it

‘The official registration number of [contractor name] can be obtained from the Pennsylvania Office of
Attorney Generai's Bureau of Consumer Protection by calling toll-free within Pennsylvania 1-888-520-
6680, Registration does not imply endorsement.”

attp:/Avwiv.attorneygeneral.gov/hic.aspx?id=4339 12/11/2009






-aBed uoieoupad ay) ym Buole ‘uoned)dde sy} o uooss

Buiurewsy yoes aja|dwod pue G pue # sabed U0 ©- SUOHISS YIM SNURUOD
pjnoys sjueoydde ssauisnq ‘e pue g sabed buga|dwod Joyy "210W JO %G JO
ssauisng sy} Ut jsausiul Ainba ue pjoy oym ssued Jayjo jie pue SI0j0aup (B 181 0} £
abed uo uoyoss woyoq ay} sjeidwoo osfe jsnw suealdde sseuisng ‘sisbeuew
pue ‘siaoiyo ‘sioupied JfE Jo} punoiByoeq pue ‘uoljelwo; JoejuoD ‘ejep [euosisad
spinold osie jsnw sassauisng (Auessaoou se sabed |euonippe pue) sdeds
Buiurewss ayy uj "¢ abed jo doy ayy uo BuuuBaq jJueoidde sy} 1o} puno.bxoeq
pUE UOIBWLIO JOBU0D ‘ejep ssauisng apioud Isnw sjuedjdde sssuisng
zg uopass

a39jdwos — (so1musp juiof pue sdiysiauped jessuss) ‘sdiysidujied
paywr] ‘satuedwo?) Apqer] payiwi] ‘suogesodio)) spuedsddy ssauisng

‘abed uoieoyiHa ay) yym Buoie ‘uoneoydde sy
10 uoypss Buluewals yoes a)eidwod pue g pue f sabed uo ©-) SUoRISS LM
anuguod pjnoys sjueoldde [enpialpul ‘L g uooas Buge|dwod Jey "papircid s!
UORBULIONUI SIUFJI Alessaoau yt Apjoinb alow NoA 10BJU0D UED am ‘1onamoy ‘jeucido
oI SoSSaIPPE jlew-a pue siaqunu xe- (Aue J1) way) Buifojdws sssuisng
3} 10} UORBLLIO}UI JOBIUOD PUE SLWIEU 3L} Yjim Jay)abo ‘uoieuLiojul punolbxoeq
PUE ‘Uoreulo Ul JoBjU0D ‘eyep feuosiad siay} apiaoid jsnuw sjuedidde enpiaipug

1g uonoss apordwio) —syuedddy jenpiaipuf

*pasojasip APIIqNd 89 JOU [jIM UOHEWLIoLI 9SUSDI| S JOAUP PUB SISqUINN AUnoss [B100g

-uoneoydde sy Ul pajs| 99 jsnw (sa)ssauisng sy} Jo (S9)ssalppe pue (s)aweu ay} ‘jsed
3y} ur ssawisng juswaaoidwi awoy e pajesado uoleoydde ay) ur pajsli sssuisng Jo uosiad Aue

papiacsd aq Jsnw Joqunu sy} ‘uogedydde
3y} ul paweu Aped Aue o) panssi Usaq sey (Ni3d) JaqunN uoiesunusp] Jokoidw [esepa4 ey

‘uonedijdde J1sy} yiim pled ] 19y} Jo Adod e Hugns
OTPaliNDal 518 35U901] S JOALD B JNOLFM 9SO “PJBD UOEDNUSPI panssI-a)els e 1o 9)g)s buinss!
pue Jaquinu 8y} apiaoid jsnw uosiad 8y} ‘asuUad| S JSALIP B 9ABY JOU S20p uosiad ayly| “uogedidde
au} ul pajsi| uosiad Yoes 10y 8jejs BUINSS] puE JaqUINU SUaDJ| S, JOALIP dU} UIBJU0D Jsnw suoledlddy

‘uogje.sibal InoA uo steadde jey) sweu sy} aq {|im

(sjueondde ssauisng o) Zg oIS 1o (Sjueddde [enplalpul 104) g UOROSS Ul PSPIACID dWweu 3y |
‘uonjewojul [eJausc)

uoKeWLIoU| SSaUISNYG PUE ‘UOIJEULIOJU| JOBJUOD ‘SBWEN — g UoHI8S

*ssauisnq jo adA} auy
0} SpUOdSaLI00 J2Y) X0q 8L} 3030 ‘AJljus ssaulsng Jayjo Jo uopelodiod e Buusisibal aie noAy| B

‘[ENPIAIPUL, 30342
Joj0enUOD JUspuadapul ue 10 Jojoeiuoogns e ‘diysiojeidoid aj0s e ‘pakojdwa-4jes aie noA )| |

ueojdde ayy Buiquosap xoq ajeudoidde sy} yoayd
juedlddy jo adA] - y uooas

SlEORIMIISHE] Hone Iy

-pasajsibal aq JSnW SIBJERL 3SaY) 10y sjuswaAosdwl swoy Buiwsopad siojenuod Juspusdapul PUE SIORENLCIGNS JSASMOY
‘oysifal 0} Pasu JoU Op OS|E 0L IO VNI OGS JO YHOM JaU B Uim sus|igial Jusmasaidwi swoH 1ajsibau o} pasinbal jou aue B3k ]

B Ul 000'S$ UBY) SS9] JE panjea sjuawaacidw swoy Buiopad Sienpiapul ‘PY UoKIsiold Jawnsuod juawaacidw] swoH sy Japun

408 D12Us 342 UI01D HNM
w aunuo waof styy Sunapdwos Aq Ajporoydape uoyvoyddo anod aj1f uvo> nog
- an0qo ssa1ppo auy o} Gurgus Aq uoyoaddo sty us papiwgns uoypwiojut ay; of saBunys Aup jo |pJauag Kauioly Jo 10 3yt Ajtiou Jsnw nog

*071£1 ¥d ‘Bangsiuny ‘voyosysiBay Joppuguc) juswarosdusf awoly N1 Ly ‘a10nbs Auagsoug
‘100}4 ,§| ‘U0IIa}014 JAWNSUD) JO NDAING ‘[0Jauaq) A3ULORY JO 3140 3y Yk pa)ly aq ysnw uoyjoddo (pusBiio PaTDE ay )

“passazo.d aq jou )i suouodyjddo ajajd woduj

“uoyjo3y|ddp snok Auodwann jsnw (13p10 Aauow 1o ypaya) 6Y0SS J0 3} 3|gopunyas-uouy

*Buysamsun 10 noA uoysanh puo uoipas sy agoapus puo abind jounyppo Y203 jo doj auy) 4 ‘Ayua ssauisng 0 10 joRpIAIpU
un Jaygays ‘unyddn ay; jo awou ays apapu] “wioj unyoyddo ayj uo pajsanba uongousiojui Aun A|ddns oy sabiod jouosjippo ogjo Aow noy
(/N 4o 21902 ddo jou, “F3) waoy

ayy un jou; ajoipu; asoa|d ‘nnk of fyddo jou saop jouy} uoyouniouy sisanbai uoysanb o Jf -uoyoayddo ay} jo uoipas y2oa ajajdwo) jsnw nog

"{us 3po|q 4o anjq uf Aj203p julad 1o s1amsub Jnok add} asoajq

“papis-ajqnop

auo safod ayy Jouy ajou asoalg “wuny uoyoyddo ays Buyajdwos alcjaq uoyonjdde aug o unipas yoa Joy E:E:.E:_ ay poas aspajd

uomeaiiiy tonensiHay 1013eNUH0g JUIWIACIHIN] MO
S BHIEAIASELNd BuNajiineg 10] SUONINASU] [SId19T

‘sapjeuad [earILo
PUE [IAID 0} P9 ED 10 UORI0}01q Joumsuoy) juswaaoidur] owo] o tum Adwoo oy omyre,y mejom Ay pajquod sogoeid 10
1or Aure U] SwFeSus WOy Uregal sl pue 10y U0Kos}0] J JSWNSuo)) Juswasoidiu] SWoH atp J0 sjusuiambal sy Sunsou spoenuod
95T OS[E ISTIW SI0}9LIUOD JUSISACIAW] SWO BIIRA]ASTIS] Ul pasn sjesodoid pue SoFewnss ‘SBRU0d ‘SJUSWISSTHISAPE [[e Ul
PSPRIoULSq ISNU YoM (# DIHO VO V) 19qUuinu J0}0enuos) Justuosoidu] SO eirea Asuuad Snbrun e pansst o [ SJUensLdoy

“passao01d oq Jouured suonedrjdde je)dwoour
“papuqns usaq sey uogesjdde pajoydiuos e souo Sursseooid 10J $5M [RIGAIS A0[TE PINOYS NOA ‘[Tetl Aq 19)SI8a1 NOA T J2A9MOH
“Buissanoxd a93sey 10y ourpuo 1935180 03 PaSEIN0IWI 1€ SA0)OE.HUD ‘suonedidde Jo swnjoa pajedyuE 93 03 Ing

BPAOATL '600T ‘1 AInf E paxalsiSaiaq «w:E Eoﬁmh:oo EoEo>o.a§ swoy =< Y U0RIN0IL ._oﬁzmnooucuE?oE:a QWO
s, BIUBA]Asuaq Jopun pajdusxe Ajreaiyioods are oy) sSo[un [RI0USD) ASWORY JO 99LFC) SU} Y 19)S1505 JSTHI elUeA[ASUUSg Ul
sjuswoaodur swoy uriopad o s9a15e 10 ‘surioprad ‘SIS0 OYM 10 ssamsng JusmaAoIdmI Swoy € sarerado 10 SUMO oym Suokuy

THYINIS AJHE0LIY
1139463 Woi




I

I’

i

CTPC-TLLL L TIP3 10 A0S IDI2UIZEIULOTID " HMM
JIS14 SUONSIND) paySy Ajpuanba.ly puv uonpvuLIoful 22YLInf 10,§

uonesysibay J03oeaU0 JuswaAcIdw] BWOH N1 1Y
0Z12L Vd ‘Bingsiiey

asrenbg Auegmens 0oL Sl

UoIJ93}0.d JAWNSUOY JO neaing

Jesouan) Aaulony Jo @210

:03 juswAed pue uoneddde pajsjdwos ok pusg @

(e1gepunyas jou aie saa} uonesidde)
elueAlAsULa JO YeamuowwIo) au} 0} ajgeied 05 4O JUNOWE ay) Ut 19pI0 AoUoL JO Y08y y |

uoneoyeo uoesijdde pajep pue peubisy &
(H uonoag) uonewoul SoueInsy; s juedydde sy] @

(o uonoag) uopeoydde ay) Ui pa)s] SSOUISNG JO uosiad Yoes 10} S2INso|IsIp punoibyoeyg

(4 uopoag) ssautsng sjueoidde ay) jo uonduosep v &

(3 uoioag) sesuaoy 1o uonensifal redounut Jo [ed0] Buipnjour
‘saje)s Jaylo upjueondde sy} 0} panssi sosuadl] pue suolensifal juawaroidw; swoy (e Jo 1Sl v B8

(@ uonoag) syuesydde ayeys-Jo-1no 1o} Jusbe passisibalayl @
(o uonoag) (Aue yi) Jueoydde ayy Aq pasn seweu Jayjo Aue jo s v B

(g pue z sobed) ssauisng oy Ul 1S2I9)UI %G B LBy} I0W Uim sared pue siopaulp ‘seiped
aInjuaA juiof ‘ssoupied ‘SJ0JRIIP ‘SIS0 JO) UohRULIo ‘(Zg uonoag) sjuedtdde sssuisng o4

(eg uonoag so g
uonoag) Juesidde sy} Joy UOREBLLIOJUI pUNCIBYOB] PUE JoBIICD puk Juedldde au; jo sweu sy

( uonoag) ssauisng Jo jueoydde jo adA sy

‘ONIMOTIOH JHL 40 TIV SNIVINOD NOLLYOriddv
HNOA JHNS IUVIA ANV LSIMIOIHO SIHL MAINIY FSVYI1d ‘F1vOIHILEID
NOLLYHLSIOFE HNOA 40 IONVNSSI IHL JLId3dX3 OL °3AHO NI

1
1
|
1
(
'
t
i
t
i
'
1
'
1
1
1
1
|
|
(
|
(
t
'
t
t
t
¢
t
'
'
1
1
1
1
1
'
|
|
'
(
|
1
|
|
(
[
|
1
(

'
1

|

t
t
t

‘SalLoYINe 0) UoneLIosU Buipea]siw 10 Os[e) 9pIAcLd 0} SWUD B S13}| "9} INOO. pUE [Njyini}
S111 Ul PaUTEIU0d UoNEWIO! a3 Teyy AjiHao 3snw pue pajep pue paubis ag 1snw uoneaydde yoe
abed uoneospia)

‘Kiessaoou se sobed [euogippe Buiyoeye ‘Ajojelredoas

Aotjod yoea jsy| aseald Jainsul suo ey asow Aq Jo Aoljod auo uey) a1ow Japun papiaoid st

obr12A09 palinbal 8y} | ~96eISA0D 80URINSUL INOge suonsanb Aue aaey NOA J1 1O1LIED INOAYSE PINOYS
no “Aupgel uuey Apog/Ainful feuosiad pue abewep Apadoud Joy abeioncd apnioul Aew it ‘Aotjod
soueINSUl AJpIge [BI0JOWLIOI [elauab e oAy nok Y -abewep Apadosd pue (funfu jeuossad) wiey
Ajipoq Joy abelanoo asueinsul syuealdde ay) Buipiebar uopeuuojul apinosd ‘papinosd seoeds ay Uy
aouBINsy] - H UoNdas

-‘Alessaoau se sjaays [euonippe Buiyoeye ‘ssauisng Jo uosiad ZTSAS Yim pajeldosse
uonoE 10 352 AIBAS J0} LUORULIOM] 9pIA0Id (Alessaoau se sjoays [euonippe Jo) papinold aoeds
ay) U1 aseD 1o uonoe ayy Burpiefal uoreuLojul Jayuny apiroid pue xoq syeudoidde ay) ¥oayo isnw
noA *8sen Jo Uonde Ue Yons Uj paAjoAll usaq sey uoiedtdde ay) ul pajsi ssauisng Jo uosiad Aue §

‘sweiford Juswanoidw swoy yold-uou JO JusWUIanob

u1 bunedioiped woy uoisuadsns Jo Ueq e JO ‘uonessiBal 10 9suadi| JOPRUOD Juswarosdw)

SUWOY B0 UOREI0AS] [RIoUSD) ASLIONY 9)E]S JO AUIONY 1OLISIJ B UM SJuSWamas iAo Aue Buipnioul
‘ssausng uawaaoidw awoy e BUIAjoAUl SENSME] JIAI ‘samjdnuyueq 'sesid AjInb Jo suonomuoo
reujwo :6uipsebal uogeuLojur apiaoid }ISnw NoA uoneoidde ay) uy pajsl] S8ssauISNg pue
S[eNPIAIPU {2 J0} SBINSOISIP punolbyoeq salinbal 19y uonoalold Jawnsuol) uswaaoidw] swoH sy 1
punoJbyoeg — o uonses

ueojjdde ayy Aq eiueajAsuuad ul papinosd Jo pasayo seolnes pue spoob (e aquoseq
ssauisng jo uondudssQg — 4 uondss

‘pPONSSI SEM 3UO J1 Jagunu asuaj] Jo uonesibas ayy pue

‘(-03@ ‘A0 uygnQ ‘Aunon abioaL) aduld ‘|erauscy AsWwony Jo 8o Aestar map “6°9) uonensibal
10 8sUD21} Y) panss|1ey) Aousbe Jo 20140 dY} ‘Pansst Sem 1t alaym alels ay) Ainuspl ‘uonensibal
10 9SUD9I| YoBa J04 "piey St 1By} 9suadi| Jo uoljensiBal Yyoes 1sy| ‘asusdy Jo uonensibal jedioiunw
10 1e20] & Buipnoul ‘a)e)s Jaylo Aue Ul J0JOBIUOD B SB Pasuadl] Jo passlsibal stjueoidde oy i
suone)sibay J0 SaSUIDIT JOJIRIUCY JUudWBACIdW] SWOH JaYI0 — J UoHI9g

‘ssoded [eba} jo soiatas Jdaooe 0} ssaulsng JNoA Aq pazuoyine soyjoyuosiad sy st siyL
‘BlUBAJASUUS4 Ul PaSEQ JOU S SSaUISNG JNOA Ji pals)| 9q }Snw 90140 pais)sibal io Juabe paselsibal
(sossaulisnq aje}s-}0-Ino 10} pasnbal) Juaby passysiboy — g uondeg

"Z966-659-988-1 J& neaing uogeiodio) sjejs Jo Juswpedsq

auyy buijes Aq 1o sn'ed-aje)s 'ssauisngyuadoed mmm/y:dpy e suljuo pauie)qo aq Aew swiog ‘pasnaq
Aew salleU S0V} 2J0j2q 91BIS JO JuawHedaq eiueAlAsUUS 4 B} yum palalsiBal oq 0} salieu snoyRaL
salnbaj me| BlUBAJASUUR “(AlBSSadau se sjoays euorippe buiydepe) omy abed uo (s)aweu

oy} opnoud ‘paisisiBal Buiag sweu ay) Uey) JSL)0 sSwWeu AUe JSpuUn ssauisng ssop Juedydde auy )y
SaWeN SSaUIsng Jay)0 — 9 UoI8g




it

What is the Home Improvement Consumer

Protection Act?




0ZLLL Yd Bingstuoy
aionbg A11agMmpilg

[pi3uaq A3usoyly Jo 2d1jjQ DiuDAjAsSULS4

"90UR]SISSE 10} WY1 10BIU0D 0] Juem Aew noA ‘uoneziueblo
S10)0BIIUOD [euoISSajoid B Jo Jaquisl B 8Je NoA J| =@

‘AInjaies me| oY) peal o1 pabeinoous ale
S1010BIUO0D ‘ME| 81 JO suoisinoid ay) yim Ajdwiod o} Jepio uj @

‘Geve-cLl-LVL1e
UoN}9910.1d Jawnsuo) jo neaing sy Buijjes Agq o 1senbal

usnum uodn a|qejieAr epew 8q OS|e |[IM UOIBWLIOJUI 8Y | m

‘ANoB[eieuabAsulone MMM

8}1SgaM 8] U0 PAMB3IA 8q UBD suoljsant) paxsy Ajluenbalg

JO 1SI| B pUB 10y UO1}99)01d Jauwnsuoy) juswanoiduw] awoH
8y} ‘suononiisul pue uonelisibal joy uoneoydde sy yum Buoly g

cuonensinal
Due mej 3y inoene uonewIou J9LIn] Lieyo | ued 313LM

NmF 10V ZOEom:bm& mm_\/ NSNOJ




elauahAduice

0Z1/1 ¥d ‘Bingsiuiny
aionbg A113qmpuys

[D13U3g) AauIOHY Jo Y0 DIUDAASULSY

"0899-02S-888- | 9244 |10} ||e2 10 Aob-jesouabAauione mmm
1e 3)isgom S [elaudr) Asuiony Jo a21JO elueAjAsuudd
ay1 USIA “laquinu uoneJisibal s,1010e41U09 B AJLISA 0}

"YYeamuowiwon) ay} uiypm _umEn_.:m__umEmEmw_thom
pue ‘sjesodo.d ‘sajewysa ‘s}oejuo9 jje uo Jaquinu
uonessibal [e1o1o J1ay} Aejdsip 1snui 10100 |V

cioqunu uonensifal S 1010elU0
Awl pug jued adym

‘poubis sI10B1U0D
JusWwisA0IdWI BWIOY 8y} 810487 JuswaAoidwl awoy e 1o}
JuswAed Aue aAI808. 10 puBWSp J0U ABW 10}0BIJU0D Y

‘me| Ag padinbal
uoljewLIOUl U} JO |[B 8pNn|oul JoU S0P M JI Iawnsuod e
jsuiebe a|qeadl0jua J0U SI }JOBIJU0I JusuaAcidwi swoy

‘suolyenys Aouablaw
1o} me] Jopun papino.id se jdaoxe ‘ayep buiu
aU1 Jo sAep ssauisng 9a1y} uiyim Ajjeusad inoyum joely
JuswaAo.dwi swoy 1NoA puiosal 01 1ybil 8y} one

"9b.ey0 J0 981} J0RIIU0D 8}8|dWI0D BU] I ,
B YlIM NOA apino.d 1snwi J010BUO0D JusWiaAoIdLIl SLIoy

cSII6M A aJe ey




0899-0Z5-8881 NOILL
NoG|eISU3BALI0NE MMM

*Aupin oignd Jo yun fejuswiwianob e o aaAodwe
Ue Sk J|osIay 10 Jjaswiy sjuasaldal 1010eljuod

[eusyew \ It % \

18P0 [eroads Jo 1500 ay) sjuasaldalsiw 1o [elslew « "0899-07S-888-1 224f
18pI0 |e10ads Se [elslewW SjuesaIdalsiw J0J0BIUOD 1107 1ID9 40 403 [DIPUISKIULOND MMM ID IJISGIN ANO
71514 U0JODLUOD D fO SNIDIS UOYDLISIBd4 dY]) YI21d O

"SJUBWBSIUBAPE aAdaoap 10 8s|e) seysiiqnd J0joeliuco y [l 1004109 D uSts nok
2.1042q v1ouary Kou4031y f0 29Lf() Y} YNM Pa.aIs13a4

"JAWNSU0D 8y} JO JUBSUOD 8] S1 103ODLJU0D 40K 24nS 3q ‘dQuioYy 4nok Suldpoula.

INOYIM SIUSWINJOP J8Y10 J0 JOBJJUOD B SIajje J0j0eIuo0 Y [l a4p nok f] -1ov ay} fo suonyvjola 4of saypuad J1419

puv pnoif judwaaordusr awoy 10f saypuad [pulLLI
dof sapraoad puv ‘0gS$ spaaaxa 1raload ayy fo aonid ayy
UIYMN JQWNSUOI PUD LOJIDLUOD Y] UIIMII] SIODLUOD
UM sainbas mvy ayy iouany Koulony fo aaflp
Y] Yynm 42351324 Jsnud 1pak 4ad 240w 40 (O‘S$ SU1DIO]
spuauaaosduny swoy wiiofiad oym

$40790U02 ‘6007 ‘T AInf 24237 ._%mzma Eé JLIY

*spoafo4d Suijapouiad auwoy

"S|elaleWw 1o S82IAI8S 10} Juswaalbe ue 11o1j0s
o1.JopJo ul Auedouid s,uosiad e sebewep Jojoesjuod y

"S[eLaJewW o S9oINIeS
m£ apinoid 0} sjie} pue JuswAed SoA80a1 J0J0BIU0D Y [l

"SjUsWBA0dLI BLWIOY IO} JUBLWIBaIbEe

UB OJUI JOJUS 01 J8WNSUOD B 92UIALOD 0} UOITBLLIOJUI 40f 403004103 211 OYM. SIIUNSUOI
Buipes|siw 10 asje)} sapinoid Ajjeuoiiusiul J0}0BAUOD Y +10f suondajord spioffv mv] Y 1oy
; U01193]04 J2WNSUO") JUIUIA0Ldul]

SUIYM SANII0 pup.Lf Juawaao1duil suIof] QUIOF] 21} JnOqV mouy 07 pasvajd

. ; aq M nok UdUMOdWO0Y D 240 nok [T
chnes) Jusiianotu awioy Si 1eumm

SUMUDAIASUUIJ MOJ]D ADI(]




0. 0ew eosmees

Memo
East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380

Voice (610) 692-7171
Fax (610) 425-8950
E-mail rsmith@eastgoshen.org

Date: October 28, 2010

To:  Board of Supervisors

From: Rick Smith, Township Manager
Re:  E-Mail Archiving

Burt is currently converting the Township Staff’s computers over to the new e-mail archiving
system. I have asked him to put the Board’s computers on hold for the short term, pending
resolution of how you want to access the archiving system.

There are two ways in which the Board and the other ABC members can send and receive e-mail
concerning Township business under which the e-mails will be archived.

e The first is to install a special version of Outlook 2007 which is linked to the archiving
system. If this method is utilized e-mails will be stored on your computer and it is
possible that a Right to Know request could require you to provide copies all of the
Township related e-mails that are on your computer.

e The second is to utilize web mail which is linked to the archiving system. If this method
is utilized nothing is stored on your computer, and you could claim that you do not have
any Township e-mails on your computer. We would provide the requester with a copy of
what has been archived on the requested matter from the archiving system.

With respect to existing Township e-mails, since all of the Township staff’s e-mails are currently
stored on the Township server Burt can simply upload them in bulk.

Unfortunately, you will have to individually forward all of your existing Township e-mails to
your Township e-mail account that you want to archive them. If you keep all of your Township
e-mails in a separate folder you could burn them to a disk and we could then upload them in

mass.

I have attached a first draft of some revised wording to the e-mail policy for your review.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Information Systems\E MAIL\Memo to BoS 090110.doc



o4
EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP DRAFT

CHESTER COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA
RESOLUTION NO, 0945

A RESOLUTION GOVERNING E-MAIL COMMUNICATIONS BY AND
AMONG SUPERVISORS, STAFF AND OTHER TOWNSHIP
AUTHORITIES, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS AND ADVISORY GROUPS

WHEREAS, the Pennsylvania Sunshine Act, 65 Pa. C.S.A. §701 et. seq., as amended (the
“Act”), requires that all Township business be conducted only within the context of a public
meeting, excluding those matters which fall within the exceptions to the open meeting
requirement under §707, §708 and §712 of the Act; and

WHEREAS, today’s communication technology such as e-mail is a valuable tool and allows for
the near real-time communication of information to multiple recipients; and

WHEREAS, care must be taken that the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”), Township Staff,
the members of other Township Authorities, Boards and Commissions (the “ABCs”) and/or any
other Advisory Group(s) appointed by the Board (the “Advisory Groups) do not violate the Act
by conducting deliberations outside of an open meeting via e-mail; and

WHEREAS, e-mails typically occur at random rather than by prearrangement; however, the
Board nonetheless believes the Policy stated herein is appropriate in order to comply with the
Act; and

WHEREAS, the Policy stated herein is not intended to address the dissemination of factual
information pertaining to Township business such as meeting dates and times; and

WHEREAS, the Right to Know Act, Act 3 of 2008, as amended (the “New Law”) became
effective January 1, 2009; and

WHEREAS, under the New Law, all Township records, including e-mails, are presumed to be
public records and subject to disclosure.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the foregoing recitals are incorporated herein by reference and
deemed essential parts hereof.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in consideration of the requirements of the Act and the
New Law, the Board hereby establishes regulations for the use of e-mail by the members of the
Board, Township Staff, the ABCs and/or Advisory Groups in accordance with the following
guidelines:

1. Deliberations and official actions among a quorum of the Board, ABCs and/or
Advisory Groups shall not take place by means of the exchange of e-mails,
whether via personal e-mail accounts or Township e-mail accounts.

FData\Shared Datn\ ABC'S\Board of Supervisors\Resolutions\2010\09-43 E-Mail Policy with Archiving
A i 2N R o PN PENOA MG 43 T Aai i N

1 (7)719] 0.dock:




|

|

a. For the purpose of this Resolution, “deliberation” shall include the
discussion of Township business held for the purpose of making a
decision as well as the making of any recommendation or providing an
individual position or opinion on Township business.

b. For purposes of this Resolution, “official actions” means the establishment
of policy; decisions on Township business; and a vote or recommendation
on any motion, proposal, rule, regulation, statute, ordinance, report or
order.

Nothing in this Resolution shall preclude any member of the Board, Township
Staff, any ABCs and/or Advisory Groups from communicating by e-mail with one
or more members of the Board or any ABCs or any Advisory Groups, including a
quorum of the Board or any ABCs or any Advisory Group, for the purpose of
disseminating or sharing information pertinent to Township business.

a. For the purpose of this Resolution, “information” is defined as a series of
factual statements related to meeting schedules and agendas, including
supporting background documents and data, to be discussed at a future
meeting.

b. Background data created for a particular business item should be
acknowledged at the next public meeting where the item is discussed.

E-mails received from Township residents may be acknowledged at the next
regular public meeting after receipt of such e-mails.

Township e-mail accounts shall be used strictly for Township business.
Township e-mail accounts shall not be used for viewing, accessing or transmitting
any material that a reasonable individual may find personally offensive or
inappropriate, including sexually suggestive materials.

a. All information sent and/or received via the Township e-mail accounts and
the Township server is and shall be the property of the Township. The
contents of all such e-mail accounts shall be considered public records
unless it can be shown that the e-mail content falls under one of the
exclusions of the New Law.

b. Township e-mail accounts shall not be used to communicate material such
as, but not limited to, deliberations, decisions, official actions, opinions,
and legal advice from the Township Solicitor without prior approval from
the Township Solicitor or the Board.

C. The Township reserves the right to search and audit all work-provided
electronic equipment of Township employees. The Township may
monitor e-mail activity with or without notice, and no employee has an
expectation of privacy with regard to Township e-mail accounts and
electronic equipment.

F\Data\Shared Data\ ABC'S\Board of Supervisors\Resolutions\2010109-43 E-Mail Policy with Archiving
- ol 1Oy - N PPy fs Y 1 e ; 11 Pl Anen

A
>

’ »l‘0197107.d0c 0

3 = T ¥OT 3 (Bavseg = (= s




4 0y 4

3. The Township has contracted for an e-mail archiving system under which all e-
mails sent and received from Township computers will be archived. The archiving
system is also available for use by the Board of Supervisors. Township Auditors.
and all other Township ABC’s and Advisory Groups. via either Outlook 2007
which is linked to the archiving system or web mail which is linked to the
archiving system. All e-mails to and from the Board of Supervisors. Township
ABC’s and Advisory Groups concerning Township business shall be sent in such
a manner as to be archived.

a. Members of the Board of Supervisors may comply with this requirement by
utilizing either Outlook 2007 which is linked to the archiving system or web
mail which is linked to the archiving svsten.

b. Members of the Township ABC’s, Township Auditors and other Township
Advisory Groups shall comply with this requirement by utilizine web mail
which is linked to the archiving system.

Y

ey
E= =

RESOLVED AND ADOPTED, this 34 __ day of March , 26089
ATTEST: EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Secretary

E:\Data\Shared Datat ABC'S\Board of Supervisors\Resolutions\2010\09- 43 E-Mail Policy with Archiving

101910 dOCI: ANAtal Chgead Taiat ARC'S\Board-of S “rn SR DIV PO Tl v ”f\(\ﬂ (\() 413 B My }P&I C'y duv

TRt OGS 3t e uu\;uukw AYPUVEF ATt




EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WORKSHOP
1580 PAOLI PIKE
October 27, 2010 - 12:00 P.M.
Draft Minutes

Present: Chairman Senya D. Isayeff, Vice-Chairman Thom Clapper and Supervisors Carmen
Battavio, Mary Shane and Don McConathy. Also present were Township Manager Rick Smith,
and Zoning Officer Mark Gordon.

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance
Senya called the meeting to order at 12:00 pm. He asked Mark Gordon to lead everyone in the
Pledge of Allegiance.

Moment of Silence
Carmen called for a moment of silence to honor the men and women serving their country in
the armed forces, and their families.

Recording of Meeting
No one indicated that they planned to record the meeting.

TAG’s Recommendation Summary
The Board’s goal today was to review the 41 recommendations made by TAG and identify the
top 10.

The following are what the Board decided were the top ten items on the list of
recommendations:

Empower Staff

Minimize Commercial Vacancy

Implement a Fully Integrated Cost Accounting System
Assess/Replace HVAC System

Transition to an Electronic Newsletter

Evaluate Sharing of Services with Neighboring Townships
Emergency Services Assessment

Reevaluate Support of Fire Companies

. Self Sustaining Park and Recreation Programs

10 Maintain Ownership of Wastewater Treatment Plant

©®ENOU A WN R

It was decided that a Board member and staff member would be assigned to each of the top
ten items as follows:

1. Empower Staff — Senya Isayeff and Rick Smith




Minimize Commercial Vacancy — Senya Isayeff and Mark Gordon

Implement a Fully Integrated Cost Accounting System - Don McConathy and Deb Beury
Assess and Replace HVAC System — Carmen Battavio and Rick Smith

Transition to an Electronic Newsletter — Thom Clapper and Diane Degnan

Evaluate Sharing of Services with Neighboring Townships — Thom Clapper and Mark
Miller

7. Emergency Services Assessment — Marty Shane and Rick Smith

8. Reevaluate Support of Fire Companies — Carmen Battavio and Mark Miller

9. Self Sustaining Park and Recreation Programs — Thom Clapper and Frank Vattilano

10. Maintain Ownership of Wastewater Treatment Plant — Marty Shane and Rick Smith

o, wN

The Board feels it is mandatory to meet with the Goshen Fire Company to discuss funding
for 2011. Also mentioned was the need to get a better idea of how fire companies work
together. The suggestion was made that the Township should have a fire commissioner who
would serve as a liaison between the Township and the fire companies that serve the
Township.

Two YMCA representatives were present. The Board made the suggestion that a YMCA
liaison be established. Marty asked the YMCA to frame out ideas for working with the Park
and Recreation Board and Frank Vattalino. The representatives stated that the YMCA is
very supportive of East Goshen Township’s Park and Recreation.

Ann Marie Fletcher-Moore, Chairman of the Park and Recreation Board, expressed concern
over the fact that the TAG members did not meet with the Park and Recreation Board
members for their input when they were working on their recommendations. The Board of
Supervisors agreed that Items #31 — 37 on the Recommendation Summary (all pertaining to
Park & Recreation) should be discussed in a joint meeting between the Supervisors and the
Park and Recreation Board. It was suggested that the Park and Recreation board provide the
Board with a copy of their comments on the recommendation prior to the meeting.

There followed a discussion of item # 23 (Random Drug Testing) on the TAG
Recommendation Summary. Thom Clapper made a motion to discontinue random drug
testing for the non CDL employees. Carmen Battavio seconded the motion. The Board voted
unanimously to approve the motion.

The Board discussed Item # 20 (Office Cleaning) on the TAG Recommendation Summary.
The feeling was that the Township Building is a busy public building that gets constant use
with many people coming and going and needs to be cleaned more than once a week. Don
McConathy made a motion to continue with twice a week cleaning. Marty Shane seconded
the motion. The Board voted unanimously to approve the motion.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Minutes\Board of Supervisors\2010\October 27, 2010 BOS WORKSHOP - DRAFT A.doc




The Board then reviewed the remaining items on the TAG Recommendation Summary and
assigned a staff person to be responsible for the recommendations.

Rick Smith noted that the staff would update the TAG Recommendation Summary for the
Board’s review and approval.

There was no public comment.
The meeting adjourned at 4:00 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Nancy Scheiderman
Attachment - TAG Action List

F:\Data\Shared Data\Minutes\Board of Supervisors\2010\October 27, 2010 BOS WORKSHOP - DRAFT A.doc










\S (opprztnte e

Rick Smith =
From: Linda Waterhouse [bartoncottage@stny.rr.com]

Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2010 2:36 AM

To: rsmith@eastgoshen.org

Subject: Letter of Thanks

Rick —

Now that our move to Jamestown, New York is finally complete, I
would be remiss if I did not recognize and thank each of the members
of the East Goshen Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors.
Their hard work and support afforded me as I endeavored to assist
the Buyer, Peter Schaffer, of my property (formerly the 1800 Tory
Inne), with his application and ultimate approval for a Conditional
Use Permit, was exemplary. . . especially considering the challenging
time constraints put upon us.

As you know, I fiave been an applicant many times in the twelve
years that I lived in East Goshen Township and whether I was
seeRing a permit to make alterations to the property or to obtain a
Conditional Use Permit to operate a Bed I Breakfast, I was always
treated extremely well and always walked away with the Rnowledge
that the Township had treated me fonestly and fairly. So again,
thank you for making our experience in East Goshen Township such a
happy and memorable one.

Best to all,

Linda






EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

A Aot Lo

A ms

ACTION LIST
# Item Action Due Date
Abm 07-01 Review Wireless Ordinance 3-Nov-10
ADM 07-02 [Pension Plan Conversion 3-Nov-10
ADM 0907 |\Web Site Upgrade Status 3-Nov-10
ppw 07-02 |Hershey's Mill Dam 3-Nov-10
DPw 10-02 |Pedestrian Crosswalk @ Township Park 3-Nov-10
Aapm 10-02 JAnnual Training Plan 9-Nov-10
ADM 10-07 |Staffing Analysis 8-Nov-10
FIN0s-02 |Capital Reserve Fund Analysis 8-Nov-10
pczoe-01 |Parking for Multi-Use Space in IP/BP District 8-Nov-10
Pcz 10-01 |CTDI Parking 9-Nov-10
Abm 1016 |Performance Evaluations 16-Nov-10
AbMm 107 [Emergency Operations Plan 16-Nov-10
ppw 10-02 |Ridley Creek Expansion Monthly Update 16-Nov-10
FIN10-06 |Friends of East Goshen Township 501¢3 16-Nov-10
FIN10-03 |Monthly Financial Reports 23-Nov-10
ADMm 0s-10 |Soccer Fields @ Line Road 7-Dec-10
ppw 07-01 |Geese Management Program 7-Dec-10
DPW 08-04 lInvasive Species 7-Dec-10
Pcz 10-03 |Generator Installations 7-Dec-10
AbM 1001 |Employee Benefits 19-Dec-10
ADMm 09-04 |Quarterly Review of Right to Know Requests 3-Jan-11
ADM 08-02 |Review Comp Plan Action List (Ch 10) 8-Jan-11
DPw 10-04 |Historic Books 11-Jan-11
ppPw 08-02 |Quarterly Report on 1&l 26-Jan-11
FIN09-01 |Quarterly Summary of Pending Legal Cases 26-Jan-11
FIN10-05 |Quarterly Financial Reports - 2010 26-Jan-11
Action List 110310.xIsx 10of 3 11/03/10



# Item Action Due Date
PCcz0s-01 |Telecom Registration and Reporting 16-Feb-11
FIN-10-10  |Energy Usage at Township Building 15-Mar-11
DPW 10-5 |Street Signs 29-Mar-11
ADM 08-02 |Records Retention Resolution (Email System) Completed
ADM 08-05 |Energy Conservation in Twp Bldg Completed
ADM 09-08 |Police Scheduling Completed
ADM 09-09 JARCView System (GIS) Completed
ADMo0s-11 |2010 Sponsorships: Fireworks & Leaf Bags Completed
ADM0s-12 |Deer Management Committee Completed
ADM 08-13 |ABC Appreciation Event Guest List Completed
ADM 10-03 | Township Advisory Group Completed
ADM 10-04 [|Information Systems Analysis Completed
ADM 10-07 |Printers Completed
ADM 10-13 | Sewer Metered Billing Completed
ADM 10-14 [Newsletter Advertising Completed
ADM 10-15 |Resolutions Book Completed
ADM 10-18 |DMP Resolution Completed
AbM 1019 JTUSDA Geese Round Up Completed
ADM 10-20 |Planning Commission Vacancies Completed
Abm 1021 JABC Meeting Minutes of 5/15/10 Completed
pPw 07-04 [Park Bridge Permit & Construction Completed
ppw08-01 |Public Works Service Outsourcing Completed
bpw 08-06 [Recycling Contract Completed
pPw 09-03 {Road Resurfacing Completed
pPw 10-01 | Tree Vitalize Grant (Conservancy) Completed
pPw 10-06 |Cost of Electric Work Completed
FIN 10-02 |Services List Completed
FIN10-06 |Municipal Authority Funding Completed
Action List 110310.xIsx 20of3 11/03/10



# item Action Due Date
FIN10-07 fWCF Tower @ Township Building Completed
FIN10-08 |DPW Expense Allocation Completed
FIN 10-09 invoice Coding Review Completed
PCz10-04 || jeberman Early & Co Completed
PCZ 10-07 fSunoco Reports Ongoing

Action List 110310.xIsx 30f3 11/03/10




EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
ACTION ITEM

Item: Wireless Ordinance No:| ADM 07-01

List Date: [_6/20/2007 CompletedDate: [ |

Description: |Review and revise Ordinance.

Date Action

Bring ordinance up to standards and close some loopholes. Remove annual
5/4/2010 [reporting and fee. Wireless carrier name change. Review satellite dishes

5/4/2010 [Memo from Mark Gordon.

5/25/2010 |Mark to review Ordinance with Jeff Sommer to address issues related to
current technology, configurations and Township restrictions.

7/27/2010 |The first draft of the ordinance is attached. It is still a work in progress.

[f you have any comments please pass them on to Mark Gordon.

Once we have incorporated the comments we will have a draft for the
Board's review.

9/14/2010 |Comments have been sent to Kristin- She is working on revised ordinance

10/5/2010 |We have sent additional comments to Kristin- She is working on revised ordinance

11/3/2010 |Second Draft is attached for review




Memorandum

East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380
Voice: 610-692-7171

Fax: 610-692-8950
E-mail: mgordon@eastgoshen.org

Date: 10/29/2010

To: Board of Supervisors
From: Mark Gordon, Township Zoning Officer 4 A ({i
Re:  Wireless Ordinance

Dear Boards Members: .
Ms. Kamp has compilted the Wireless Communications Ordinance for your
review. This version splits the ordinance into two separate sections:
1) Antenna(s) erected on Commercial Communications Support Structures
(Towers). PAGE 1
2) Antenna(s) erected on Existing Structures. PAGE 8

F:\Data\Shared Data\Admin Dept\Township Code\Wireless Communications 2010\Memo to BOS WCF ord 10292010.doc

Gy













































EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
ACTION ITEM

item: New Format for Street Signs No:| DPW10-5

List Date: [ 10/25/2010 Completed Date: ||

Determine impact of installing new street signs with lower case letters per
FHWA requirements

Description:

Date Action

3/29/2011 ([Report on impact due




http://www.usatoday.com/news/nation/201 0-10-21

-road—signs-aH—caps-Iowercase*N.htm

ALL CAPS? Not OK
on road signs,
federal government
says

Updated 3d 22h ago

By Larry Copeland, USA TODAY

y Eileen Blass, USA TODAY

The federal government is requiring localities to replace street signs
in all capital leters, tike this one in Pigeon Forge, Tenn., with signs
using upper and lowercase letters.

CAN YOU READ THIS?

There, is that better?

In a nod to the fading eyesight of the nation's
growing number of aging Baby Boomers, the federal
government is requiring communities around the
USA to change street name signs from all capital
letters to a combination of capital and lowercase
letters. The government says that makes them easier
to read.

Cash-starved localities also will have to dig deep for
new, more reflective traffic signs to make them
easier to see at night, especially by older drivers.

MISSOURI: Tourists welcomed with bigger, brighter
road signs

SOLAR SIGNS: More cities turn to solar power for

traffic signs

Under Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)
regulations, communities have until 2015 to

improve the nighttime visibility of roadside signs —
such as stop, yield and railroad crossing signs. The
issue is how well a sign redirects light from an
automobile's headlights back toward the vehicle.
Signs that fail to meet minimum standards must be
replaced. Communities will be allowed to change the
street name signs as they wear out.

The changes are called for in the Manual on Uniform
Traffic Control Devices, an 816-page (plus
appendixes) behemoth that sets standards for traffic
control devices — signs, signals and pavement
markings.

"As drivers get older, we want to make sure they're
able to read the signs," says FHWA administrator
Victor Mendez. "Research shows that older drivers
are better able to read signs when they're written in
both capital and small letters. It's really driven by
safety."

Despite that, the rule changes are not welcome in
communities that have cut budgets to the quick.

“I think it's ridiculous," says Milwaukee Alderman
Bob Donovan, whose city will spend about $1.4
million on new signs over the next four years. "Our
street signs have worked perfectly well for 100 years
or more. | think it's just the federal government run
amok. If they don't have far more important things to
deal with, they're not doing their job."

A gripe heard across the land: The government is

We focus on

QUG ng

Mariott® Hotals®
- E“ = H .

D//WWW.USAtoday com/elanmmmint /919000 7mmA non

~
Page 1 of 2



http://www.usatoday.com/news/nation/2010-10-21 -road-signs-all-caps-lowercase_N.htm

TODAY.

providing no funds to make the change.

fron Mountain, Mich., which has a population of
8,154 and a $6 million budget, will spend $30-$50
apiece replacing several hundred signs, says city
manager Jordan Stanchina. "You're looking at all the
other things you've got to cut, and now you've got

to do this," he says.

Canyon, Texas, city manager Randy Criswell says
the Texas Panhandle city of about 15,000 will
replace 1,500-2,000 signs at a cost of about $100
apiece. "Do | think that's money that's spent as well
as it could be? I sure don't,” he says. "I've got
parents that are getting elderly. They think this is
silly.”

Some cities such as Eau Claire, Wis., have already
been gradually repiacing signs as they wear out.
Brian Amundson, the city's public works director,
says replacing signs is "a good, worthwhile
program. It really does make a difference.” But he
says, "It's just that in these difficult financial times,
people don't like it shoved down their throat
because they don't see the immediate value of it."

The new travel
ap? fﬁi‘ E?E“Eﬂgﬂﬁeﬁ

r?

Page

éon



AN
Rk S mith
Erim: Don McConathy [dmcconathy@verizon.net]
S el Friday, October 22, 2010 2:41 PM
To Rick Smith; Mark Miller; 'Carmen Battavio'; ‘Clapper, Thom?; 'Marty Shane'": ‘Senya [sayeff
cc ‘Deborah Beury'
Sutject: Traffic signs

a ddermination of the impact on the Township going forward. We do not need this for the 2011 budget (unless we decide
to defer additional signs) but we should review this in early 2011 to see the impact and develop a plan. | could hope we
hawethis coveredbut| believe the use of lower Case on the street signs is a new requirement. Not sure where we get our
guidance for signs — PADOT maybe? In which case we may have to wait for them to catch up before planning.

Rick- please add to the action list so we can track. Maybe a 30 March date?

httpwww. usatoday.com/news/nation/2010-10-21 -rdad-siqns—all-caps—lowercase N.htm

Don NeConathy



Rick Smith

From: Belmonte, Louis [Ibelmonte@state.pa.us]
Sent: Wednesday, October 27, 2010 8:55 AM
To: rsmith@eastgoshen.org

Subject: FW: New sign requirements

Rick -

Pennsylvania has still not adopted the 2009 MUTCD, so the 2003 version remains in effect.
I can’t say for sure, but I think that may be the case for at least awhile. The best I can tell
is that the new MUTCD changed language with regard to capital and small case lettering.
But there doesn’t seem to be any Target Compliance Date for that change to be

implemented.

Although the 2009 edition has not been adopted yet, all established “Target Compliance
Dates established by FHWA are shown in a very useful table (Table I-2), and here is a link:
http: //mutcd.fhwa.dot.gov/htm /2009 /intro/intro.htm

Your concern that information of this sort may not be reaching municipalities as well as

possible is probably accurate, I have gotten a handful of inquiries since a similar story ran
in the Wall Street Journal (I believe) a few weeks ago. I have forwarded the concern to the
Bureau of Highway Safety and Traffic Engineering and they are looking into ways to better
disperse information and guidance of this sort, possibly through our Bureau of Municipal

Services (newsletters perhaps).

Following is a summary of changes to the Street Name Sign section of the MUTCD (2003
edition in red, 2009 edition in blue) as an FYI:

Section 2B-38 2D.43 Street Name Signs (D3-1 or B3-1a)

Guidance:

Street Name (D3-1 or D3-1a) signs (see Figure 2D-10) should be installed in urban areas at all street
intersections regardless of other route signs that may might be present and should be installed in rural areas to
identify important roads that are not otherwise signed.

Option:

For streets that are part of a U.S., State, or county numbered route, a D3-1a Street Name sign (see Figure 2D~
10) that incorporates a route shield may be used to assist road users who might not otherwise be able to
associate the name of the street with the route number.

Standard:

The letterina for names of streets and highways on Street Name signs shall be composed of a
combination of lower-case letters with initial upper-case letters {see Section 2A.13).

Guidance:



A
Lettering on gretnd- post-mounted Street Name signs should be atfeast-6-inches-high-in-capitalletters,or6—

ineh composed of initial upper-case letters at least 6 inches in height with-4-5-ireh and lower-case letters_at
least 4.5 inches in height.

On multi-lane streets with speed limits greater than 40 mph, the lettering on gretad- post-mounted Street
Name signs should be ; igh-+ : ; composed of initial upper-case letters at

least 8 inches in height with-6~ineh and lower-case letters_at least 6 inches in height.

Option:

For local roads with speed limits of 25 mph or less, the lettering height on post-mounted Street Name signs
may be a-minimum composed of initial upper-case letters at least 4 inches in height and lower-case letters at

least 3 inches in height.

Guidance:

If overhead Street Name signs are used, the lettering should be atteast-12-inches-high-in-capitat-tetters,or42-

ineh composed of initial upper-case letters at least 12 inches in height with-9-innch and lower-case letters at
least 9 inches in height.

Support:

The recommended minimum letter heights for Street Name signs are summarized in Table 2D-2.

Option:

Supplementary lettering to indicate the type of street (such as Street, Avenue, or Road) or the section of the
city (such as NW) on the D3-1 and D3-1a signs may be in smaller lettering, composed of initial upper-case
letters at least 3 inches kigh in height and lower-case letters at least 2.25 inches in height. Conventional
abbreviations (see Section 1A.15) may be used except for the street name itself.

A symbol-erletter-designation

sign te—dentify-the-gov

ictograph (see definition in Section 1A.13) may be used on a Street-Name D3-1

Standard:

Pictoaraphs shall not be displayed on D3-1a or Advance Street Name (D3-2) signs {see Section

2D.44).

If a symbotlorletterdesignation pictograph is used ona D3-1 sign, the height and width of the
symbol-or-letter-designation pictograph shall not exceed the upper-case letter height of the principal
legend of the sign.

Guidance:

The symbel-erdetter-designation pictograph should be positioned to the left of the street name.

Standard:

The Street Name sign shall be retroreflective or illuminated to show the same shape and similar
color both day and night. The color of the legend (and background border, if used) shall be-ef

contrasting with the background colors of the sign.

Crpmmt Mamao ciamc chadd-hava awhifa toagand op-g-areenbockarouna—A-berder £ riond charidAd b Fhn copan
Street-Nome-SrgRS-SAotG-Aavea- Wt TCGeAG-Ofa-FCCioaCKgrodia 7y DUruCr i aoscusiivard et SaTiic
E@*@F‘as—éh'e"legeﬁd‘.

5



S
5

Option:

The border may be omitted from a Street Name sian.

An alternative background color other than the normal guide sign color of green may be used for Street Name
(D3-1 or D3-1a) signs where the highway agency determines this is hecessary to assist road users in
determining jurisdictional authority for roads,

Standard:

Alternative background colors shall not be used for Advance Street Name (D3-2) sians (see Section

2D.44),

The only acceptable alternative background colors for Street Name (D3-1 or D3-1a) signs shall be

‘blue, brown, or white. Regardless of whether green, blue, or brown is used as the backaround color

for Street Name (D3-1 or D3-1a) siagns, the legend (and border, if used) shall be white. For Street

Name signs that use a white backarcund, the legend (and border, if used) shall be black.

Guidance:

An alternative background color for Street Name signs, if used, should be applied to the Street Name (D3-1 or
D3-1a) signs on all roadways under the jurisdiction of a particular highway aaancy.

In business or commercial districts areas and on principal arterials, Street Name signs should be placed at least
on diagonally opposite corners. In residential areas, at least one Street Name sign should be mounted at each
intersection. Signs naming both streets should be installed at each intersection. They should be mounted with
their faces parallel to the streets they name.

Option:

To optimize visibility, Street Name signs may be mounted overhead. Street Name signs may also be placed
above a regulatory or STOP or YIELD sign with no required vertical separation.

Guidance:

In urban or suburban areas, especially where Advance Street Name signs for signalized and other major
Intersections are not used, the use of overhead-meunted Street Name signs should be strongly considered.

Option:

At intersection crossroads where the same road has two different street names for each direction of travel, both
street names may be shows displayed on the same sign along with directional arrows.

Support:

Information regarding the use of street names on supplemental plaques for use with intersection-related
warning signs is contained in Section 2C.58.

Lou

Louis Belmonte P.E. | District Traffic Engineer
PA Department of Transportation

Engineering District 6-0

7000 Geerdes Blvd. King of Prussia, PA 19406




-
T
E——1

Phone: 610.205.6550 | Fax: 610.205.6598
Ibeimonte@state.pa.us / www.dot.state.pa.us

From: Rick Smith [mailto:rsmith@eastgoshen.org]
Sent: Monday, October 25, 2010 1:49 PM

To: Belmonte, Louis

Cc: 'Mark Miller'

Subject: New sign requirements

Lou

There was an article in the USA Today last week that the FHWA will require municipalities to use lower case letters in
their street signs. The article also mentions that we need to improve the reflectivity of the stop and yield signs, but | do

not believe that is a new requirements..
Is the Department going to issue any guidance on this issue?

thanks

http://www.usatoday.com/news/nation/2010-10-21-road-signs-all-caps-lowercase_N.htm

Rick Smith, Township Manager
East Goshen Township




EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
ACTION ITEM

ftem: Pension Plan Conversion No:| ADM 07-02

List Date: 1/2/2007 Completed Date: I:l

Is it economically feasible to convert the current defined benefit plan to a
defined contribution plan?

Description:

Date Action

Investigation options. Tom Anderson to do actuarial study and draft papers
for new plan.

4/6/2010 |Per Anderson we should have report by 4/9.

4/20/2010 {Memo from Rick regarding cost to switch and recommended Township
contribution

5/4/2010 |Can Township mandate move to Defined Contribution? Solicitor reviewing.

5/25/2010 |Solicitor suggests current plan be "frozen” and new plan begun. Still
reviewing legal aspects and will send memo within week.

6/8/2010 [Recommendation on freezing old plan.
6/15/2010 {Update distributed 6/18/10

7/13/2010 |Find out price to set up new plan and to freeze old plan. What will be
budget requirement at current 8% assumed rate and 6%?

8/10/2010|BoS approved Time line
9/14/2010|Board to review executive summary of new plan.
10/15/2010{MG: No Update from Atty. Update for Board on Nov 3.

11/3/2010]First Draft is attached




Memo
East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike

West Chester, PA 19380

Voice (610) 692-7171
Fax (610) 425-8950
E-mail rsmith@easteoshen.org

Date: October 28, 2010

To:  Board of supervisors

From: Rick Smith, Township Manager
Re:  Money Purchase Pension Plan

Attached is the first draft of the Money Purchase Pension Plan aka Defined Contribution Plan.

Give the voluminous of the document I would suggest deferring discussion on this until
November 9, 2010.

F:\Data\Shared Data\Admin Dept\Pension Plan\Memo 101028.doc

5

—_—5






TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10
1.11
1.12
1.13
1.14
1.15
1.16
1.17
1.18
1.19
1.20
1.21
1.22
1.23
1.24
1.25
1.26
1.27
1.28
1.29
1.30
1.31
1.32
1.33
1.34

ALCCOUNL ..euviiiieirinterieniet ettt et ere bbbttt esbeesbesatesneenbesbeeseesbesesesbeantentesanesasensensas 1
ACCOUNE OWIIET ...cuviiieiiiieriiiteiee et eeeseesteeseeesabeesateseeeseesssaeseeareeneesssesenbesansssenans 1
AREINALE PAYEE ...eivviiieiiiiiiiiiiisiesietetisteset e e see e e sasseeesiees e ensessssesssesssessesnnesnns 1
ANNUAL AQQITION. 1ovviiiirireeriiirerneeese st seesaestsesesbe s b essesbeessessesnesessensessensanns 1
O .ttt ettt et e et sh e et eshe et e bt e st e bbb rnenee s 2
COMIMIEEEE .. vevrerierieireeteertee st et esteetetesteeruesreesseastaessesbessaessessesssessessesssesssensesnessens 2
TOWIISHID vt tveeive ettt sttt eb e st ea s ba e s e e sae et e aesbsareesreeseessasssensesnsensensenses 2
TOWNShIP CONITDULIONS. . .cvieviiiieiiiieieeriiireecrieesieesreereesseeseeeseesesssenessessssessneseesses 2
COMPENSALION ..eivviverererrrenrieiereseeetesassessescaessesssressasssersesasssessessaessessesssesssensessessens 2
Covered EMPLOYEE.....ccocvieiiririieiiiirietenieeiesie e st esieesestesseessessesseseesseensesssessesesssens 5
DHSADIIILY .vvvevveeeririeiiesireetee et et e stes e te s eeesra e e e sbe s teereeraesseereesbenseeseesbeesrasteebesasenes 5
Domestic Relations Order.......ccccuveiieierineneneneninieieineneneneseeeresesseesesesesenees 5
EIMPLOYEE ..ottt ettt sttt sttt e sttt e e see e e b saeeeeeneesbeeneenessbeans 6
ERISA Lttt sttt b e s bt st ebe st sbe s b se e s esbennsnaesesseesessenes 6
ENY DALE ..viivviiiiiiicieee ettt ettt sre e st e e sera e e taeesbbeesaesesbtesseeseesbeaessreessnesnnes 6
Highly Compensated EMPIOYEE .......ccivveeeiiieiierieeiieeieicieecesee e eneneeesiesvesvesanenns 6
Hours of COMPENSALION ...ccuvevvieiririreriininieniaesieeneensesesreesiesesssessesseessesssesseesesasenne 7
KEY EMPIOYEE....coiriiiiiiriiiieiiiiniiniiniesestestese e sieeseesbeesseseneseessessneseesnassnesaneseensenns 7
Lapse in the Township EMployment ........cccceeeeviiiininininenincnieicnenieie e 8
LAMItAtion YEaT ...cvuiiiictieieiisiireiesiestesieseeseesbeesraessesiesssensesrnessessesssessesssessessesseens 8
Non-Highly Compensated EMPLOYEE .....cc.eccvivveinrieniiriiirienienirereseeneenineneeneeneeeenees 8
NON-KeY EMPLOYEE ...veiviiiiiiieriiniiinieniiieenitisteeie st ecre s esnestesreeseessee s e senanaesees 8
Normal REtIrEMENt AZE ...ccvoveieeiiiereeierieeestiere e ete st e e sseetesre e esssesaesressessaesens 8
PartiCIPANT ...cuveiiiieiicierisceienise sttt eesn s s be e e saasta et e sbesssasbesseesbaessessessesnenns 8
Period OF SEIVICE ....cciiiieiirieniiieert ettt saeesbeebessessnens 8
PLan YOaT . c..eeeieiiiecereee ettt sttt b sre et b st ebn e 8
QDRO ittt sttt sk s b et a e ra e e et sseanes 8
QIS A et e st st be bt be e b r e st sresanenee 8
QOSA e sttt st ettt b e bt a e et e seeseete bt e s 9
QPSA et st be st a e hesbr et sat e b e s tenreseesatene 9
Required Beginning Date........c.ccoveiiriieniiiiinieniiiiecieseeeeeenesesrese et esseeresre e 9
S POUSE L uvetrieeerieeste et e et rr st esie e saeeee s baesaeeebbeeraeasaressresssasseeensaesbeesssnensesnsenarenas 9
Termination from Service Date ......c.ecvveviviinienieeniiiiireieneeieneneeeeseeseeeneesseseesenas 9
Valuation DAte .......cccceeieriinieinieniierienteriere ettt eetesre b aesbestesesbeneenes 10

ARTICLE II PARTICIPATION....ccccesiestcrerunsessensusssssessessassassacssassasssssasassassassassasasssassassassasansassa 11

2.1
2.2

PartiCiPation .. .ccveicuireirieienininieeie e st sre s s e s e s b ebe e e sbaebe e tesseenesbe e b eereseeene 11
ENTOIIMENT PTOCEAULE ...coeeveieeeeeteeeeereetereveeeeeeemsaenseeneseseseeereeeseeesesasesssessnsssssns 11

ARTICLE III CONTRIBUTIONS.....ciccuinntnmisensnsecsnssiesaisssssessassassassssssssessssassassrssanssssasssssssnes 1 2

3.1
3.2
3.3

ToWnship CONtIIDULIONS......cceirvieierrierenerienieeieesteerienseeesnbessesssessesnesseessansessesaes 12

Participant CoONtribULIONS ......coeuveveverierienirienierinreeresieneeereesesieneseessssessesesresseseseeneses 13

Return of ContribUtions ........ccoeviviireniiieiireii e ebereens 13
i

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



3.4  Limitation on Annual Additions .......cccciveevieriiniieriinniinieerreserreeseesseresreennesneens 13

ARTICLE IV INTERESTS IN THE TRUST FUND ....cccccvctrirercssssersesssssnnssasnessssassosenssssonses 15
4.1 Participants’ ACCOUNLS ......eivvereeertiriireriiieciesesaesiessaessesirsseessesseesmeessesssesesnsens 15
4.2 Valuation Of TIUSt FUNG....coovoiireiiiiie ittt vttt e e s srtareetsse s sseesnbareeseses 15
4.3 Allocation of Increase or Decrease in Net Worth. oo 16
ARTICLE V AMOUNT OF BENEFTTS ...cctttteeeieiesracaresssssnneersesesssssssnsssssssssssasessesssssssnsesarssssen 17
5.1 Vesting SCHEUIE ......covivviriiierieeniiiine e erenesieniesnesiaseeeeseeereesse s sseesreesiesnessnes 17
5.2 Vesting After a Lapse in the Township Employment..........ccccceeceeniinivecrieeniennnes 17
5.3 CalCUlating SEIVICE ....ecveiiviiriirieiriiieeriseeseseeresseereertesresraeseessesesessessteesessssessesseenne 18
5.4 B O OIULES 1evve ittt ettt et e s ettt bte e e s e s bbb abe e st s esibeabreessessreseaassasssossanntestessons 19
5.5 Transfers — POrtability.......ccovvieriiererieninenecicccrereeecrcnr e 20
ARTICLE VI DISTRIBUTION OF BENETTTS ...ouueeetersssscsncersresssssessserosesssessssonsssesssssssssaseses 21
6.1 BENETICIAIIES. tvivviiiiiriereiiiiriietee et s e see sttt rteeessesareeeesssssbeasteessrasbesrtsssetssonosissrarisssons 21
6.2 DiStIIDULADIE AINOUNL...ccviiiiiiieieieie it teerrerareeseeeeeeereereeaeersraaaeeees 22
6.3 Manner Of DISIIIDULION tovvvviiieieiier i eiiiriet e eerirerte s eesireereesssissrtbeserseesssesssssresesssss 23
6.4 TIME OF DISTIIDULION 11vvveiiieieeeie i ieeereeesee seeeeeeerierereeeterereeeerseseessrerereressssesssessressnssans 25
6.5 DITECt ROIIOVET FlECTION 1ottt ettt s e s ttentree e s sesbeberereasssssessssrsteessens 27
ARTICLE VII ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES — NAMED FIDUCIARIES. ....30
7.1 No Joint Fiduciary Responsibilities.........cvvveivvervieciviiiienieiieniessneneessesssvresnessnes 30
72 The TOWISHIP «vveeeieireierie et ce et e et e et esbesre e besbaasbaessesnbesnesnsens 30
7.3 THE THUSEEE wevvvveiiorereeeteteteee ettt ettt eee ettt et tteeesesassssssatatarsevasaesareessssessessssessrestieteeneees 30
7.4 The Committee — Plan AdminiStrator ......ooovirerieeerimiiiieeeeeeiiirerrieeeeeseissssssiareessens 30
7.5 Committee 10 CONSIUE PlaN coivviiiiiiiriiiie e eeeeeeetetreeeeerersereeeesresersreseress 31
7.6  Organization Of COMMITIEE......ccueiuiririirircrerienitenene st e et nresresse e esreessessreeneeeens 31
T T AZENE FOT PTOCESS. toviiieiirieiiiiiiiesie ettt creetsir et ee e sesese et seessie s e esseesseesbessessbens 31
7.8 Indemnification of Committee MEMDETS. ..cccuiveieeiiiiiieiieeeeieseereievereevsseasrensnnsersnnes 31
7.9 CONCIUSIVENESS OF ACTION vttt ieieeereettee e eesiertet e s s sesbeeesesssiirestseeseessrssssssrasesesens 32
7.10  Payment Of EXPENSES. uiiviiiiierieirriiireneeiirienerersessessieesseessesssssssessssesssesssessessneens 32
ARTICLE VIII TRUST AGREEMENT — INVESTMENTS ...ccocittcrrnrerescsssnsasaseseersasssssanne 33
8.1 TTUSt AQIEEMENL. ...evviiiiiiiiiiiiieeerrreeieeeerr et eree s sensrbessenbessbeeessmeaessseessssneennrens 33
8.2  Plan EXPENSES. iiiviiiirieiiieiieiierrieesiniiireesreessesseesassssseseesresseseenssessssssssesssessssessaens 33
8.3 IV ESTITIEIIES. teiviriiiiiieiiieeeeiietiite e eieeeettrerestesseeresseseeseeearenrensrssssnssessesrenstasnnssneessrnnes 33
ARTICLE IX TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT .....cccteeireessseteressessasceerssssesassossonsessasssssen 34
9.1 Termination of Plan or Discontinuance of Contributions......cecccceveveeeirecvisinvneenenns 34
9.2 Allocations upon TermMiNation. ..........ccieeiieiierieiiiiesreeeereeseesiresaeesreesreesssesssaens 34
9.3 Procedure Upon Termination of Plan. .........ccccecvvveviienenienicineninnennecninnecseninene 34
9.4  Amendment by the TOWNSHID. c.eccviiiriiiieiiriiriiriieieeiiereecrreeeesiresanaesiessiesssesnsens 35
ARTICLE X PLAN ADOPTION BY AFFILIATED ENTITIES.....cccccovcctereecessessorsonsassasesssen 36
10.1  Adoption Of PIan. ...c.cicveiciiiiiiieiiis et senesee s e ssesessaeesaenasneenanes 36
10.2  Agent of Affiliated ENitY. ...cooveevvirviiiinienintirenresr e esee s seeereesieeneenees 36
ii

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



10.3 Disaffiliation and Withdrawal from Plan..........ccocceevvvieveeciininnnnninneeenincnnens 36
10.4  Effect of Disaffiliation or Withdrawal..........ccccoevirrerieeniniieneneiirininene e 36
10.5  Actions Upon Disaffiliation or Withdrawal............ccccevrcninenrenineniineniccnennnn. 36
ARTICLE XI TOP-HEAVY PROVISIONS ...cccieinintinnssnsnisrssissmsssensesesssssnssessssassssssesssssssssas 38
11.1  Application of Top-Heavy ProviSions. ......cc.ceerverrererierieniereerenmnenenesennesensnens 38
11.2  Determination of Top-Heavy Status. ....c.cccecrienveeniieneenenineneeenenecneneenee e 38
11.3  Special Vesting RUle. ....ccccoiiiirininiiiciiinineeneennet et s 39
11.4  Special Minimum Contribution. .........cccvvererreriiereereerenimnieeerecineneereresne e 39
11.5 Change in Top-Heavy Status. ....coceeerriireninienienineeereenicenee st cnesneesee e e 39
ARTICLE XII MISCELLANEOUS ....coocconennninminsnionniiniesmsssisisessisisssaisssssssasssissssssssesas 40
12.1 Right to Dismiss Employees — No Employment Contract..........ccecceceervneeneenne. 40
12.2  Claims PrOCEAUIE. .....oviiieriireieriirientietieienieeeete st st es s e snesrnssaasreeenee 40
12,3 Source of BeNefits. . ..cocveviririinineniiciceceiee et 42
12.4  Exclusive Benefit of EMPIOYEES. ..vovevvirrircririenieeireenieenieneneesrtesreseeecseseennessesnsenes 42
12.5  FOrmS Of NOTICES. cuveuvireierieniirteriinieniietieie st siere e srt et e b sbes b esnnaee e esbesanesaesbneenes 42
12.6  Failure of Any Other Entity to Qualify......cccccoviivirrniircnnenienieniccieciene e 42
12.7 Notice of Adoption of the Plan. ........cccceieciiiiniiieniinicinieeeeseneeneee s 42
12,8 Plan MEIZET. uuicviiiiiiiiiiiiiieniisieeee e eteettesneeneebaesbe e s ssaesbaeneasaeesaseesseessnesstesneessnes 42
12.9 Inalienability of Benefits — Domestic Relations Orders. .........ccocvevercvinriirennnenn 43
12.10 Payments Due Minors or Incapacitated Individuals. ........c.ccovreniieiiiiinninnenn. 47
12.11 Uniformity of APpliCAtION. ...c..ccvverrireeieiiiiireiietcresre e 47
12.12 Disposition of Unclaimed Payments.......c.cccovevveeereeniiiiniienrenicninininiiinnnon. 47
12,13 APPLCADIE LaAW. .coviiiierieiiiiiriiercteeeret e sre bbb e n s erssaia 48
ARTICLE XIII UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT AND REEMPLOYMENT
RIGHTS ACT OF 1994 .....uiiiiviniciricenisisensnssssssssssssssssissssssstssssssssassssssesassssenssassssssssasssssassasssasns 49
1301 GENEIAL .ottt s 49
132 WHhile @ SEIVICEMAN. ..ouviiveriiririrereeieeiesiesiesreenseenteebesieestesneessesstsressaessessesssessaeane 49
13.3  Expiration of USERRA Reemployment Rights.........ccocvereervvenveninnniierenenecns 50
13.4  Return From Uniformed SErVICE. .covvciivieiririniiieierniiiieniineenieeseeerennessesessvessenne 50
iii

EX1955129v2 10/27/10



EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
MONEY PURCHASE PENSION PLAN
PREAMBLE

East Goshen Township, a township of the class within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
(the “Township”), hereby establishes and maintains this money purchase pension plan (the
“Plan”) for its non-uniformed employees, which is intended to be qualified under Code §401(a).

The Plan is hereby established effective January 1,

ARTICLE1
DEFINITIONS

The following words and phrases shall have the meaning set forth below:
1.1 Account
“Account” means the account established pursuant to section 4.1.

1.2 Account Owner

“Account Owner” means a Participant who has an Account balance, an Alternate Payee
who has an Account balance, or a beneficiary who has obtained an interest in the Account
of the previous Account Owner because of the previous Account Owner’s death.

1.3 Alternate Pavee

“Alternate Payee” means a Participant’s Spouse, former spouse, child, or other dependent
who is recognized by a QDRO as having a right to receive all, or a portion of, the benefits
payable under this Plan with respect to such Participant.

1.4 Annual Addition

“Annual Addition” means the allocations to a Participant’s Account for any Limitation
Year, as described in detail below.

(a) Annual Additions shall include: (i) Township Contributions (except as provided
in paragraphs (b)(iii) and (b)(v)) to this Plan and Township contributions to any
other defined contribution plan maintained by the Township , (ii) after-tax
contributions to any other defined contribution plan maintained by the Township;
(iii) elective deferrals by the Participant, to any other defined contribution plan
maintained by the Township; (iv) forfeitures allocated to a Participant’s Account
in this Plan and any other defined contribution plan maintained by the Township
(except as provided in paragraphs (b)(iii) and (b)(v) below); (v) all amounts paid
or accrued to a welfare benefit fund as defined in Code §419(e) and allocated to
the separate account (under the welfare benefit fund) of a Key Employee to
provide post-retirement medical benefits; and (vi) contributions allocated on the

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Participant’s behalf to any individual medical account as defined in Code

§415(D)(2).

(b)  Annual Additions shall not include: (i) rollovers to any defined contribution plan
maintained by the Township; (ii) repayments of loans made to a Participant from
a qualified plan maintained by the Township; (iii) repayments of forfeitures for
rehired Participants, as described in Code §411(a)(7)(B) and §411(a)(3)(D); (iv)
direct transfers of funds from one qualified plan to any qualified plan maintained
by the Township; (v) repayments of forfeitures of missing individuals pursuant to
section 12.12; or (vi) salary deferrals within the meaning of Code §414(u)(2)(C)
or §414(v)(6)(B).

Code

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and the
regulations and rulings in effect thereunder from time to time.

Committee
“Committee” means the administrative committee provided for in section 7.4.

Township

“Township” means East Goshen Township, any successor thereto, that adopts the Plan
pursuant to Article X.

Township Contributions

“Township Contributions” means all contributions to the Plan made by the Township
pursuant to section 3.1 for the Plan Year.

Compensation
“Compensation” means:

(a) Compensation for Annual Additions.

@) Items Included. For purposes of determining the limitation on Annual
Additions under section 3.4, Compensation means those amounts reported
as “wages, tips, other compensation” on Form W-2 by the Township
elective contributions that would have been reported as “wages, tips, other
compensation” on Form W-2 by the Township but for an election under
Code §125(a), §132(H)(4), §402(e)(3), §402(h)(1)(B), §402(k), or §457(b).
The Plan shall ignore any rules that limit the remuneration included in
“wages, tips, other compensation” based on the nature or location of the
employment or the services performed.

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



(iD)

Timing Restrictions. Compensation includes amounts that are paid or
made available to the Participant during the Limitation Year.
Compensation does not include amounts paid after a Participant’s
termination of employment except that Compensation does include (A)
amounts included in the final payment of his regular compensation for
services provided before his termination (including regular pay, overtime,
shift differential, commissions, bonuses, and similar payments), but only if
the amounts are paid during the Limitation Year in which the termination
occurred or, if later, within 2% months of his termination, (B) the cash-out
of any paid time off that the former employee would have been able to use
had his employment continued, but only if such amount is paid during the
Limitation Year in which the termination occurs or, if later, within 2%,
months of his termination, and (C) payments from an unfunded
nonqualified deferred compensation plan (1) that are includible in the
Participant’s gross income that are paid during the Limitation Year in
which the termination occurred or, if later, within 22 months of the
termination, and (3) that would have been paid on such date(s) if the
Participant had continued in employment.

(b) Compensation for Top-Heavy Minimum Contributions and Identifying Highly

Compensated Employees and Key Employees. For purposes of determining the

minimum contribution under section 11.4 when the Plan is top-heavy, and for
identifying Highly Compensated Employees and Key Employees, Compensation
means the amounts that would included as Compensation under subsection (a) if
every occurrence of the phrase “Limitation Year” were replaced by the phrase
“Plan Year.”

(c) Benefit Compensation. For purposes of determining and allocating Township

Contributions under paragraphs 3.1(a)(i) and 3.1(a)(ii), Compensation generally
means regular compensation paid by the Township.

@

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

Inclusions. Specifically, Compensation includes:
(A)  Regular salary or wages,
(B)  Overtime pay,

(C)  The regular annual bonus (unless all or a portion is excluded by the
Committee before the regular annual bonus is paid) and any other
bonus designated by the Committee,

(D)  Salary reductions pursuant to any defined contribution plan
maintained by the Township, and

(E)  Salary reductions that are excludable from an Employee’s gross
income pursuant to Code §125 or §132(f)(4).



©s

(i)  Exclusions. Compensation excludes:
(A)  Commissions,
(B)  Severance pay,
(C)  Moving expenses,

(D)  Any gross-up of moving expenses to account for increased income
or employment taxes,

(E)  Foreign service premiums paid as an inducement to work outside
of the United States,

¥ Credits or benefits under this Plan and credits or benefits under any
defined contribution plan maintained by the Township(except as
provided in subparagraph (i)(D)),

(G)  Other contingent compensation,

(H)  Contributions to any other fringe benefit plan (including, but not
limited to, overriding royalty payments or any other exploration-
related payments),

) Any bonus other than a bonus described in subparagraph
1.11(c)(i)(C), and

Q) Except as provided under subparagraph (i)(F), any benefit accrued
under, or any payment from, any nonqualified plan of deferred
compensation.

(iii)  Timing Issues. Compensation includes amounts that are paid to the
Employee during that portion of a Plan Year while the Employee is a
Covered Employee. Compensation does not include amounts paid after an
Employee’s termination of employment, except that Compensation does
include (A) amounts included in the final payment of his regular
compensation for services provided before his termination (including
regular pay, overtime, shift differential, commissions, bonuses, and similar
payments), but only if the amounts are paid during the Plan Year in which
the termination occurred or, if later, within 2% months of his termination
and (B) any cash-out of accrued vacation time that the former employee
would have been able to use had he continued in employment that is paid
to him during the Plan Year in which the termination occurred or, if later,
within 2% months of his termination.

(d)  Limit on Compensation. For all purposes of subsection (a), for purposes of
calculating the minimum contribution required in top-heavy years under
subsection (b), and for all purposes of subsection (c), the Compensation taken into

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



§ Bt
g
%

account for the Plan Year shall not exceed the dollar limit specified in Code
§401(2)(17) in effect for the Plan Year or Limitation Year.

1.10 Covered Employee

“Covered Employee” means any non-uniformed Employee of the Township, with the
following exceptions.

(2)  Any individual directly employed by an entity other than the Township shall not
be a Covered Employee, even if such individual is considered a common-law
employee of the Township or is treated as an employee of the Township pursuant
to Code §414(n).

(b) An Employee shall not be a Covered Employee unless he is based in the United
States.

() An Employee included in a unit of Employees covered by a collective bargaining
agreement shall not be a Covered Employee unless the collective bargaining
agreement specifically provides for such Employee’s participation in the Plan.

(d) An Employee whose job is classified as “temporary” shall not be a Covered
Employee.

(e) An Employee shall not be a Covered Employee while he is classified as an
“intern,” a “consultant,” or an “independent contractor.” An Employee may be
classified as an “intern” only if he is currently enrolled (or the Township expects
him to be enrolled within the next 12 months) in a high school, college, or
university. An Employee may be classified as an intern even if he does not
receive academic course credit from his school for this employment with the
Township.

® An individual who is employed pursuant to a written agreement with an agency or
other third party for a specific job assignment or project shall not be a Covered
Employee.

1.11  Disability

“Disability” means a physical or mental condition that qualifies the Employee for long-
term disability payments under the Township’s Long-Term Disability Plan, if any.

1.12  Domestic Relations Order

“Domestic Relations Order” means any judgment, decree, or order (including approval of
a property settlement agreement) issued by a court of competent jurisdiction that relates
to the provisions of child support, alimony, or maintenance payments, or marital property
rights to a Participant’s Spouse, former spouse, child, or other dependent and is made
pursuant to a state domestic relations law (including a community property law).

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



1.13  Early Retirement Age

“Early Retirement Age” means the date upon which a Participant attains age 55.

1.14 Employee

“Employee” means each individual who performs services for the Township and whose
wages are subject to withholding by the Township. The term “Employee” includes only
individuals currently performing services for the Township, and excludes former
Employees who are still being paid by the Township (whether through the payroll
system, severance, or otherwise). The term “Employee” also includes any individual
who provides services to the Township pursuant to an agreement between the Township
and a third party that employs the individual, but only if the individual has performed
such services for the Township on a substantially full-time basis for at least one year and
only if the services are performed under the primary direction or control by the
Township; provided, however, that if the individuals included as Employees pursuant to
the first part of this sentence constitute 20% or less of the Non-Highly Compensated
Employees of the Township, then any such individuals who are covered by a qualified
plan that is a money purchase pension plan that provides a nonintegrated employer
contribution rate for each participant of at least 10% of compensation, that provides for
full and immediate vesting, and that provides immediate participation for each employee
of the third party (other than those who perform substantially all of their services for the
third party and other than those whose compensation from the third party during each of
the four preceding plan years was less than $1000) shall not be considered an Employee.

1.15 ERISA

“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended,
and the regulations and rulings in effect thereunder from time to time.

1.16  Entry Date

“Entry Date” means each [January 1][April 1][July 1] and [October 1] of each Plan Year.

1.17 Highly Compensated Emplovee

“Highly Compensation Employee” means, for each Plan Year, an Employee who (a) was
in the “top-paid group” during the immediately preceding Plan Year and had
Compensation of $80,000 (as adjusted by the Secretary of the Treasury) or more during
the immediately preceding Plan Year. The term “top-paid group” means the top 20% of
Employees when ranked on the basis of Compensation paid during the year. In
determining the number of Employees in the top-paid group, the Committee may elect to
exclude Employees with less than six (or some smaller number of) months of service at
the end of the year, Employees who normally work less than 17% (or some fewer number
of) hours per week, Employees who normally work less than six (or some fewer number
of) months during any year, Employees younger than 21 (or some younger age) on the
last day of the year, and Employees who are nonresident aliens who receive no earned
income (within the meaning of Code §911(d)(2)) from the Township that constitutes

6
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



income from sources within the United States, within the meaning of Code §861(a)(3).
Furthermore, an Employee who is a nonresident alien who receives no earned income
(within the meaning of Code §911(d)(2)) from the Township that constitutes income
from sources within the United States (within the meaning of Code §861(a)(3)) during
the year shall not be in the top-paid group for that year.

1.18 Hour of Service

“Hour of Service” means

(a) each hour for which an employee is directly or indirectly paid, or entitled to
payment, by the Employer for the performance of duties during the applicable
computation period; such hours shall be credited to the employee for the
computation period or periods in which the duties were performed.

(b) each hour for which back pay, irrespective of mitigation of damages, has been
either awarded or agreed to by the Employer; such hours shall be credited to the
employee for the computation period or periods to which the award or agreement
pertains rather than the computation period in which the award, agreement or
payment is made.

In addition, solely for determining whether an employee has incurred a Lapse in
Township Employment, an Hour of Service shall mean each hour for which an employee
is directly or indirectly paid, or entitled to such payment, by the Employer for reasons
(such as education, sickness or disability) other than for the performance of duties during
the applicable computation period. These hours shall be counted in the computation
period in which payment is actually made or amounts payable to the employee become
due.

In lieu of the foregoing, an employee who is not compensated on an hourly basis (such as
salaried, commissioned or piece-work employees) shall be credited with 40 Hours of
Service for each week (or 8 Hours of Service for each day) in which such employee
would be credited with Hours of Service if hourly paid. However, this method of
computing Hours of Service may not be used for any employee whose Hours of Service
is required to be counted and recorded by any Federal Law, such as the Fair Labor
Standards Act. Any such method must yield an equivalency of at least 1,000 Hours of
Service per computation period.

Where the Employer maintains a plan of a predecessor employer, service for such
predecessor employer shall be treated as service for the Employer.

The above provisions shall be construed so as to resolve any ambiguities in favor of
crediting employees with Hours of Service.

1.19 Key Employee

“Key Employee” means an individual described in Code §416(i)(1) and the regulations
promulgated thereunder.

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

1.28

1.29

Lapse in the Township Employment

“Lapse in the Township Employment™ has the meaning described in subsection 5.3(c).

Limitation Year

“Limitation Year” means the Plan Year, which is a calendar year.

Non-Highly Compensated Emplovyee

“Non-Highly Compensated Employee” means an Employee who is not a Highly
Compensated Employee.

Non-Key Employee

“Non-Key Employee” means an Employee who is not a Key Employee.

Normal Retirement Age

“Normal Retirement Age” means age 65.

Participant

“Participant” means any individual with an account balance under the Plan except
beneficiaries and Alternate Payees. The term “Participant™ shall also include any
individual who has accrued a benefit pursuant to subsection 3.1(a), but who does not yet
have an Account balance.

Period of Service

“Period of Service” means a Plan Year during which the Employee worked at least
1,000 Hours of Service.

Plan Year

“Plan Year” means the 12-month period on which the records of the Plan are kept, which
shall be the calendar year.

QDRO

“QDRO,” which is an acronym for qualified domestic relations order, means a Domestic
Relations Order that creates or recognizes the existence of an Alternate Payee’s right to,
or assigns to an Alternate Payee the right to, receive all or a portion of the benefits
payable with respect to a Participant under the Plan and with respect to which the
requirements of Code §414(p) and ERISA §206(d)(3) are met.

QISA

“QJSA,” which is an acronym for qualified joint and survivor annuity, means:

EX1955129v2 10/27/10



K
PN

(a) For a married Participant, a QJSA is an annuity that will provide equal monthly
payments to the Participant for life, and if the Participant dies before his Spouse,
the surviving Spouse shall receive monthly payments for her life, with each
monthly payment equal to 50% of the monthly payment that the Participant
received before his death.

(b)  For an unmarried Participant, a QJSA is an annuity that will provide equal
monthly payments to the Participant for life.

1.30 OSA

“QOSA,” which is an acronym for qualified optional survivor annuity, means an annuity
that will provide equal monthly payments to the Participant for life, and if the Participant
dies before his Spouse, the surviving Spouse receives monthly payments for the rest of
her life, with each monthly payment equal to 75% of the monthly payment that the
Participant received before his death.

1.31 QPSA

“QPSA,” which is an acronym for qualified pre-retirement survivor annuity, means an
annuity that will provide equal monthly payments to the surviving Spouse of a
Participant, for the life of the surviving Spouse.

1.32  Required Beginning Date
“Required Beginning Date” means:

(a) Excepted as provided in subsections (b) and (c¢), Required Beginning Date means
April 1 of the calendar year following the later of (i) the calendar year in which
the Participant attains age 70%, or (ii) the calendar year in which the Participant
terminates employment with the Township.

(b) If a Participant is rehired after his Required Beginning Date, he shall be treated
upon rehire as if he has not yet had a Required Beginning Date, with the result
that his minimum required distributions under subsection 6.4(c) will be zero until
his new Required Beginning Date. His new Required Beginning Date shall be
determined pursuant to subsection (a).

1.33  Spouse

“Spouse” means the individual of the opposite sex to whom a Participant is lawfully
married according to the laws of the state of the Participant’s domicile.

1.34  Termination from Service Date

“Termination from Service Date” has the meaning described in subsection 5.3(b).

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



1.35  Valuation Date

“Valuation Date” means the last day of each Plan Year and any other dates as specified in
section 4.2 as of which the assets of the Trust Fund are valued at fair market value and as
of which the increase or decrease in the net worth of the Trust Fund is allocated among
the Participants’ Accounts.

10
EX1955129v2 10/27/10




2.1

2.2

ARTICLE II
PARTICIPATION

Participation

Each Covered Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan on the day he becomes
a Covered Employee. A Covered Employee shall cease to accrue benefits in the Plan on
the day he ceases to be a Covered Employee. An Employee shall become a Covered
Employee on the Entry Date next following the Employee’s completion of 1,000 Hours
of Service. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any non-uniformed employee participating in
the Pension Plan of East Goshen Township as of , shall immediately be a
Covered Employee as of the Effective Date of this Plan.

Enrollment Procedure

Notwithstanding section 2.1, a Covered Employee shall not be eligible to participate in
the Plan until after completing the enrollment procedures specified by the Committee.
Such enrollment procedures may, for example, require the Covered Employee to
complete and sign an enrollment form or to complete an on-line enrollment. The
Covered Employee shall provide all information requested by the Committee, such as the
initial investment direction, the address and date of birth of the Employee, and the name,
address, and date of birth of each beneficiary of the Employee. The Committee may
require that the enrollment procedure be completed a certain number of days prior to the
date any Township Contribution is allocated to the Covered Employee’s Account.

11

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



%

ARTICLE III
CONTRIBUTIONS

3.1 Township Contributions

(2)

(b)

(©)

Township Contributions. For each Plan Year, the Township shall contribute to
the Trust Fund on behalf of each “eligible Participant” an allocation equal to 5%
of the eligible Participant’s Compensation. For purposes of this subsection, an
“eligible Participant” is a Participant who received credit for 1,000 Hour of
Service as a Covered Employee during the Plan Year and who is employed by the
Township on the last day of the Plan Year.

Miscellaneous Contributions.

@A) Forfeiture Restoration. The Township may make additional contributions
to the Plan to restore amounts forfeited from the Accounts of certain
rehired Participants, pursuant to section 5.4. This additional contribution
shall be required only when the available forfeitures are insufficient to
restore such forfeited amounts, as described in subsection 5.4(d).

(ii))  Top-Heavy Contribution. The Township may make additional
contributions to the Plan to satisfy the minimum contribution required by
section 11.4. The Township may elect to use any available forfeitures for
this purpose, pursuant to subsection 5.4(d).

(iii)  Missing Individuals. The Township may make additional contributions to
the Plan to restore the forfeited benefit of any missing individual, pursuant
to section 12.12. This additional contribution shall be required only when
the available forfeitures are insufficient to restore such forfeited amounts,
as described in subsection 5.4(d).

(iv)  Returning Servicemen. The Township may make additional contributions
to the Plan to provide make-up contributions for returning servicemen,
pursuant to section 13.4. The Township may elect to use any available
forfeitures for this purpose, pursuant to subsection 5.4(d).

Contributions Contingent on Deductibility. The Township Contributions for a
Plan Year (excluding forfeitures and contributions pursuant to paragraph
3.1(b)(iv)) shall not exceed the amount allowable as a deduction for the
Township’s taxable year ending with or within the Plan Year pursuant to Code
§404. Township Contributions (excluding contributions pursuant to paragraph
3.1(b)(iv) and any special contributions described in any paragraph of subsection
3.1(a) after paragraph (ii)) shall be paid to the Trustee no later than the due date
(including any extensions) for filing the Township’s federal income tax return for
such year. Township Contributions shall be made without regard to current or

12

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



3.2

3.3

3.4

accumulated earnings and profits. The Township shall pay Township
Contributions to the Trust Fund in the form of cash.

Participant Contributions

Participants may not contribute to this Plan. The Plan does not accept rollovers or direct
transfers. "

Return of Contributions

(a)

(b)

Mistake of Fact. Upon the request of the Township, the Trustee shall return to the
Township any Township Contribution made under a mistake of fact. The Trustee
may not return any such contribution later than one year after the Trustee received
the contribution. The amount returned shall not exceed the excess of the amount
contributed (reduced to reflect any decrease in the net worth of the appropriate
Accounts attributable thereto) over the amount that would have been contributed
without the mistake of fact. Appropriate reductions shall be made in the Accounts
of Participants to reflect the return of any contributions previously credited to
such Accounts.

Effect of Correction. A contribution shall be returned under subsection (a) only to
the extent that its return will not reduce the Account of a Participant to an amount
less than the balance that would have been credited to the Participant’s Account
had the contribution not been made.

Limitation on Annual Additions

(2)

(b)

Limit. The Annual Additions to a Participant’s Account(s) in this Plan and to his
accounts in any other defined contribution plans maintained by the Township for
any Limitation Year shall not exceed in the aggregate the lesser of (i) $40,000 (as
adjusted by the Secretary of the Treasury), or (ii) 100% of the Participant’s
Compensation. The limit in clause (ii) shall not apply to any contribution for
medical benefits (within the meaning of Code §419A(f)(2)) after separation from
service that is treated as an Annual Addition.

Corrective Mechanism

1) Reduction in Annual Additions. A Participant’s Annual Additions shall
be reduced, to the extent necessary to satisfy the foregoing limits, if the
Annual Additions arose as a result of a reasonable error in estimating
Compensation, as a result of the allocation of forfeitures, or as a result of
other facts and circumstances as provided in the regulations under Code
§415.

(i)  Order of Reduction, Multiple Plans. The Township also maintains the
Township Plan, a defined contribution plan containing a
cash or deferred arrangement. The Participant’s Annual Additions shall
be reduced, to the extent necessary, in the following order. First, to the

13

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



(iif)

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

extent that the Annual Additions in a single plan exceed the limits of
subsection (a), the Annual Additions in that plan shall be reduced, in the
order specified in that plan, to the extent necessary to satisfy the limits of
subsection (2).

Disposition of Excess Annual Additions. Any reduction of Township
Contributions shall be placed in a suspense account in the Trust Fund and
used to reduce future Township Contributions to the Plan. The following
rules shall apply to such suspense account: (A) no further Township
Contributions may be made if the allocation thereof would be precluded
by Code §415; (B) any increase or decrease in the net value of the Trust
Fund attributable to the suspense account shall not be allocated to the
suspense account, but shall be allocated to the Accounts; and (C) all
amounts held in the suspense account shall be allocated as of each
succeeding allocation date on which forfeitures may be allocated pursuant
to subsection 5.4(d) (and may be allocated more frequently if the
Committee so directs), until the suspense account is exhausted.

14



4.1

4.2

ARTICLE 1V
INTERESTS IN THE TRUST FUND

Participants’ Accounts

The Committee shall establish and maintain a separate Account in the name of each
Participant, but the maintenance of such Accounts shall not require any segregation of
assets of the Trust Fund. Each Account shall contain the Township Contributions
allocated to the Participant and the increase or decrease in the net worth of the Trust Fund
attributable to such contributions.

Valuation of Trust Fund

(a)

(b)

©

General. The Trustee shall value the assets of the Trust Fund at least annually as
of the last day of the Plan Year, and as of any other dates determined by the
Commiittee, at their current fair market value and determine the net worth of the
Trust Fund. In addition, the Committee may direct the Trustee to have a special
valuation of the assets of the Trust Fund when the Committee determines, in its
sole discretion, that such valuation is necessary or appropriate or in the event of
unusual market fluctuations of such assets. Such special valuation shall not
include any contributions made by Participants since the preceding Valuation
Date, any Township Contributions for the current Plan Year, or any unallocated
forfeitures. The Trustee shall allocate the expenses of the Trust Fund occurring
since the preceding Valuation Date, pursuant to section 8.2, and then determine
the increase or decrease in the net worth of the Trust Fund that has occurred since
the preceding Valuation Date. The Trustee shall determine the share of the
increase of decrease that is attributable to the non-separately accounted for
portion of the Trust Fund and to any amount separately accounted for, as
described in subsections (b) and (c).

Mandatory Separate Accounting. The Trustee shall separately account for (i) any
individually directed investments permitted under section 8.3, and (ii) amounts
subject to a Domestic Relations Order.

Permissible Separate Accounting. The Trustee may separately account for the
following amounts to provide a more equitable allocation of any increase or
decrease in the net worth of the Trust Fund:

@) The distributable amount of a Participant, including any amount
distributable to an Alternate Payee or to a beneficiary of a deceased
Participant; and

(i)  Township Contributions made since the preceding Valuation Date;

15

EX1955129v2 10/27/10



4.3

(iii)  Any other amounts for which separate accounting will provide a more
equitable allocation of the increase or decrease in the net worth of the
Trust Fund.

Allocation of Increase or Decrease in Net Worth.

The Committee shall, as of each Valuation Date, allocate the increase or decrease in the
net worth of the Trust Fund that has occurred since the preceding Valuation Date between
the non-separately accounted for portion of the Trust Fund and the amounts separately
accounted for that are identified in subsections 4.2(b) and 4.2(c). The increase or
decrease attributable to the non-separately accounted for portion of the Trust Fund shall
be allocated among the appropriate Accounts in the ratio that the dollar value of each
such Account bore to the aggregate dollar value of all such Accounts on the preceding
Valuation Date after all allocations and credits made as of such date had been completed.
The Committee shall then allocate any amounts separately accounted for (including the
increase or decrease in the net worth of the Trust Fund attributable to such amounts) to
the appropriate Account.

16

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



ARTICLE V
AMOUNT OF BENEFITS

5.1 Vesting Schedule

(a) General Rule. Unless subsection (b), (¢), or (d) provide for faster vesting, a
Participant’s interest in his Account shall become vested in accordance with the
following schedule:

Period of Service Vesting
Percentage

Less than 3 years 0%
3 or more years 100%

(b)  Full Vesting in Certain Circumstances. A Participant shall have a fully vested and
nonforfeitable interest in his Account (i) upon his Normal Retirement Age if he is
an Employee on such date, (ii) upon his death while an Employee or while on an
approved leave of absence from the Township , or (iii) upon his termination of
employment with the Township because of a Disability.

(©) Plan Termination. A Township Contributions Account shall be fully vested as
described in section 9.1, which addresses the full or partial termination of the
Plan.

5.2 Vesting After a Lapse in the Township Employment

(a) Separate Accounts. If a Participant is rehired before incurring a one-year Lapse in
the Township Employment, he shall have only one Account, and its vested
percentage shall be determined under section 5.1. If a Participant is rehired after
incurring a one-year Lapse in the Township Employment, he shall have two
Accounts, an “old” Account for the contributions from his earlier episode of
employment, and a “new” Account for his later episode of employment. If both
the old and new Accounts are fully vested, they shall be combined into a single
Account.

(b) Vesting of New Account. The vested percentage of the new Account shall be
determined based on all the Participant’s Periods of Service.

(c) Vesting of Old Account. If the Participant’s Lapse in the Township Employment
was for five years or longer, the vested percentage of the old Account shall be
based solely on the Participant’s Period of Service from his first episode of
employment. If the Participant’s Lapse in the Township Employment was for less
than five years, the vested percentage of the old Account shall be determined by
aggregating his Periods of Service from both episodes of employment.

17
EXI1 955129v2 10/27/10



5.3 Calculating Service

(a) Period of Service.

(1) General. A Participant’s Period of Service begins on the date he first
begins to perform duties as an Employee for which he is entitled to
payment, and ends on his Termination From Service Date. In addition, a
Participant’s Period of Service also includes the period between his
Termination From Service Date and the day he again begins to perform
duties for the Township for which he is entitled to payment, but only if
such period is less than one year in duration.

(i)  Additional Rules. The service-crediting provisions in this paragraph are
more generous than required by the Code.

(A)  Leased Employees. For vesting purposes only, the Plan shall treat
an individual as an Employee if he satisfies all the requirements
specified in Code §414(n)(2) for being a leased employee of the
Township’s, except for the requirement of having performed such
services for at least one year.

(B)  Approved Leave. If the Employee is absent from the Township or
Affiliated Entity for more than one year because of an approved
leave of absence (either with or without pay) for any reason
(including, but not limited to, jury duty) and the Employee returns
to work at or prior to the expiration of his leave of absence, no
Termination From Service Date will occur during the leave of
absence.

(C)  Servicemen. See Article XIII for special provisions that apply to
Servicemen.

(D)  Contractors. If an “eligible contractor” becomes an Employee, his
Period of Service shall include his previous continuous service as
an eligible contractor, excluding any service provided before 2003.
An “eligible contractor” is an individual who (A) performed
services for the Township on a substantially full-time basis in the
capacity of an independent contractor (for federal income tax
purposes); (B) became an Employee within a month of ceasing to
be an independent contractor working full-time for the Township ;
and (C) notified the Plan of his prior service as an independent
contractor within two months of becoming an Employee or such
other deadline established by the Committee).

18
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



(b)  Termination From Service Date.

(i) Usual Rule. If the Employee quits, is discharged, retires, or dies, his
Termination From Service Date occurs on the last day the Employee
performs services for the Township , except for an Employee who incurs a
Disability, in which case his Termination From Service Date does not
occur, even if he quits, until the earlier of the one-year anniversary of the
date his Disability or the date he recovers from his Disability.

(ii) Other Absences. If an Employee is absent from the Township for any
reason other than a quit, discharge, or retirement, his “Termination From
Service Date” is the earlier of (A) the date he quits, is discharged, retires,
or dies, or (B) one year from the date the Employee is absent from the
Township for any other reason (such as vacation, holiday, sickness,
disability, leave of absence, or temporary lay-off), with the following
exception. If the Employee is absent from the Township because of
parental leave (which includes only the pregnancy of the Employee, the
birth of the Employee’s child, the placement of a child with the Employee
in connection with adoption of such child by the Employee, or the caring
for such child immediately following birth or placement) on the first
anniversary of the day the Employee was first absent, his Termination
From Service Date does not occur until the second anniversary of the day
he was first absent (and the period between the first and second
anniversaries of the day he was first absent shall not be counted in his
Period of Service).

(©) Lapse in the Township Employment. A Lapse in the Township Employment
means the period commencing on an individual’s Termination from Service Date
and ending on the date he again begins to perform services as an Employee.

5.4 Forfeitures

(a) Exceptions to the Vesting Rules. The following rules supersede the vesting rules
of section 5.1.

(i) Excess Annual Additions. Annual Additions to a Participant’s Accounts
and any increase or decrease in the net worth of the Participant’s Accounts
attributable to such Annual Additions may be reduced to satisfy the limits
described in section 3.4. Any reduction shall be used as specified in
section 3.4.

(i)  Missing Individuals. A missing individual’s vested Accounts may be
forfeited as of the last day of any Plan Year, as provided in section 13.12.
Any such forfeiture shall be used as specified in subsection (d).

(b)  Regular Forfeitures. A Participant’s non-vested interest in his Account shall be
forfeited at the end of the Plan Year in which the Participant terminates
employment. Any such forfeiture shall be used as specified in subsection (d).

19
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

Hl-



(©) Restoration of Forfeitures.

(1) Missing Individuals. The forfeiture of a missing individual’s Account(s),
as described in section 13.12, shall be restored to such individual if the
individual makes a claim for such amount.

(i)  Regular Forfeitures.

(A)  Rehire Within 5 Years. If a Participant is rehired before incurring
a five-year Lapse in the Township Employment, and the
Participant has received a distribution of his entire vested interest
in his Account (with the result that he forfeited his non-vested
interest in such Account), then the exact amount of the forfeiture
shall be restored to his Account. All the rights, benefits, and
features available to the Participant when the forfeiture occurred
shall be available with respect to the restored forfeiture. If such a
Participant again terminates employment prior to becoming fully
vested in his Account, the vested portion of his Account shall be
determined by applying the vested percentage determined under
section 5.1 to the sum of (x) and (y), then subtracting (y) from such
sum, where: (x) is the value of his Account as of the Valuation
Date immediately following his most recent termination of
employment; and (y) is the amount previously distributed to the
Participant on account of the prior termination of employment.

(B)  Rehire After 5 Years. If a Participant is rehired after incurring a
five-year Lapse in the Township Employment, then no amount
forfeited from his Account shall be restored to his Account.

(iiiy  Method of Forfeiture Restoration. Forfeitures that are restored shall be
accomplished by an allocation of the forfeitures under subsection (d) or by
a special Township Contribution pursuant to paragraph 3.1(b)(i).

(d)  Use of Forfeitures. The Committee shall decide how forfeitures are used.
Forfeitures may be used (i) to restore Accounts as described in subsection (c), (ii)
to pay those expenses of the Plan that are properly payable from the Trust Fund
and that are not paid by the Township or Account Owners or charged to
Accounts, or (iii) as any Township Contribution.

5.5 Transfers — Portability

If any other employer adopts this or a similar money purchase pension plan and enters
into a reciprocal agreement with the Township that provides that (a) the transfer of a
Participant from such employer to the Township (or vice versa) shall not be deemed a
termination of employment for purposes of the plans, and (b) service with either or both
employers shall be credited for purposes of vesting under both plans, then the transferred
Participant’s Account shall be unaffected by the transfer, except, if deemed advisable by
the Committee, it may be transferred to the trustee of the other plan.

20
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



ARTICLE VI
DISTRIBUTION OF BENEFITS

6.1 Beneficiaries.

(a) Designating Beneficiaries. Each Account Owner shall file with the Committee a
designation of the beneficiaries and contingent beneficiaries to whom the
distributable amount (determined pursuant to section 6.2) shall be paid in the
event of the Account Owner’s death. In the absence of an effective beneficiary
designation as to any portion of the distributable amount after a Participant dies,
such amount shall be paid to the Participant’s surviving Spouse, or, if none, to his
estate. In the absence of an effective beneficiary designation as to any portion of
the distributable amount after any non-Participant Account Owner dies, such
amount shall be paid to the Account Owner’s estate. The Account Owner may
change a beneficiary designation at any time and without the consent of any
previously designated beneficiary.

(b) Special Rule for Married Participants. If the Account Owner is a married
Participant, his Spouse shall be the sole beneficiary unless the Spouse has
consented to the designation of a different beneficiary. To be effective, the
Spouse’s consent must be in writing, witnessed by a notary public, and filed with
the Committee. The Spouse must also consent to waive the QPSA with respect to
the benefits payable to another beneficiary, as described in subsection (c). The
Spouse cannot revoke her consent to waive the QPSA. Any spousal consent shall
be effective only as to the Spouse who signed the consent.

(c) Waiver of QPSA.

(1) General. In order for the QPSA to be waived, the Participant must be
provided with an explanation of the QPSA and then elect to waive the
QPSA (which the Participant may do by naming a beneficiary other than
his Spouse) and the Spouse must consent to the Participant’s election.

(i1) Spouse’s Consent. The Spouse’s consent must be in writing. The
Spouse’s signature must be witnessed by a Committee representative of by
a notary public. The Spouse must acknowledge the effect of the consent.
The Spouse may limit her consent to a specific beneficiary or may allow
the Participant to thereafter designate a different beneficiary. The Spouse
may limit her consent to a specific form of benefit. (The Spouse’s consent
is not needed if the Spouse cannot be located or in certain other special
circumstances identified in IRS guidance of general applicability.)

(iii)  Timing of Waiver. The Participant may waive the QPSA, or revoke the
QPSA waiver, at any time; however, if the Participant elects to waive the
QPSA, with the consent of his Spouse, before the first day of the Plan
Year in which the Participant attains age 35, the waiver shall become

21
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



6.2

©)

(©

invalid on the first day of the Plan Year in which the Participant attains
age 35.

(iv)  Explanation. The Committee shall provide the Participant with a written
explanation that describes the terms and conditions of the QPSA, the
Participant’s right to choose another beneficiary, the rights of the
Participant’s Spouse to insist upon a QPSA, the Participant’s right to
revoke his election, and such other information as may be required under
IRS guidance of general applicability. The written explanation must be
provided within the following time limits. If the Participant terminates
employment prior to age 35, the explanation must be provided within the
period beginning one year before and ending one year after the
termination of employment. If the Participant terminates employment on
or after age 35, the explanation must be provided within the one of the
following periods (whichever period ends last): (i) the period beginning on
the first day of the Plan Year in which the Participant attains age 32 and
ending on the last day of the Plan Year in which the Participant attains age
34; (ii) the period beginning one year before, and ending one year after,
the Participant first becomes eligible to participate in the Plan; and (iii) the
period beginning one year before, and ending one year after, a married
Participant is fully or partially vested in his Account (which will normally
occur either when the Participant gets married or when the Participant
completes a one-year Period of Service)

Special Rule for Divorces. If an Account Owner has designated his spouse as a
primary or contingent beneficiary, and the Account Owner and spouse later
divorce (or their marriage is annulled), then the former spouse will be treated as
having pre-deceased the Account Owner for purposes of interpreting a beneficiary
designation form completed prior to the divorce or annulment. This subsection
(d) will apply only if the Committee is informed of the divorce or annulment
before payment to the former spouse is authorized.

Disclaimers. Any individual or legal entity who is a beneficiary may disclaim all
or any portion of his interest in the Plan, provided that the disclaimer satisfies the
requirements of Code §2518(b) and applicable state law. The legal guardian of a
minor or legally incompetent person may disclaim for such person. The personal
representative (or the individual or legal entity acting in the capacity of the
personal representative according to applicable state law) may disclaim on behalf
of a beneficiary who has died. The amount disclaimed shall be distributed as if
the disclaimant had predeceased the individual whose death caused the
disclaimant to become a beneficiary.

Distributable Amount

The distributable amount of a Participant’s Account is the vested portion of the Account,
reduced by any amount that is payable to an Alternate Payee pursuant to section 12.9.
Furthermore, the Committee may temporarily suspend or limit distributions (by reducing

22

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10




the distributable amount), as explained in subsections 12.9(e), 12.9(g), or 12.9(h), (a)
when the Committee is informed that a QDRO affecting the Participant’s Accounts is in
process or may be in process, (b) while the Committee believes that the Plan may have a
cause of action against the Participant, or (¢) when the Plan has notice of a lien or other
claim against the Participant’s Accounts.

6.3 Manner of Distribution

(a) Participants. This subsection shall apply to distributions to Participants.

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

Form of Distribution. For an unmarried Participant, the distributable
amount shall be paid in the form of a QJSA unless the Participant elects a
single payment, except that a small account under subsection 6.4(d) shall
be paid in the form of a single payment. For a married Participant, the
distributable amount shall be paid in the form of a QJSA unless the
Participant, with the consent of his Spouse, chooses a QOSA or a single
payment, except that a distribution of a small account under subsection
6.4(d) shall be paid in the form of a single payment.

Consent of Participant and Spouse.

(A)  General. Except as provided in subparagraph (B), a distribution
shall not be made unless the Participant consents to the timing of
the distribution no more than 180 days before the distribution. If
the Participant is married and chooses a single payment or QOSA,
the Participant’s Spouse must consent to both the form of payment
and the time of the payment no more than 180 days before the
payment, except as provided in subparagraph (B).

(B)  Exceptions to General Rule. The consent of the Participant is not
required, nor is the consent of a married Participant’s Spouse
required, for distributions of small amounts pursuant to subsection
6.4(d) or for the distribution of an annuity upon the Participant’s
Required Beginning Date, as described in subsection 6.4(c).

Method of Spouse’s Consent. The consent of a Participant’s Spouse must
be in writing. The consent is not valid unless the Committee has provided
the written explanation described in paragraph (iv). The Spouse must
acknowledge the affect of his consent. The Spouse’s consent must be
witnessed by a Committee member or by a notary public. The Spouse
may limit his consent to a specific beneficiary or may allow the Participant
to thereafter designate a different beneficiary. The Spouse may limit his
consent to a specific form of benefit. (The Spouse’s consent is not needed
if the Spouse cannot be located or in certain other special circumstances
identified in IRS guidance.)

Distribution Procedure.

23

Ap



EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

(A)

(B)

(©

(D)

General. The Committee shall provide the Participant with a
written explanation that contains the information required by the
Code and Treasury Regulations, as explained in subparagraph (B).
The timing of the explanation, the consent, and the distribution are
discussed in subparagraph (C). The Participant may revoke his
election at any time before the distribution is processed.

Contents of Explanation. The information in the explanation for
an unmarried Participant shall include, at a minimum, the terms
and conditions of the QJSA, the Participant’s right to elect a single
payment in lieu of a QJSA, the effect of the Participant electing a
single payment in lieu of a QJSA, the Participant’s right to revoke
his distribution election, and such other information as may be
required under IRS guidance of general applicability. The
information in the explanation for a married Participant shall
include, at a minimum, the terms and conditions of the QJSA and
the QOSA, the Participant’s right to elect a single payment or a
QOSA in lieu of a QJSA, the effect of the Participant electing a
single payment or QOSA in lieu of a QJSA, the right of the
Participant’s Spouse to insist upon a QJSA, the Participant’s right
to revoke his distribution election, and such other information as
may be required under IRS guidance of general applicability.

Timing. The explanation shall be provided no more than 180 days
before the annuity starting date. The explanation shall be provided
no fewer than 30 days before the annuity starting date, unless all
the following conditions are satisfied (1) the Participant
affirmatively elects a QOSA or a single sum distribution (and the
Participant’s Spouse, if any, consents), (2) the explanation
mentions that the Participant has a right to at least 30 days to
consider whether to waive the QJSA and consent to a QOSA or a
single sum, and (3) the Participant is permitted to revoke an
affirmative distribution election until the annuity starting date (or,
if later, the 8th day after the Participant is provided with the
explanation).

Annuity Starting Date. The annuity starting date, for a single sum
payment, is the date the payment is processed, which may be any
business day. The annuity starting date for a QJSA or QOSA is the
day as of which the annuity payments begin. The annuity starting
date for an annuity must be the first day of a month, must occur on
or after the Participant’s termination of employment or 62nd
birthday, must occur after the date the explanation is provided, but
may precede the date the Participant provides any affirmative
distribution election. In any event, the first payment from the
annuity shall not precede the 8th day after the explanation is
provided.

24



(b)  Beneficiaries. The distributable amount that is left to a beneficiary shall be paid,
at the election of the beneficiary, in the form of a single payment, installments
(for non-Spouse beneficiaries), or an annuity (for Spouse beneficiaries), as
described in subsection 6.4(e).

(c) Alternate Payees. If the Alternate Payee is not the Participant’s Spouse or former
spouse, the amount assigned to the Alternate Payee shall be paid in the form of a
single payment. If the Alternate Payee is the Participant’s Spouse or former
spouse, then unless the next sentence applies, the amount assigned to an Alternate
Payee shall be paid, at the election of the Alternate Payee or as specified in the
QDRO, in the form of either a single payment or an annuity for the life of the
Alternate Payee. If the amount assigned to the Alternate Payee is $5,000 or less
(calculated in accordance with the applicable Treasury regulations), then the
Alternate Payee shall receive a single sum distribution.

(d)  Annuities. If the distribution is to be in the form of an annuity, the Plan shall
purchase an annuity contract that satisfies the requirements specified in the Plan
and in Code §401(a)(11) and §417, and shall distribute such contract to the
distributee. The payments under an annuity shall begin as soon as
administratively practicable after the annuity contract is distributed. The
payments shall remain constant for the duration of the annuity, except where the
Spouse outlives the Participant, in which case the monthly payments to the
surviving Spouse drop to 50% (for a QISA) or 75% (for a QOSA) of the monthly
benefit before the Participant’s death.

6.4 Time of Distribution

(a) Earliest Date of Distribution. Unless an earlier distribution is permitted by
subsection (b) or required by subsection (c), the earliest date that a Participant
may elect to receive a distribution is as follows.

(i) Termination of Employment or Disability. A Participant may elect to
receive a distribution as soon as practicable after he terminates
employment or incurs a Disability.

(i)  During Employment. A Participant may obtain a distribution while an
Employee only if he has attained age 62. After attaining age 62, and while
an Employee, the Participant may withdraw all or any portion of his
vested Account. The minimum withdrawal shall be $1,000 or, if less, the
balance of the Account. Only two withdrawals are permitted each Plan
Year under this paragraph. After an Employee’s Required Beginning
Date, subsection (c) shall apply instead of this paragraph.

(b) Alternate Earliest Date of Distribution. Notwithstanding subsection (a), unless a
Participant elects otherwise, his distribution shall commence no later than 60 days
after the close of the latest of: (i) the Plan Year in which the Participant attains
Normal Retirement Age; (ii) the Plan Year in which occurs the tenth anniversary

25
EXI 955129v2 10/27/10



(©)

(d)

(e)

of the year in which the Participant commenced participation in the Plan; and (iii)
the Plan Year in which the Participant terminates employment with the Township
and Affiliated Entities. [fa Participant does not affirmatively elect a distribution,
he shall be deemed to have elected to defer the distribution to a date later than that
specified in the preceding sentence.

Latest Date of Distribution. The entire distributable amount shall be distributed to
a Participant (i) in a single payment no later than his Required Beginning Date, or
(ii) in a QJSA or QOSA with payments beginning no later than his Required
Beginning Date. The payment will be in the form of a QJSA unless the
Participant elects a QOSA or a single payment and, if the Participant is married,
his Spouse consents to the QOSA or the single payment.

Small Amounts.

(1) $1000 or Less. If'the value of the nonforfeitable portion of a Participant’s
Account is $1,000 or less at any time after the Participant’s termination of
employment, the Participant shall receive a single payment of the
distributable amount as soon as administratively practicable, provided that
the value is $1,000 or less when the distribution is processed.

(i)  $1000 to $5000. If paragraph (i) does not apply and the value of the
nonforfeitable portion of a Participant’s Account is $5,000 or less on any
date after his termination of employment, then as soon as practicable the
Plan shall pay the distributable amount to an individual retirement account
or annuity within the meaning of Code §408(a) or §408(b) (collectively,
an “IRA”) for the Participant, unless the Participant affirmatively elects to
receive the distribution directly or to have it paid in a direct rollover under
section 6.5. The Committee shall select the trustee or custodian of the
IRA as well as how the IRA shall be invested initially. The Plan shall
notify the Participant (A) that the distribution has been made to an IRA
and can be transferred to another IRA, (B) of the identity and contact
information of the trustee or custodian of the IRA into which the
distribution is made, and (C) of such other information as required to
comply with Code §401(a)(31)(B)(i).

(iii)  Date Account Valued. The Committee may elect to check the value of the
Participant’s Account on an occasional (rather than a daily) basis, to
determine whether to apply the provisions of this subsection.

Distribution Upon Participant’s Death,

(1) Small Accounts. Ifthe value of the nonforfeitable portion of a
Participant’s Account is $5,000 or less at any time after the Participant’s
death and before any beneficiary elects to receive a distribution under this
subsection, then each beneficiary shall each receive a single payment of
his share of the distributable amount as soon as administratively

26

~ EX1955129v2 10/27/10

A



practicable, provided that the aggregate value is $5,000 or less when the
distribution is processed. The Committee may elect to check the value of
the Participants’ Accounts on an occasional (rather than a daily) basis to
determine whether to apply the provisions of this subsection.

(i)  Larger Accounts. If paragraph (i) does not apply, then each beneficiary
may elect to have his distributable amount distributed at any time after the
Participant’s death, within the following guidelines. The forms of
permitted distribution are a lump sum, annual installments, and, for
Spouse beneficiaries only, a QPSA. No distribution shall be processed
until the beneficiary’s identity as a beneficiary is established. The entire
distributable amount shall be distributed by the last day of the calendar
year containing the fifth anniversary of the Participant’s death; if a Spouse
beneficiary elects a QPSA, the annuity contract shall be distributed by the
last day of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the
Participant’s death. A beneficiary who elects installments may elect to
accelerate any or all remaining payments. In addition, if the Participant
was a Five-Percent Owner who began to receive the minimum required
distributions under subsection (c), the distribution to each beneficiary must
be made at least as rapidly as required by the method used to calculate the
minimum required distributions that was in effect when the Five-Percent
Owner died.

® Alternate Payee. Distributions to Alternate Payees and their beneficiaries shall be
made as specified in section 12.9.

6.5 Direct Rollover Flection

(a) General Rule. A Participant, an Alternate Payee who is the Spouse or former
Spouse of the Participant, any individual who is treated as a designated
beneficiary of the Participant pursuant to Code §401(a)(9)(E), or any trust to the
extent that any beneficiary of the trust is treated as a designated beneficiary of the
Participant pursuant to Code §401(a)(9)(E), (collectively, the “distributee”) may
direct the Trustee to pay all or any portion of his “eligible rollover distribution” to
an “eligible retirement plan” in a “direct rollover.” This direct rollover option is
not available to other Account Owners. Within a reasonable period of time before
an eligible rollover distribution, the Committee shall inform the distributee of this
direct rollover option, the appropriate withholding rules, other rollover options,
the options regarding income taxation, and any other information required by
Code §402(f). The distributee may waive the usual 30-day waiting period before
receiving a distribution, and elect to receive his distribution as soon as
administratively practicable after completing and filing his distribution election.

(b)  Definition of Eligible Rollover Distribution. An eligible rollover distribution is
any distribution or in-service withdrawal other than (i) distributions required
under Code §401(2)(9), (ii) distributions of amounts that have already been
subject to federal income tax (such as defaulted loans or after-tax voluntary

27
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



contributions), other than a direct transfer to another retirement plan that meets
the requirements of Code §401(a) or §403(a), or to an individual retirement
account or annuity described in Code §408(a) or §408(b), (iii) a distribution to
satisfy the limits of Code §415, or (iv) any other actual or deemed distribution
specified in IRS guidance of general applicability.

(©) Definition of Eligible Retirement Plan.

(i)

(iD)

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

Participants, Spouses, and Alternate Payees. For a Participant, an
Alternate Payee who is the Spouse or former Spouse of the Participant, or
a surviving Spouse of a deceased Participant, an eligible retirement plan is
an individual retirement account or annuity described in Code §408(a) or
§408(b), an annuity plan described in Code §403(a), an annuity contract
described in Code §403(b), an eligible plan under Code §457(b) that is
maintained by an eligible employer described in Code §457(e)(1)(A)
(which generally includes state and local governments), or the qualified
trust of a defined contribution plan described in Code §401(a), that accepts
eligible rollover distributions.

Other Distributees. For an individual who is treated as a designated
beneficiary of the Participant pursuant to Code §401(a)(9)(E), and for any
trust to the extent that a beneficiary of the trust is treated as a designated
beneficiary of the Participant pursuant to Code §401(a)(9)(E), an eligible
retirement plan is an individual retirement account or annuity described in
Code §408(a) or §408(b) that is in existence or is established for the
purposes of receiving the distribution on behalf of the beneficiary, and
that, with respect to the beneficiary, is treated as an inherited individual
retirement account or annuity within the meaning of Code §408(d)(3)(C).
The designated beneficiary has two choices for receiving distributions that
are to be paid in a direct rollover to such inherited individual retirement
account or annuity.

(A)  The designated beneficiary may elect to receive a single payment
or installments from the Plan, pursuant to paragraph 6.6(d)(ii),
during the calendar year in which the Participant died or in the
following calendar year (or by such later date allowed pursuant to
IRS guidance of general applicability or a private letter ruling
obtained by the designated beneficiary). Each annual installment
from the Plan must satisfy the requirements of Code
§401(a)(9)(B)(iii) (which essentially means that each annual
installment must be equal to at least the account balance standing
to the credit of the deceased Plan Participant at the end of the
previous year, divided by the designated beneficiary’s life
expectancy). In this case, distributions from the inherited
individual retirement account or annuity may be made over the life
expectancy of the designated beneficiary.

28



(B)

If the requirements of subparagraph (A) are not satisfied, the
designated beneficiary must receive, pursuant to paragraph
6.6(d)(ii), a full distribution from the Plan by the end of the
calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the Participant’s
death. In this case, distributions from the inherited individual
retirement account or annuity must generally be completed by the
end of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the
Participant’s death.

(d) Definition of Direct Rollover. A direct rollover is a payment by the Trustee to the

eligible retirement plan specified by the distributee.

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

29



7.1

72

7.3

7.4

ARTICLE VII
ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES — NAMED FIDUCIARIES

No Joint Fiduciary Responsibilities

Trustee(s) and the Committee shall be the named fiduciaries under the Plan and Trust
agreement and shall be the only named fiduciaries thereunder. The fiduciaries shall have
only the responsibilities specifically allocated to them herein or in the Trust agreement.
Such allocations are intended to be mutually exclusive and there shall be no sharing of
fiduciary responsibilities. Whenever one named fiduciary is required by the Plan or Trust
agreement to follow the directions of another named fiduciary, the two named fiduciaries
shall not be deemed to have been assigned a shared responsibility, but the responsibility
of the named fiduciary giving the directions shall be deemed his sole responsibility, and
the responsibility of the named fiduciary receiving those directions shall be to follow
them insofar as the instructions are on their face proper under applicable law.

The Township

The Township shall be responsible for: (a) making Township Contributions; (b)
certifying to the Trustee the names and specimen signatures of the members of the
Committee acting from time to time; (c) keeping accurate books and records with respect
to its Employees and the appropriate components of each Employee’s Compensation and
furnishing such data to the Committee; (d) selecting agents and fiduciaries to operate and
administer the Plan and Trust; (e) appointing an investment manager if it determines that
one should be appointed; and (f) reviewing periodically the performance of such agents,
managers, and fiduciaries.

The Trustee

The Trustee shall be responsible for: (a) the investment of the Trust Fund to the extent
and in the manner provided in the Trust agreement; (b) the custody and preservation of
Trust assets delivered to it; and (c) the payment of such amounts from the Trust Fund as
the Committee shall direct.

The Committee — Plan Administrator

The board of supervisors of the Township shall appoint an administrative Committee
consisting of no fewer than three individuals who may be, but need not be, Participants,
officers, supervisors, or Employees of the Township. If the board of supervisors does not
appoint a Committee, the Township shall act as the Committee under the Plan. The
members of the Committee shall hold office at the pleasure of the board of supervisors
and shall service without compensation. The Committee shall be the Plan’s
“administrator” as defined in section 3(16)(A) of ERISA. It shall be responsible for
establishing and implementing a funding policy consistent with the objectives of the Plan
and with the requirements of ERISA. This responsibility shall include establishing (and
revising as necessary) short-term and long-term goals and requirements pertaining to the

30

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10




7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

financial condition of the Plan, communicating such goals and requirements to the
persons responsible for the various aspects of the Plan operations, and monitoring
periodically the implementation of such goals and requirements. The Committee shall
publish and file or cause to be published and filed or disclosed all reports and disclosures
required by federal or state laws.

Commiittee to Construe Plan

(a) The Committee shall administer the Plan and shall have all discretion, power, and
authority necessary for that purpose, including, but not by way of limitation, the
full and absolute discretion and power to interpret the Plan, to determine the
eligibility, status, and rights of all individuals under the Plan, and in general to
decide any dispute and all questions arising in connection with the Plan. The
Committee shall direct the Trustee concerning all distributions from the Trust
Fund, including the purchase of annuity contracts, in accordance with the
provisions of the Plan, and shall have such other powers in the administration of
the Trust Fund as may be conferred upon it by the Trust agreement. The
Committee shall maintain all Plan records except records of the Trust Fund.

(b)  The Committee may adjust the Account of any Participant, in order to correct
errors and rectify omissions, in such manner as the Committee believes will best
result in the equitable and nondiscriminatory administration of the Plan.

Organization of Committee.

The Committee shall adopt such rules as it deems desirable for the conduct of its affairs
and for the administration of the Plan. It may appoint agents (who need not be members
of the Committee) to whom it may delegate such powers as it deems appropriate, except
that the Committee shall determine any dispute. The Committee may make its
determinations with or without meetings. It may authorize one or more of its members or
agents to sign instructions, notices, and determinations on its behalf, If a Committee
decision or action affects a small number of Participants including a Committee member,
then such Committee member shall not participate in the Committee decision or action.
The action of a majority of the disinterested Committee members shall constitute the
action of the Committee.

Agent for Process.

The Township’s [ ] shall be the agents of the Plan for service of
all process.

Indemnification of Committee Members.

The Township shall indemnify and hold the members of the Committee, and each of
them, harmless from the effects and consequences of their acts, omissions, and conduct in
their official capacities, except to the extent that the effects and consequences thereof
shall result from their own willful misconduct, breach of good faith, or gross negligence

31

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10




wf Y

(T‘-.
B

in the performance of their duties. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be
exclusive of the rights to which each such member may be entitled as a matter of law.

7.9 Conclusiveness of Action

Any action taken by the Committee on matters within the discretion of the Committee
shall be conclusive, final and binding upon all participants in the Plan and upon all
persons claiming any rights hereunder, including Alternate Payees and beneficiaries.

7.10 Payment of Expenses.

The members of the Committee shall serve without compensation but the Township shall
pay their reasonable expenses. The compensation or fees of accountants, counsel, and
other specialists and any other costs of administering the Plan or Trust Fund may be paid
by the Township or Account Owners or may be charged to the Trust Fund, to the extent
permissible under the provisions of ERISA.

32
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



ARTICLE VIII
TRUST AGREEMENT — INVESTMENTS

8.1 Trust Agreement.

The Township has entered into a Trust agreement to provide for the holding, investment,
and administration of the funds of the Plan. The Trust agreement shall be part of the
Plan, and the rights and duties of any individual under the Plan shall be subject to all
terms and provisions of the Trust agreement.

8.2 Plan Expenses.

(a) General. Except as provided in subsection (b), (i) all taxes upon or in respect of
the Plan and Trust shall be paid out of Plan assets, and all expenses of
administering the Plan and Trust shall be paid out of Plan assets, to the extent
permitted by law and to the extent such taxes and expenses are not paid by the
Township or an Account Owner, and (ii) the Committee shall have full discretion
to determine how each tax or expense that is not paid by the Township shall be
paid and the Committee shall have full discretion to determine how each tax or
expense that is paid out of Plan assets shall be allocated. No fiduciary shall
receive any compensation for services rendered to the Plan if the fiduciary is
being compensated on a full time basis by the Township.

(b) Individual Expenses. To the extent not paid by the Township or an Account
Owner, all expenses of individually directed transactions, including without
limitation the Trustee’s transaction fee, brokerage commissions, transfer taxes,
interest on insurance policy loans, and any taxes and penalties that may be
imposed as a result of an individual’s investment direction, shall be assessed
against the Account of the Account Owner directing such transactions.

8.3 Investments.

[Directed Investments or Fund Manager]

33
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



ARTICLE IX
TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT

9.1 Termination of Plan or Discontinuance of Contributions.

The Township expects to continue the Plan indefinitely, but the continuance of the Plan
and the payment of contributions are not assumed as contractual obligations. The
Township may terminate the Plan or discontinue contributions at any time. Upon the
termination of the Plan, each Participant’s Account shall become fully vested. Upon the
partial termination of the Plan, the Accounts of all affected Participants shall become
fully vested. The only Participants who are affected by a partial termination are those
whose employment with the Township is terminated as a result of the corporate event
causing the partial termination; Employees terminated for cause and those who leave
voluntarily are not affected by a partial termination.

92 Allocations upon Termination.

Upon the termination or partial termination of the Plan, the Committee shall promptly
notify the Trustee of such termination. The Trustee shall promptly determine, in the
manner prescribed in section 4.2, the net worth of the Trust Fund. The Trustee shall
advise the Committee of any increase or decrease in such net worth that has occurred
since the preceding Valuation Date. The Committee shall allocate, in the manner
described in section 4.3, among the remaining Plan Accounts, in the manner described in
Articles III, IV, and V, any Township Contributions or forfeitures occurring since the
preceding Valuation Date.

9.3 Procedure Upon Termination of Plan.

If the Plan has been terminated or partially terminated, then, after the allocations required
under section 9.2 have been completed, the Trustee shall distribute or transfer the
Accounts of affected Account Owners as follows.

(a) No Other Plan. If the Township is not treated, pursuant to the Treasury
Regulations under Code §401(k), as maintaining another “alternative defined
contribution plan,” the Trustee shall distribute each Account Owner’s Account in
a single payment, after complying with the requirements of section 6.5. For
purposes of this section only, an “alternative defined contribution plan” means a
defined contribution plan that is not an employee stock ownership plan within the
meaning of Code §4975(e)(7) or §409(a)), a simplified employee pension within
the meaning of Code §408(k), a SIMPLE IRA within the meaning of Code
§408(p), a plan or contract that satisfies the requirements of Code §403(b), or a
plan described in Code §457(b) or §457(f).

(b) Other Plan Maintained. If the Township is treated, pursuant to the Treasury
Regulations under Code §401(k), as maintaining another “alternative defined
contribution plan,” the Trustee shall (i) distribute the Accounts of each non-

34
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



Participant Account Owner in a single payment, after complying with the
requirements of section 6.5, and (ii) transfer the Account of each Participant to an
alternative defined contribution plan. All the rights, benefits, features, and
distribution restrictions with respect to the transferred amounts shall continue to
apply to the transferred amounts unless a change is permitted pursuant to
applicable IRS guidance of general applicability.

() Form of Payment. A transfer made pursuant to this section may be in cash, in
kind, or partly in cash and partly in kind. Any distribution made pursuant to this
section shall be in cash. After all such distributions or transfers have been made,
the Trustee shall be discharged from all obligation under the Trust; no Participant,
Spouse, Alternate Payee, or beneficiary who has received any such distribution, or
for whom any such transfer has been made, shall have any further right or claim
under the Plan or Trust.

9.4 Amendment by the Township.

(a) Amendment. The Township may at any time amend the Plan in any respect,
without prior notice, subject to the following limitations. No amendment shall be
made that would have the effect of vesting in the Township any part of the Trust
Fund or of diverting any part of the Trust Fund to purposes other than for the
exclusive benefit of Account Owners. The rights of any Account Owner with
respect to contributions previously made shall not be adversely affected by any
amendment. No amendment shall reduce or restrict, either directly or indirectly,
the accrued benefit (within the meaning of Code §411(d)(6)) to any Account
Owner before the amendment, except as permitted by the Code or IRS guidance
of general applicability.

(b)  Amendment to Vesting Schedule. Ifthe vesting schedule is amended, each
Participant with at least three Years of Service may elect, within the period
specified in the following sentence after the adoption of the amendment, to have
his nonforfeitable percentage computed under the Plan without regard to such
amendment. The period during which the election may be made shall commence
with the date the amendment is adopted and shall end on the latest of: (i) 60 days
after the amendment is adopted; (ii) 60 days after the amendment becomes
effective; or (iii) 60 days after the Participant is issued written notice of the
amendment by the Township or Committee. Furthermore, no amendment shall
decrease the nonforfeitable percentage, measured as of the later of the date the
amendment is adopted or effective, of any Account Owner’s Account.

(c) Procedure. Each amendment shall be in writing. Each amendment shall be
approved by the Township’s board of supervisors or by an officer of the
Township who has the authority to amend the Plan. Each amendment shall be
executed by an officer of the Township who has the authority to execute the
amendment.

35
- EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



ARTICLE X
PLAN ADOPTION BY AFFILIATED ENTITIES

10.1 Adoption of Plan.

The Township may permit any Affiliated Entity to adopt the Plan and Trust for its
Employees. Thereafter, such affiliated entity shall deliver to the Trustee a certified copy
of the resolutions or other documents evidencing its adoption of the Plan and Trust.

10.2  Agent of Affiliated Entity.

By becoming a party to the Plan, each affiliated entity appoints the Township as its agent
with authority to act for the affiliated entity in all transactions in which the Township
believes such agency will facilitate the administration of the Plan. The Township shall
have the sole authority to amend and terminate the Plan.

10.3 Disaffiliation and Withdrawal from Plan.

() Disaffiliation. Any affiliated entity that has adopted the Plan and thereafter
ceases for any reason to be an affiliated entity shall forthwith cease to be a party
to the Plan.

(b)  Withdrawal. Any affiliated entity may, by appropriate action and written notice
thereof to the Township, provide for the discontinuance of its participation in the
Plan. Such withdrawal from the Plan shall not be effective until the end of the
Plan Year.

10.4 Effect of Disaffiliation or Withdrawal.

If at the time of disaffiliation or withdrawal, the disaffiliating or withdrawing entity, by
appropriate action, adopts a substantially identical plan that provides for direct transfers
from this Plan, then, as to Account Owners associated with such entity, no plan
termination shall have occurred; the new plan shall be deemed a continuation of this Plan
for such Account Owners. In such case, the Trustee shall transfer to the trustee of the
new plan all of the assets held for the benefit of Account Owners associated with the
disaffiliating or withdrawing entity, and no forfeitures or acceleration of vesting shall
occur solely by reason of such action. Such payment shall operate as a complete
discharge of the Trustee, and of all organizations except the disaffiliating or withdrawing
entity, of all obligations under this Plan to Account Owners associated with the
disaffiliating or withdrawing entity. A new plan shall not be deemed substantially
identical to this Plan if it provides slower vesting than this Plan. Nothing in this section
shall authorize the divesting of any vested portion of a Participant’s Account.

10.5 Actions Upon Disaffiliation or Withdrawal.

(a) Distribution or Transfer. If an entity disaffiliates from the Township or
withdraws from the Plan and the provisions of section 10.4 are not followed, then
the following rules apply to the Account of an Account Owner associated with the

36
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



(b)

disaffiliating or withdrawing entity. The Account Owner’s Account shall remain
in this Plan until a distribution is processed under the usual rules of Article VI,
unless the disaffiliating or withdrawing entity maintains another qualified plan
that accepts direct transfers from this Plan, in which case the Committee may
transfer the Account Owner’s Account to the disaffiliating or withdrawing entity’s

. plan without the consent of the Account Owner.

Form of Payment. A transfer made pursuant to this section may be in cash, in
kind, or partly in cash and partly in kind. Any distribution made pursuant to this
section shall be in cash. After such distribution or transfer has been made, no
Account Owner who has received any such distribution, or for whom any such
transfer has been made, shall have any further right or claim under the Plan or
Trust.

37

EX1955129v2 1027/10



11.1

11.2

ARTICLE XI
TOP-HEAVY PROVISIONS

Application of Top-Heavy Provisions.

The provisions of this Article XII shall be applicable only if the Plan becomes “top-
heavy” as defined below for any Plan Year. If the Plan becomes “top-heavy” for a Plan
Year, the provisions of this Article XII shall apply to the Plan effective as of the first day
of such Plan Year and shall continue to apply to the Plan until the Plan ceases to be “top-
heavy” or until the Plan is terminated or otherwise amended.

Determination of Top-Heavy Status.

The Plan shall be considered “top-heavy” for a Plan Year if, as of the last day of the prior
Plan Year, the aggregate of the Account balances (as calculated according to the
regulations under Code §416) of Key Employees under this Plan (and under all other
plans required or permitted to be aggregated with this Plan) exceeds 60% of the aggregate
of the Account balances (as calculated according to the regulations under Code §416) in
this Plan (and under all other plans required or permitted to be aggregated with this Plan)
of all current Employees and all former Employees who terminated employment within
one year of the last day of the prior Plan Year. This ratio shall be referred to as the “top-
heavy ratio.” For purposes of determining the account balance of any Participant, (a) the
balance shall be determined as of the last day of the prior Plan Year, (b) the balance shall
also include any distributions to the Participant during the one-year period ending on the
last day of the prior Plan Year, and (c) the balance shall also include, for distributions
made for a reason other than separation from service or death or disability, any
distributions to the Participant during the five-year period ending on the last day of the
prior Plan Year. This shall also apply to distributions under a terminated plan that, if it
had not been terminated, would have been required to be included in an aggregation
group. The Account balances of a Participant who had once been a Key Employee, but
who is not a Key Employee during the Plan Year, shall not be taken into account. The
following plans must be aggregated with this Plan for the top-heavy test: (a) a qualified
plan maintained by the Township in which a Key Employee participated during this Plan
Year or during the previous four Plan Years and (b) any other qualified plan maintained
by the Township that enables this Plan or any plan described in clause (a) to meet the
requirements of Code §401(a)(4) or §410. The following plans may be aggregated with
this Plan for the top-heavy test: any qualified plan maintained by the Township that, in
combination with the Plan or any plan required to be aggregated with this Plan when
testing this Plan for top-heaviness, would satisfy the requirements of Code §401(a)(4)
and §410. If one or more of the plans required or permitted to be aggregated with this
Plan is a defined benefit plan, a Participant’s “account balance” shall mean the present
value of the Participant’s accrued benefit. If the aggregation group includes more than
one defined benefit plan, the same actuarial assumptions shall be used with respect to
each such defined benefit plan. The foregoing top-heavy ratio shall be computed in

38

EX1955129v2 10/27/10

W\



11.3

11.4

11.5

accordance with the provisions of Code §416(g), together with the regulations and rulings
thereunder.

Special Vesting Rule.

Unless section 5.1 provides for faster vesting, the Participant’s Account shall vest in
accordance with the following schedule during any top-heavy Plan Year:

Period of Service Vesting
Percentage
Less than 2 years 0%
At least 2 years, but less than 3 years 20%
At least 3 years, but less than 4 years 40%
At least 4 years, but less than 5 years 60%
At least 5 years, but less than 6 years 80%
6 or more years 100%

Special Minimum Contribution.

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 3.1, in every top-heavy Plan Year, a minimum
allocation is required for each Non-Key Employee who both (a) performed one or more
hours of service as a Covered Employee during the Plan Year, and (b) was an Employee
on the last day of the Plan Year. The minimum allocation shall be a percentage of each
Non-Key Employee’s Compensation. The percentage shall be the lesser of 3% or the
largest percentage obtained for any Key Employee by dividing his Annual Additions (to
this Plan and any other plan aggregated with this Plan) for the Plan Year by his
Compensation for the Plan Year. If the Participant participates in both this Plan and the
Township [ ] Plan, then the Participant’s minimum allocation to this
Plan shall be reduced by any allocation of Township contributions (or forfeitures treated
as Township contributions) that he receives in that plan for the Plan Year.

Change in Top-Heavy Status.

If the Plan ceases to be a “top-heavy” plan as defined in this Article XII, and if any
change in the benefit structure, vesting schedule, or other component of a Participant’s
accrued benefit occurs as a result of such change in top-heavy status, the nonforfeitable
portion of each Participant’s benefit attributable to Township Contributions shall not be
decreased as a result of such change. In addition, each Participant with at least a three-
year Period of Service on the date of such change may elect to have the nonforfeitable
percentage computed under the Plan without regard to such change in status. The period
during which the election may be made shall commence on the date the Plan ceases to be
a top-heavy plan and shall end on the later of (a) 60 days after the change in status
occurs, (b) 60 days after the change in status becomes effective, or (c) 60 days after the
Participant is issued written notice of the change by the Township or the Committee.

39

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

1



ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

12.1 Right to Dismiss Employees — No Employment Contract.

The Township may terminate the employment of any employee as freely and with the
same effect as if this Plan were not in existence. Participation in this Plan by an employee
shall not constitute an express or implied contract of employment between the Township
and the employee.

12.2  Claims Procedure.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

()

®

General. Each claim for benefits shall be processed in accordance with the
procedures that are established by the Committee. The procedures shall comply
with the guidelines specified in this section. The Committee may delegate its
duties under this section.

Representatives. A claimant may appoint a representative to act on his behalf.
The Plan shall only recognize a representative if the Plan has received a written
authorization signed by the claimant and on a form prescribed by the Committee,
with the following exceptions. The Plan shall recognize a claimant’s legal
representative, once the Plan is provided with documentation of such
representation. If the claimant is a minor child, the Plan shall recognize the
claimant’s parent or guardian as the claimant’s representative. Once an
authorized representative is appointed, the Plan shall direct all information and
notification regarding the claim to the authorized representative and the claimant
shall be copied on all notifications regarding decisions, unless the claimant
provides specific written direction otherwise.

Extension of Deadlines. The claimant may agree to an extension of any deadline
that is mentioned in this section that applies to the Plan. The Committee or the
relevant decision-maker may agree to an extension of any deadline that is
mentioned in this section that applies to the claimant.

Fees. The Plan may not charge any fees to a claimant for utilizing the claims
process described in this section.

Filing a Claim. A claim is made when the claimant files a claim in accordance
with the procedures specified by the Committee. Any communication regarding
benefits that is not made in accordance with the Plan’s procedures will not be
treated as a claim.

Initial Claims Decision. The Plan shall decide a claim within a reasonable time
up to 90 days after receiving the claim. The Plan shall have a 90-day extension,
but only if the Plan is unable to decide within 90 days for reasons beyond its
control, the Plan notifies the claimant of the special circumstances requiring the
need for the extension by the 90th day after receiving the claim, and the Plan
notifies the claimant of the date by which the Plan expects to make a decision.

40

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



()

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

Notification of Initial Decision. The Plan shall provide the claimant with written
notification of the Plan’s full or partial denial of a claim, reduction of a previously
approved benefit, or termination of a benefit. The notification shall include a
statement of the reason(s) for the decision; references to the plan provision(s) on
which the decision was based; a description of any additional material or
information necessary to perfect the claim and why such information is needed; a
description of the procedures and deadlines for appeal; a description of the right
to obtain information about the appeal procedures; and a statement of the
claimant’s right to sue.

Appeal. The claimant may appeal any adverse or partially adverse decision. To
appeal, the claimant must follow the procedures specified by the Committee. The
appeal must be filed within 60 days of the date the claimant received notice of the
initial decision. If the appeal is not timely and properly filed, the initial decision
shall be the final decision of the Plan. The claimant may submit documents,
written comments, and other information in support of the appeal. The claimant
shall be given reasonable access at no charge to, and copies of, all documents,
records, and other relevant information.

Appellate Decision. The Plan shall decide the appeal of a claim within a
reasonable time of no more than 60 days from the date the Plan receives the
claimant’s appeal. The 60-day deadline shall be extended by an additional 60
days, but only if the Committee determines that special circumstances require an
extension, the Plan notifies the claimant of the special circumstances requiring the
need for the extension by the 60th day after receiving the appeal, and the Plan
notifies the claimant of the date by which the Plan expects to make a decision. If
an appeal is missing any information from the claimant that is needed to decide
the appeal, the Plan shall notify the claimant of the missing information and grant
the claimant a reasonable period to provide the missing information. If the
missing information is not timely provided, the Plan shall deny the claim. If the
missing information is timely provided, the 60-day deadline (or 120-day deadline
with the extension) for the Plan to make its decision shall be increased by the
length of time between the date the Plan requested the missing information and
the date the Plan received it.

Notification of Decision. The Plan shall provide the claimant with written
notification of the Plan’s appellate decision (positive or adverse). The notification
of any adverse or partially adverse decision shall include a statement of the
reason(s) for the decision; reference to the plan provision(s) on which the decision
was based; a statement of the claimant’s right to sue; and a statement that the
claimant is entitled to receive, free of charge and upon request, reasonable access
to and copies of all documents, records, and other information relevant to the
claim.

Limitations on Bringing Actions in Court. Once an appellate decision that is
adverse or partially adverse to the claimant has been made, the claimant may file
suit in court only if he does so by the earlier of the following dates: (i) the one-

41

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

year anniversary of the date of the appellate decision, or (ii) the date on which the
statute of limitations for such claim expires.

) Discretionary Authority. The Committee shall have total discretionary authority

to determine eligibility, status, and the rights of all individuals under the Plan and

to construe any and all terms of the Plan.

Source of Benefits.

All benefits payable under the Plan shall be paid solely from the Trust Fund, and the
Township and Affiliated Entities assume no liability or responsibility therefor.

Exclusive Benefit of Employees.

It is the intention of the Township that no part of the Trust, other than as provided in
sections 3.3, 8.2, and 12.9 hereof and the Trust Agreement, ever to be used for or diverted
for purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of Participants, Alternate Payees, and
their beneficiaries, and that this Plan shall be construed to follow the spirit and intent of
the Code.

Forms of Notices.

Wherever provision is made in the Plan for the filing of any notice, election, or
designation by a Participant, Spouse, Alternate Payee, or beneficiary, the action of such
individual may be evidenced by the execution of such form as the Committee may
prescribe for the purpose. The Committee may also prescribe alternate methods for filing
any notice, election, or designation (such as telephone voice-response or e-mail).

Failure of Any Other Entity to Qualify.

If any entity adopts this Plan but fails to obtain or retain the qualification of the Plan
under the applicable provisions of the Code, such entity shall withdraw from this Plan
upon a determination by the Internal Revenue Service that it has failed to obtain or retain
such qualification. Within 30 days after the date of such determination, the assets of the
Trust Fund held for the benefit of the Employees of such entity shall be separately
accounted for and disposed of in accordance with the Plan and Trust.

Notice of Adoption of the Plan.

The Township shall provide each of its Employees with notice of the adoption of this
Plan, notice of any amendments to the Plan, and notice of the salient provisions of the
Plan prior to the end of the first Plan Year. A complete copy of the Plan shall also be
made available for inspection by Employees and Account Owners.

Plan Merger.

If this Plan is merged or consolidated with, or its assets or liabilities are transferred to,
any other qualified plan of deferred compensation, each Participant shall be entitled to

42

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10

N



1o

receive a benefit immediately after the merger, consolidation, or transfer that is equal to
or greater than the benefit the Participant would have been entitled to receive
immediately before the merger, consolidation, or transfer if this Plan had then been
terminated.

12.9 Inalienability of Benefits — Domestic Relations Orders.

(a) General. Except as provided in subsection 6.1(e), relating to disclaimers, and
subsections (b), (g), and (h) below, no Account Owner shall have any right to
assign, alienate, transfer, or encumber his interest in any benefits under this Plan,
nor shall such benefits be subject to any legal process to levy upon or attach the
same for payment of any claim against any such Account Owner.

(b) QDRO Exception. Subsection (a) shall apply to the creation, assignment, or
recognition of a right to any benefit payable with respect to a Participant pursuant
to a Domestic Relations Order unless such Domestic Relations Order is a QDRO,
in which case the Plan shall make payment of benefits in accordance with the
applicable requirements of any such QDRO.

(c) QDRO Requirements. In order to be a QDRO, the Domestic Relations Order
must satisfy the requirements of Code §414(p) and ERISA §206(d)(3). In
particular, the Domestic Relations Order: (i) must specify the name and the last
known mailing address of the Participant; (ii) must specify the name and mailing
address of each Alternate Payee covered by the order; (iii) must specify either the
amount or percentage of the Participant’s benefits to be paid by the Plan to each
such Alternate Payee, or the manner in which such amount or percentage is to be
determined; (iv) must specify the number of payments or period to which such
order applies; (v) must specify each plan to which such order applies; (vi) may not
require the Plan to provide any type or form of benefit, or any option, not
otherwise provided under the Plan, subject to the provisions of subsection (f);
(vii) may not require the Plan to provide increased benefits (determined on the
basis of actuarial value); and (viii) may not require the payment of benefits to an
Alternate Payee if such benefits have already been designated to be paid to
another Alternate Payee under another order previously determined to be a
QDRO.

(d) QDRO Payment Rules. In the case of any payment before an Employee has
separated from service, a Domestic Relations Order shall not be treated as failing
to meet the requirements of subsection (c) solely because such order requires that
payment of benefits be made to an Alternate Payee (i) on or after the dates
specified in subsection (f), (ii) as if the Employee had retired on the date on which
such payment is to begin under such order (but taking into account only the
Account balance on such date), and (iii) in any form in which such benefits may
be paid under the Plan to the Employee. For purposes of this subsection, the
Account balance as of the date specified in the QDRO shall be the vested portion
of the Employee’s Account on such date.

43
~EX1955129v2 10/27/10



r\/ {

(e) QDRO Review Procedures and Suspension of Benefits. The Committee shall
establish reasonable procedures to determine the qualified status of Domestic
Relations Orders and to administer distributions under QDROs. Such procedures
shall be in writing and shall permit an Alternate Payee to designate a
representative to receive copies of notices. The Committee may temporarily
suspend distributions and withdrawals from the Participant’s Accounts, except to
the extent necessary to make the required minimum distributions under Code
§401(a)(9), when the Committee receives a Domestic Relations Order or a draft
of such an order that affects the Participant’s Accounts or when one or the
following individuals informs the Committee, orally or in writing, thata QDRO is
in process or may be in process: the Participant, a prospective Alternate Payee, or
counsel for the Participant or a prospective Alternate Payee. The Committee shall
promulgate reasonable and non-discriminatory rules regarding such suspensions,
including but not limited to how long such suspensions remain in effect. The
procedures may allow the Participant to receive such distributions and
withdrawals from the Plan, subject to the rules of Article VI, as are consented to
in writing by all prospective Alternate Payees identified in the Domestic Relations
Order or, in the absence of a Domestic Relations Order, as are consented to in
writing by the prospective Alternate Payee(s) who informed the Committee that a
QDRO was in process or may be in process. When the Committee receives a
Domestic Relations Order it shall promptly notify the Participant and each
Alternate Payee of such receipt and provide them with copies of the Plan’s
procedures for determining the qualified status of the order. Within a reasonable
period after receipt of a Domestic Relations Order, the Committee shall determine
whether such order is a QDRO and notify the Participant and each Alternate
Payee of such determination. During any period in which the issue of whether a
Domestic Relations Order is a QDRO is being determined (by the Committee, by
a court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise), the Committee shall separately
account for the amounts payable to the Alternate Payee if the order is determined
to be a QDRO. If the order (or modification thereof) is determined to be a QDRO
within 18 months after the date the first payment would have been required by
such order, the Committee shall pay the amounts separately accounted for (plus
any interest thereon) to the individual(s) entitled thereto. However, if the
Committee determines that the order is not a QDRO, or if the issue as to whether
such order is a QDRO has not been resolved within 18 months after the date of
the first payment would have been required by such order, then the Committee
shall pay the amounts separately accounted for (plus any interest thereon) to the
individual(s) who would have been entitled to such amounts if there had been no
order. Any determination that an order is a QDRO that is made after the close of
the 18-month period shall be applied prospectively only. If the Plan’s fiduciaries
act in accordance with fiduciary provision of ERISA in treating a Domestic
Relations Order as being (or not being) a QDRO or in taking action in accordance
with this subsection, then the Plan’s obligation to the Participant and each
Alternate Payee shall be discharged to the extent of any payment made pursuant
to the acts of such fiduciaries.

44
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



® Rights of Alternate Payee. The Alternate Payee shall have the following rights
under the Plan:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

- EX1955129v2 1027/10

Small Accounts. If the value of the nonforfeitable portion of an Alternate
Payee’s Account is $5,000 or less, the Alternate Payee shall receive a
single payment of the distributable amount as soon as practicable,
provided that the value is $5,000 or less when the distribution is
processed. The Committee may elect to check the value of the Alternate
Payee’s Account on an occasional (rather than a daily) basis, to determine
whether this paragraph applies.

Single Payment or Annuity. This paragraph applies only if paragraph (i)
does not apply. The only form of payment available to an Alternate Payee
who is not the Spouse or former Spouse of the Participant is a single
payment of the distributable amount (measured at the time the payment is
processed). An Alternate Payee who is the Spouse or former Spouse of
the Participant may choose between a single payment of the distributable
amount or an annuity. If the Alternate Payee is awarded more than the
distributable amount, the Alternate Payee shall initially receive a
distribution of the distributable amount, with additional distributions made
as soon as administratively convenient after more of the amount awarded
to the Alternate Payee becomes distributable.

Timing of Distribution. This paragraph applies only if paragraph (i) does
not apply. Subject to the limits imposed by this paragraph, the Alternate
Payee may choose (or the QDRO may specify) the date of the distribution.
The distribution to the Alternate Payee may occur at any time after the
Committee determines that the Domestic Relations Order is a QDRO and
before the Participant’s Required Beginning Date (unless the order is
determined to be a QDRO after the Participant’s Required Beginning
Date, in which case the distribution to the Alternate Payee shall be made
as soon as administratively practicable after the order is determined to be a
QDRO).

Death of Alternate Payee. The Alternate Payee may designate one or
more beneficiaries, as specified in section 6.1. When the Alternate Payee
dies, the Alternate Payee’s beneficiary shall receive a complete
distribution of the distributable amount in a single payment as soon as
administratively convenient.

Investing. An Alternate Payee may direct the investment of his Account
pursuant to section 8.3.

Claims. The Alternate Payee may bring claims against the Plan pursuant
to section 12.2.

45



gé

(2) Exception for Misconduct towards the Plan. Subsection (a) shall not apply to any
offset of a Participant’s benefits against an amount that the Participant is ordered
or required to pay to the Plan if the following conditions are met.

(1) The order or requirement to pay must arise (A) under a judgment of
conviction for a crime involving the Plan, (B) under a civil judgment
(including a consent order or decree) entered by a court in an action
brought in connection with a violation (or alleged violation) of part 4 of
subtitle B of title I of ERISA, or (C) pursuant to a settlement agreement
between the Secretary of Labor and the Participant, or a settlement
agreement between the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation and the
Participant, in connection with a violation (or alleged violation) of part 4
of subtitle B of title I of ERISA by a fiduciary or any other person.

(i)  The judgment, order, decree, or settlement agreement must expressly
provide for the offset of all or part of the amount ordered or required to be
paid to the Plan against the Participant’s benefits provided under the Plan.

(iii)  If the Participant is married at the time at which the offset is to be made,
(A) either the Participant’s Spouse must have already waived his right to a
QPSA and QJSA or the Participant’s Spouse must consent in writing to
such offset with such consent witnessed by a notary public or
representative of the Plan (or it is established to the satisfaction of a Plan
representative that such consent may not be obtained by reason of
circumstances described in Code §417(a)(2)(B)), or (B) the Participant’s
Spouse is ordered or required in such judgment, order, decree, or
settlement to pay an amount to the Plan in connection with a violation of
part 4 of subtitle B of title I of ERISA, or (C) in such judgment, order,
decree, or settlement, the Participant’s Spouse retains the right to receive a
survivor annuity under a qualified joint and survivor annuity pursuant to
Code §401(a)(11)(AX(i) and under a qualified preretirement survivor
annuity provided pursuant to Code §401(a)(11)(A)(ii). The value of the
Spouse’s survivor annuity in subparagraph (C) shall be determined as if
the Participant terminated employment on the date of the offset, there was
no offset, the Plan permitted commencement of benefits only on or after
Normal Retirement Age, the Plan provided only the “minimum-required
qualified joint and survivor annuity,” and the amount of the qualified
preretirement survivor annuity under the Plan is equal to the amount of the
survivor annuity payable under the “minimum-required qualified joint and
survivor annuity.” For purposes of this paragraph only, the “minimum-
required qualified joint and survivor annuity” is the qualified joint and
survivor annuity which is the actuarial equivalent of the Participant’s
accrued benefit (within the meaning of Code §411(a)(7)) and under which
the survivor annuity is 50% of the amount of the annuity which is payable
during the joint lives of the Participant and his Spouse.

46
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10




The Committee may temporarily suspend distributions and withdrawals
from a Participant’s Account, except to the extent necessary to make the
required minimum distributions under Code §401(a)(9), when the
Committee has reason to believe that the Plan may be entitled to an offset
of the Participant’s benefits described in this subsection. The Committee
shall promulgate reasonable and non-discriminatory rules regarding such
suspensions, including but not limited to how long such suspensions
remain in effect.

(h) Exception for Federal Liens. Subsection (a) shall not apply to the enforcement of
a federal tax levy made pursuant to Code §6331, the collection by the United
States on a judgment resulting from an unpaid tax assessment, or any debt or
obligation that is permitted to be collected from the Plan under federal law (such
as the Federal Debt Collection Procedures Act of 1977). The Committee may
temporarily suspend distributions and withdrawals from an Account, except to the
extent necessary to make the required minimum distributions under Code
§401(a)(9), when the Committee has reason to believe that such a federal tax levy
or other obligation has or will be received. The Committee shall promulgate
reasonable and non-discriminatory rules regarding such suspensions, including
but not limited to how long such suspensions remain in effect.

12.10 Payments Due Minors or Incapacitated Individuals.

If any individual entitled to payment under the Plan is a minor, the Committee shall cause
the payment to be made to the custodian or representative who, under the state law of the
minor’s domicile, is authorized to receive funds on behalf of the minor. If any individual
entitled to payment under this Plan has been legally adjudicated to be mentally
incompetent or incapacitated, the Committee shall cause the payment to be made to the
custodian or representative who, under the state law of the incapacitated individual’s
domicile, is authorized to receive funds on behalf of the incapacitated individual.
Payments made pursuant to such power shall operate as a complete discharge of the Trust
Fund, the Trustee, and the Committee.

12.11 Uniformity of Application.

The provisions of this Plan shall be applied in a uniform and non-discriminatory manner
in accordance with rules adopted by the Committee, which rules shall be systematically
followed and consistently applied so that all individuals similarly situated shall be treated
alike.

12.12 Disposition of Unclaimed Payments.

Each Participant, Alternate Payee, or beneficiary with an Account balance in this Plan
must file with the Committee from time to time in writing his address, the address of each
beneficiary (if applicable), and each change of address. Any communication, statement,
or notice addressed to such individual at the last address filed with the Committee (or if
no address is filed with the Committee then at the last address as shown on the

47
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



12.13

Township’s records) will be binding on such individual for all purposes of the Plan.
Neither the Committee nor the Trustee shall be required to search for or locate any
missing individual. If the Committee notifies an individual that he is entitled to a
distribution and also notifies him that a failure to respond may result in a forfeiture of
benefits, and the individual fails to claim his benefits under the Plan or make his address
known to the Committee within a reasonable period of time after the notification, then the
benefits under the Plan of such individual shall be forfeited. Any amount forfeited
pursuant to this section shall be allocated pursuant to subsection 5.4(d). If the individual
should later make a claim for this forfeited amount, the Township shall, if the Plan is still
in existence, make a special contribution to the Plan equal to the forfeiture, and such
amount shall be distributed to the individual; if the Plan is not then in existence, the
Township shall pay the amount of the forfeiture to the individual.

Applicable Law.

This Plan shall be construed and regulated by ERISA, if applicable, the Code, and, unless
otherwise specified herein and to the extent applicable, the laws of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, excluding any conflicts-of-law provisions.

48

EX1955129v210/27/10



o

ARTICLE XIII
UNIFORMED SERVICES EMPLOYMENT
AND REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS ACT OF 1994

13.1 General.

(a) Scope. The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of
1994 (the “USERRA”), which is codified at 38 USCA §§4301-4318, confers
certain rights on individuals who leave civilian employment to perform certain
services in the Armed Forces, the National Guard, the commissioned corps of the
Public Health Service, or in any other category designated by the President of the
United States in time of war or emergency (collectively, the “Uniformed
Services”). An Employee who joins the Uniformed Services shall be referred to
as a “Serviceman” in this Article. This Article shall be interpreted to provide
such individuals with all the benefits required by the USERRA but no greater
benefits than those required by the USERRA. This Article shall supersede any
contrary provisions in the remainder of the Plan.

(b)  Rights of Servicemen. When a Serviceman leaves the Uniformed Services, he
may have reemployment rights with the Township or Affiliated Entities,
depending on many factors, including the length of his stay in the Uniformed
Services and the type of discharge he received. When this Article speaks of the
date a Serviceman’s potential USERRA reemployment rights expire, it means the
date on which the Serviceman fails to qualify for reemployment rights (if, for
example, he is dishonorably discharged, or remains in the Uniformed Services for
more than 5 years) or, if the Serviceman obtains reemployment rights, the date his
reemployment rights lapse because the Serviceman failed to timely exercise those
rights.

13.2  While a Serviceman.

In general, a Serviceman shall be treated as an Employee while he continues to receive
wages from the Township , and once the Serviceman’s wages from the Township or
cease, the Serviceman shall be treated as if he were on an approved, unpaid leave of
absence.

(a) Township Contributions. Wages paid by the Township to a Serviceman shall be
included in his Compensation as if the Serviceman were an Employee. If the
Employee was a Covered Employee when he became a Serviceman and his wages
continue through the last day of a Plan Year, then (i) the Serviceman shall be
treated as an “eligible Participant” under subsection 3.1(a) for that Plan Year (and
shall therefore receive an allocation of Township Mandatory Contributions); and
(ii) he shall be treated as an Employee under subsection 11.4(a) (and, ifhe is a
Non-Key Employee, he shall therefore receive any minimum required allocation
if the Plan is top-heavy).

49
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



(b) Investments. If the Serviceman has an account balance in the Plan, he is an
Account Owner and may therefore direct the investment of his Accounts pursuant
to section 8.3.

(c) Distributions and Withdrawals. For purposes of Article VI (relating to
distributions), the Serviceman shall be treated as an Employee until the day on
which his potential USERRA reemployment rights expire. See section 13.3 once
his potential USERRA rights expire.

(d) QDROs. QDROs shall be processed while the Participant is a Serviceman. The
Committee has the discretion to establish special procedures under subsection
12.9(e) for Servicemen, by, for example, extending the usual deadlines to
accommodate any practical difficulties encountered by the Serviceman that are
attributable to his service in the Uniformed Services.

13.3  Expiration of USERRA Reemployment Rights.

(a) Consequences. If a Serviceman is not reemployed before his potential USERRA
reemployment rights expire, the Committee shall determine his Termination from
Service Date by treating his service in the Uniformed Services as an approved
leave of absence but treating the expiration of his potential USERRA
reemployment rights as the failure to timely return from his leave of absence, with
the consequence that his Termination from Service Date will generally be the
earlier of the date his potential USERRA rights expired or one year after the date
he joined the Uniformed Services. Once his Termination from Service Date has
been determined, the Committee shall determine his vested percentage. For
purposes of Article VI (relating to distributions), the day the Serviceman’s
potential USERRA reemployment rights expired shall be treated as the day he
terminated employment with the Township and Affiliated Entities. For purposes
of subsection 5.2(c) (relating to the timing of forfeitures), the Serviceman’s last
day of employment shall be the day his potential USERRA reemployment rights
expired.

(b) Rehire after Expiration of Reemployment Rights. If the Township or an
Affiliated Township hires a former Serviceman after his potential USERRA
reemployment rights have expired, he shall be treated like any other former
employee who is rehired.

13.4 Return From Uniformed Service.

This section applies solely to a Serviceman who returns to employment with the
Township because he exercised his reemployment rights under the USERRA.

(a) Credit for Service. A Serviceman’s length of time in the Uniformed Services
shall be treated as service with the Township for purposes of vesting and
determining his eligibility to participate in the Plan upon reemployment.

50
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10




(b)

©

(d)

(©)

Participation. If the Serviceman satisfies the eligibility requirements of section
2.1 before his reemployment, and he is a Covered Employee upon his
reemployment, he may participate in the Plan immediately upon his return.

Make-Up Township Contribution. The Township shall contribute an additional
contribution to a Serviceman’s Account equal to the Township Contribution
(including any forfeitures treated as Township Contributions) that would have
been allocated to such Account if the Serviceman had remained employed during
his time in the Uniformed Services, and had earned his Deemed Compensation
during that time. See subsection (e) for guidance on applying the various limits
contained in the Code to the calculation of the additional mandatory contribution.

Make-Up Miscellaneous Contributions. The Township shall contribute to the
Serviceman’s Accounts any top-heavy minimum contribution he would have
received pursuant to section 11.4, (including any forfeitures treated as top-heavy
minimum contributions) if he had remained employed during his time in the
Uniformed Services, and had earned Deemed Compensation during that time.
See subsection (e) for guidance on applying the various limits contained in the
Code to the calculation of the top-heavy minimum contribution.

Application of Limitations.

1) The make-up contributions under subsections (c¢) and (d) (the “Make-Up
Contributions™) shall be ignored for purposes of determining the
Township’s maximum contribution under subsection 3.1(c), the limits on
Annual Additions under section 3.4, the non-discrimination requirements
of Code §401(a)(4), and (if the Serviceman is a Key Employee)
calculating the minimum required top-heavy contribution under section
11.4.

(i)  In order to determine the maximum Make-Up Contributions, the following
limitations shall apply.

(A)  The Serviceman’s “Aggregate Compensation” for each year shall
be calculated. His Aggregate Compensation shall be equal to his
actual Compensation, plus his Deemed Compensation that would
have been paid during that year. Each type of Aggregate
Compensation (for benefit purposes, for purposes of determining
whether the Serviceman is a Highly Compensated Employee, etc.)
shall be determined separately.

(B)  The Serviceman’s Aggregate Compensation each Plan Year shall
be limited to the dollar limit in effect for that Plan Year under
Code §401(a)(17), for the purposes and in the manner specified in
subsection 1.11(d).

(C)  The limits of subsection 3.1(c) (relating to the maximum
contribution by the Township to the Plan) for each Plan Year shall

51

EX1 955129v2 10/27/10




be calculated by using the Serviceman’s Aggregate Compensation
for that Plan Year, and by treating the Make-Up Contributions that
are attributable to that Plan Year’s Deemed Compensation as
having been made during that Plan Year.

(D)  The limits of section 3.4 (relating to the maximum Annual
Additions to a Participant’s Accounts) shall be calculated for each
Limitation Year by using the Serviceman’s Aggregate
Compensation for that Limitation Year, and by treating as Annual
Additions all the Make-Up Contributions that are attributable to
that Limitation Year’s Deemed Compensation.

€3) Deemed Compensation. A Serviceman’s Deemed Compensation is the
Compensation that he would have received (including raises) had he remained
employed by the Township during his time in the Uniformed Services, unless it is
not reasonably certain what his Compensation would have been, in which case his
Deemed Compensation shall be based on his average rate of compensation during
the 12 months (or, if shorter, his period of employment with the Township)
immediately before he entered the Uniformed Services. A Serviceman’s Deemed
Compensation shall be reduced by any Compensation actually paid to him during
his time in the Uniformed Services (such as vacation pay). Deemed
Compensation shall cease when the Serviceman’s potential USERRA
reemployment rights expire. Each type of Deemed Compensation (for benefit
purposes, for purposes of determining if the Serviceman is a Highly Compensated
Employee, etc.) shall be determined separately.

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

By:
Title:

Date:

52
EX1 955129v2 10/27/10



EX1 955129v2 10/27/10







ltem;

Description:

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP
ACTION ITEM

Hershey's Mill Dam No:

DPW 07-02

List Date: 5/22/2007

Bring Dam into compliance with DEP requirements or dispose of dam

Date Action
Grant declined. Committee formed to determine best option. Classification
probably not changing. Hydrologic Study by advanced Geo Services.
4/6/2010 |Groups met 4/5. Board to discuss 4/13/10
4/13/2010 | Should we proceed with AGS or rebid work. What should be included in next
phase of engineering work?
5/4/2010 |Advanced GEO Proposal for breech analysis and potential solutions.
6/1/2010 |Awaiting comments from Save the Dam group before taking action on
GEO proposal.
Phase 1 approved.
716/2010 |Impoundment drained 6/30. Conceptual plans due for 7/20 meeting. Cost
estimates due for 8/17.
7/13/2010 |Solicitor OK with sale of Dam property. Checking with DEP.
7/20/2010 |Options presented by Adv Geo. Pipe option out. Will price weir, breech, silt
removal, ongoing maintenance, and check if required to remove silt under any scenario.
8/10/2010{Accepted proposal to have an appraisal done.
Tentative award of $15,000 grant
8/17/2010|Authorized applying for grants to breach the dam
8/24/2010(Review cost estimates
9/7/2010{Received appraisal. Discuss conditions of sale with solicitor
9/14/2010(Board to approve conditions of sale and the process
10/5/2010|Bid Opening scheduled for 10/5. Received grant for $15,000. Working on NOAA Grant
10/12/2010|Bid Opening on 10/5. No bids received.
National Fish and Wildlife Assocation grant denied
Update from Don and Senya about meeting with Save the Dam Committee
11/3/2010|Update from Joe and Neil about Save the Dam Committee

Linda G is researching two grants to beach the dam
Engineering cost estimate to breach has been received

Completed Date: |:]




Rick Smith

From: Todd Trotman [ttrotman@advancedgeoservices.com]

Sent: Tuesday, October 26, 2010 3:19 PM

To: Linda Gordon

Cc: Smith Rick

Subject: RE: Hershey Mill Dam

Attachments: Preliminary Cost Estimates for Engineering Services - Breaching Hershey Mill Dam.pdf
All;

Attached is our letter regarding preliminary cost estimates for engineering services associated with breaching Hershey Mill
Dam.

Sincerely,

Todd D. Trotman, P.E., LEED®AP

Project Consultant

Advanced GeoServices
“Engineering for the Environment. Planning for People.

1055 Andrew Drive, Suite A
West Chester, PA 19380-4293

5TV

Direct 610.840.9144
Fax 610.840.9199
Mobile 610.389.2472

Email ttrotman@advancedgeoservices.com
Web Site http://www.advancedgeoservices.com

This message contains information that may be confidential or privileged. Unless you are the addressee
(or authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy, or disclose to anyone this message or
any information contained in the message. If you have received this message in error, please advise the
sender by reply e-mail and delete all copies of this message and its attachments.

From: Linda Gordon [mailto:img240@msn.com]
Sent: Friday, October 15, 2010 12:30 PM

To: Todd Trotman

Cc: Smith Rick

Subject: Hersheys Mill Dam

Hi Todd

Per our conversation I have volunteered to apply for grants for the breaching of the Hershey's Mill Dam for
the Township.

Please provide an estimate for Engineering design, Permitting and Construction Oversight for breaching of
the Hershey's Mill Dam.

I am in the process of applying for 2 grants and need costs for each phase. I know that you cannot give
an exact quote at this time but all I need know is a price range.

Please cc Rick Smith at the Township on your proposal.



Thanks,

Linda Gordon

240 Line Rd
Malvern, PA 19355
610-296-3975

4o




AD\@CED

(A eoServices
Engineering for the Envi ‘thlingfor}’eoplam

1055 Andrew Drive, Suite A
West Chester, PA 19380-4293
tel 610,840.9100 fax 610.840.9199
www.advancedgeoservices.com

October 25, 2010 _ 2010-P-0284

East Goshen Township
1580 Paoli Pike |
West Chester, PA 19380

Attention: Mr. Rick Smith, Township Manager

Reference;  Preliminary Cost Estimates for Engineering Services
Breaching Hershey Mill Dam

Dear Mr, Smith:

Based on discussions with Linda Goxdon, we understand that East Goshen Township is
applying for two grants to breach the Hershey Mill Dam and is requesting cost estimates
for engineering design, permitting, and construction oversight associated with a breach.
Provided below is a discussion of our understanding of the design/permitting process for
breaching dams in Pennsylvania; a description of the engineering services that we
anticipate will be required for a dam breach; and a discussion of preliminary cost
estimates associated with these services.

At this time, only preliminary details of a breach have been developed for Hershey Mill
Dam (Dam). If East Goshen Township elecis to breach the Dam, we propose to meet
with representatives of East Goshen Township to develop the scope of work and design
critetia for breaching the Dam. Once the design criteria are established, we will meet
with representatives of the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection Bureau
of Waterways Engineering Division of Dam Safety (PADEP) to confitm the design
criteria and permitting requirements. At that time, a formal proposal for engineering
services will be prepared and issued.

BREACHING DAMS IN PENNSYT VANIA

Breaching dams in Pennsylvania is authorized under the waiver provision of the
Pennsylvania Code Section 105.12 (a) (16) as a restoration of a stream to its natural free-
flowing condition. Based on discussions with representatives from the PADEP, we have
the following understanding of the design/permitting process for breaching dams.

° Step 1: The dam owner shall submit a description (plan) of the proposed breach
to the PADEP. This plan shall include an existing conditions plan, grading plan,
restoration plan (rip rap, seeding, plantings requirements, etc.), cross sections
through the dam showing existing/proposed conditions, cross sections and profiles
of the new stream channel(s), an erosion and sediment control plan, construction

FAOFICEAGCWROJECTS\Proposal\20 10\2010-P-0284-G.doc




East Goshen Township
2010-0284-G

October 25, 2010

Page 2 of 5

details, specifications, and a description of the method of sediment management
(onsite filling/re-grading and/or offsite disposal).

° Step 2: Upon receipt of the plan, the PADEP will perform the following tasks:

L, Review the plan for proper breach sizing, re-establishment of the stream
through the project area, appropriate channel protection, and properly
located spoil areas;

2. Conduct an Environmental Assessment (including PNDI search) for the
project. If major environmental impacts are found to resuit from the
proposed breach, a more comprehensive review process through the
submission of a dam permit will be required;

3. File a Cultural Resource Notice. If concerns associated with the history of
the Dam are raised, a Phase I Archacological Assessment may be required;

4. Review the erosion and sediment control plan; we understand that County
approval of the erosion and sediment control plan is not required; and

5. Coordinate the review of the proposed dam breach with the Pennsylvania
Fish and Boat Commission and the appropriate Corps of Engineers
district office (USACE).

Step 3: Upon acceptance of the plan by the PADEP, the project will be
authorized under the waiver provision with the following stipulations:

6. Notification (Act 14 Notification) to the local municipality 10 days prior
to the proposed construction date;

7. Notification to the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission‘s appropriate
regional office and securing a drawdown permit, if required;

8. Notification to the appropriate PADEP regional office 10 days prior to the
proposed construction date; and

9. Submission of a certification letter (including photographic
documentation) and an as-built drawing to the PADEP Division of Dam
Safety within 30 days of the completion of the breach.

° Step 4: Final inspection by PADEP‘s regional office.

FAOFICEAGCWPROJECTS\Proposai\2010\20§0-P-0284-G.doc

Ve




East Goshen Township
2010-0284-G

October 25, 2010

Page 3 of 5

ANTICIPATED ENGINEERING TASKS

We anticipate that Advanced GeoServices will perform the following tasks to assist East
Goshen Township in breaching Hershey Mill Dam.

Pre-Design Phase

We anticipate the Pre-Design Phase will include the following tasks:

o Meet with Bast Goshen Township to develop the scope of work and design
criteria for breaching Hershey Mill Dam.

e Conduct a topographical survey of the reservoir area to develop an existing
conditions plan.

We understand that sampling and analytical testing of the reservoir sediments has been
performed by URS. Based on this testing, the concentrations of all analyzed compounds
were below PADEP Clean Fill Standards, indicating that no special handling of the
sediments will be required. We assume that no additional sediment sampling and
analytical testing will be required for permitting this project.

Having knowledge of the sediment depths throughout the reservoir area would be helpful
in developing the Grading Plan. However, since the reservoir has been drained and the
sediments are soft, access on the reservoir sediments to perform depth measurements will
be difficult uniess this work is performed when the ground surface is frozen. During the
design/permitting phase, we will evaluate the benefit of determining the sediment depths
and propose a field program, as appropriate.

Design/Permitting Phase

We anticipate that the following tasks will be performed as part of the design/permitting
phase.

¢ Meetings with the PADEP.

s Complete a PADEP General Information Form (GIF).

o Performed hydraulic analysis to establish the cross section of the new stream
channels and overbank areas.

Develop a Grading Plan and Restoration Plan for the reservoir area.

Prepare cross sections through the Dam., '

Develop cross sections and profiles of the new stream channel(s).

Prepare an Erosion and Sediment Control Plan.

Develop construction details and specifications.

FAOFICEAGC\PROJECT S\Proposaf2010\2010-P-0284-G.doc




East Goshen Township
2010-0284-G

QOctober 25, 2010

Page 4 of 5

Bidding and Construction Monitoring Phase

We anticipate that the following tasks will be performed as part of this phase:

o Assist East Goshen Township in the bidding process as well as during the review
of the bids, as requested.

o Provide monitoring (including photographic documentation) during construction,
as required.

Project Closeout Phase

Following construction, we will perform a topographical survey of the dam and reservoir
area to develop an as-built plan. We will also prepare and submit a certification letter to
the PADEP at the completion of construction. The as-built plan will be included with the

certification letter.

PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATES

Preliminary cost estimates for the anticipated engineering tasks are provided below.

Pre-Design Phase: $ 9,000
Design/Permitting Phase: $70,000
Bidding and Construction Monitoring Phase: $28,500*
Project Closeout Phase: $13,000

*Asstimes the cost of this phase is about 6.5% of total construction cost
The preliminary cost estimates listed above are based on the following assumptions:
e Determination of sediment depths in the reservoir will not be performed.
o Sampling and analytical testing of the reservoir sediments will not be performed.

e Responding to comments and preparing revisions/resubmissions of the design as
may be requested or required by the PADEP or USACE are not included.

o The results of the Environmental Site Assessment performed by the PADEP will
conclude that no further studies are required.

o Performing a Phase I Archaeological Assessment is not required.

FAOFICEAGC\PROJECT S\Proposali2010\2010-P-0284-G.doc/




East Goshen Township
2010-0284-G

October 25, 2010

Page 5 of 5

e Hast Goshen Township will perform the Act 14 Notifications and notifications to
the PADEP and Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission, as required.

e Securing a drawdown permit is not required.

e Approval of the Erosion and Sediment Control Plan by Chester County
Conservation District is not required.

¢ Design of improvements to the existing walls of the Dam that may remain in-
place following the breach is not required.

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact us.
Very truly yours,
ADVANCED GEOSERVICES

O ey P

Todd D. Trotman, P.E., LEED AP
Project Consultant °

oy .

Paul F. Marano, P.E.
Vice President

PFM:TDT:car

cc. Linda Gordon

FAOFICEAGC\PROJECT $\Proposal\20 10\2010-P-0284-G.dos




ltem:

Description:

EAST GOSHEN TOWNSHIP

ACTION ITEM
Pedestrian Crosswalk @ Township Park No:[ DPW 10-04
List Date: Completed Date:

Investigate options to make safer as drivers don't abide by PA State Law
requiring that they stop when a pedestrian is in a marked crosswalk..

Date

Action

3/16/2010

4/6/2010

5/11/2010

6/1/2010

7/13/2010

9/14/2010

9/21/2010

10/5/2010

11/3/2010

Resident raised issue at Board Meeting

Will paint stop bars in road and put up new signage. Will Penn DOT pay
for traffic channeling devices?

Park entrance still under review @PaDOT

PADOT denied request since 45mph zone.

Update: need to paint road. Awaiting PennDot response on "PXing" signage.
Received Penn DOT approval on 8/16, signs ordered 8/17.

Signs installed

Wating on line painter to redo crosswalk

Cross Walk Painted - Project Completed

Glo









TN

COMMISSIONERS PLANNING COMMISSION
Carol Aichele Government Services Center, Suite 270
Terence Farrell 601 Westtown Road
Kathi Cozzone P.O. Box 2747

West Chester, PA-19380-0990
RONALD T. BAILEY, AICP (610) 344-6285 Fax: (610) 344-6515

Executive Director

October 12,2010

Hugh J. Murray, Sr., Manager
Willistown Township

688 Sugartown Road
Malvern, PA 19355

Re:  Preliminary/Final Subdivision - Pamela L. Phillips
# SD-9-10-2870 - Willistown Township

Dear Mr. Murray:

A preliminary/final subdivision plan entitled “Pamela L. Phillips,” prepared by Chester Valley Engineers,
Inc., and dated May 4, 2010, was received by this office on September 27, 2010. The subdivision is situated
on the east side of Line Road north of Indian Drive and involves the conveyance of a 9,939 square foot (0.23
acre) portion of UPI #54-2-69.10 (4.0 acres) as a lot addition to UPI #54-2-69.1 (4.74 acres). No
development activity is proposed by this submission. The project site is located in the RA Residence zoning
district. The site adjoins East Goshen Township. ‘

This plan is reviewed by the Chester County Planning Commission in accord with the provisions of
Section 502 of the Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code (MPC). This report does not review the
plan for compliance to all aspects of your ordinance, as this is more appropriately done by agents of
Willistown Township. We offer the following comments on the proposed subdivision for your
consideration:

LANDSCAPES:

1. The updated Chester County Comprehensive Plan, Landscapes2, was adopted in November 9,
2009. Landscapes2 includes the concept of “livable landscapes,” which provides a framework
and vision for resource protection and growth strategies within Chester County. Landscapes2
contains a Livable Landscapes map that represents a guide for accommodating expected growth
while maintaining the quality of life in the County, as detailed in Chapter 4. The Livable
Landscapes map is divided into two core areas as prescribed by the Pennsylvania Municipalities
Planning Code: growth areas and rural resource areas. Growth areas consist of the Urban
Landscape, the Suburban Landscape, and Suburban Centers. Rural resource areas consist of
the Agricultural Landscape, the Rural Landscape and Rural Centers. Landscapes2 also
includes overlay features that define the Natural Landscape, and five Protection Areas of
National Significance.

According to the Livable Landscapes map, the proposed subdivision is located in both the
Suburban Landscape and the Natural Landscape. The Suburban Landscape is dominated by
the built environment and is largely served by public sewer and water systems and an auto-
dominated transportation network. This Landscape includes developed areas and nearby areas
that are planned for additional future development. It is typically characterized by residential
subdivisions containing primarily single-family housing.  This landscape also contains
concentrations of non-residential land uses and the largest employment centers in the county.

E-mail: ccplanning@chesco.org ® www.landscapes2.org ® Web site: www.chesco.org/planning



Page: 2

October 12, 2010

Re:

#

Preliminary/Final Subdivision - Pamela L. Phillips
SD-9-10-2870 - Willistown Township

The Natural Landscape Overlay encompasses Chester County's network of natural resources. It
is identified by stream corridors, steep slopes and forests, which are essential elements of the

‘physical environment. While this designation does not preclude development or agricultural

operations, it indicates major areas of natural resources that should be protected and be subject to
only limited disturbance. The location of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the
guidelines of the Suburban Landscape.

ADMINISTRATIVE NOTE:

2.

A minimum of four (4) copies of the plan should be presented at the Chester County Planning
Commission for endorsement to permit recording of the final plan in accord with the procedures
of Act 247, The Pennsylvania Municipalities Planning Code, and to meet the requirements of the
Recorder of Deeds and the Assessment Office.

RECOMMENDATION: The Chester County Planning Commission has no planning issues with

this subdivision application. All Township requirements should be satisfied before action is taken
on this subdivision plan,

Sincerely,

" Ronald T. Bailey, SIef = [od
Secretary
RTB/PF
cc:  Pamela L. Phillips

John M. Devine

Chester Valley Engineers, Inc.

William R. Shoemaker, Board of Supervisor Chair
Dorothy E. McClintock, Secretary/Treasurer

Rita Reves, Planning Commission Chair

David E. Watt, Planning Commission Secretary
Louis F. Smith Jr., Manager, East Goshen Township




Chester County Library

The Chester County Library first and foremost
serves the residents of West Whiteland and
Uwchlan townships by providing resources,
materials and programs to enrich the
educational, recreational and cultural lives of
the residents of our community.

ar County Library - Exton
2009 Revenue

& West Whiteland - 0.3%
= East Bradford - 0.1%

- State Aid

& County Support

& Other Revenue

Chester County Library - Exton
2009 Top Circulation

= West Whiteland

& Uwchian

& West Goshen

@ East Goshen {7 1%
&3 Fast Whiteland

& West Chester

£ West Bradford

€ Caln

Al Others

The Chester County Library
is the largest library in the County
and serves as the District Center,
~as well as the System-
“headquarters. We hold an .
expansive and comprehensive

coIlectxon of. materlals resources .

¥ ‘and programs “which help to
support the other 16 partner

" libraries in the system In addltlon,

-we are a community center, B
- providing work space;
meetmg rooms, homework

and research heIp

The Chester County lerary is” ;'

E largely supported by the-County,

which funds staffing and buﬂdmg
expenses. State Aid, our next:
largest source of revenueg,
provides for our materials and

“programming, and has declined by

more than-20% over the last two
years. Therefore, we are
experiencing a much greater need
for local support from our
municipalities in order to continue
- to provide quality services to all
residents of Chester County.




Chester County Library 2009 Facts

Chester County Library/Hankin Library
Local Financial Effort

R

Chester County Library
Municipal Funding

*_ocal Financial Effort (LFE) is the amount that a Library expends to provide services.

State Aid and the cost of raising money are not included.

“The Chester County LiEré& lsth

Chester County Library 2009 Revenue

ét,ignal, recreational and cultural

1

ommunity. i
‘Marguerite Dube, Director

Rec'd % of Total Pop (09 Estimates) per capita
West Whiteland $18,339 0.28% 18,339 $1.00
East Bradford 50% $7,500 0.12% 5,470 $1.37
State Aid and Access PA $1,150,471 17.70%
County Support $4,937,135 75.96%
Other Revenue $386,051 5.94% ]
$6,499,496 106.060% 23,809

Chester County Library 2009 Top Circulation

West Whiteland 13.06% 190,971

Uwchlan e 10.82% 158,206

West Goshen 7.47% 109,246 St 7 - Lol

East Goshen 5.58% 81,547 8 '“‘.1‘?’3- ’

East Whiteland 496% 72,501 @Y

West Chester Borough 3.87% 56,506

West Bradford 3.52% 51,477

Caln 3.27% 47,738

Westtown 2.86% 41,862

Tredyffrin 2.57% 37,532

Upper Uwchlan 2.50% 36,610

Downingtown Borough 2.46% 36,014

East Bradford 2.36% 34,530

East Caln 2.31% 33,810

All Others 32.38% 473,425

100.00% 1,461,975

Total

_ mthe County with a wide variety



Malvern Public Library

Malvern Public Library serves the
residents of Malvern Borough, East
Goshen, East Whiteland and Willistown
by providing resources and services that
fulfill their educational, recreational and
cultural needs. Although we are a small
community library where customers are
greeted by name, we also have access to
the wealth of material provided through

the Chester County Library System.’

2009
Malvern Library

venue and Services

& Malvern Borough
East Whiteland
£iEast Goshen

= Willistown (.5)

5 State Aid & Access PA
tz County Approp.

. Other Revenue

Malvern Library
Top Circulation

& Willistown

B! East Whiteland
& East Goshen

& Malvern Boro

ANl Others

- residents.:

In order to maintain the high
quality of service and abundance
of resources, we rely on fundlng

from the State, the County and’
~ our service areas mumcnpahtles
Almost 80% of our revenue comes
from those three entltles '
Of that 80%, almost 64% comes

from the mumupahtues we serve L

Wlthout the ongoing support of
‘Malvern, East Goshen, East -
Whiteland and Willistown, we
would not be abIe to serve their
In 2009, Malvern Pubhc,
Library circulated 147,512 items,
77% of them to the fibrary’s local

municipalities. Of the remaining

22%, Malvern circulated materials
to residents of every borough and
~ township in Chester County
through the Chester County
Library System.




Malvern Public Library 2009 Facts

Malvern Library
Municipal Funding Totals

Malvern Library Local Financial Effort Totals

*Local Financial Effort (LFE)
is the amount that a Library expends to provide services,
State Aid and the cost of raising money are not included.

opefully, will continue to be an
munities because they have
ougH with financial support.”
Rosalle Dletz Director

09 Revenue and Services

Received % of Total Population Per Cap

Malvern Borough $12,180 3.18% 3,059 $3.98
Malvern Borough - Services $44,082 11.51% .
East Whiteland $46,703 12.20% 9,333 $5.00 _;( ?} @7
East Goshen $32,000 8.36% 16,824 $1.90 !//
Willistown (.5) $37,128 9.70% 5,006 $742 /’1'6/0 308 2 va
State Aid and Access PA $68,370 17.85% 7 é.g‘?/'f
County Appropriation $38,454 10.64%
Other Revenue $104,040 27.17%

Total $382,956 100.00% 34222

089 Circulation by Municipality (greater than 1%)

Willistown 21.70% 31814
East Whiteland 20.90% 30554
East Goshen 19.70% 28825
Malvern Borough 15.40% 22560
Tredyffrin 3.00% 4453
Easttown 1.80% 2681
Charlestown 1.60% 2321
West Whiteland 1.60% 2271
West Goshen 1.50% 2177




	BOS_2010-11-03_Agenda_and_Packet
	11032010-BOARD-OF-SUPERVISORS-AGENDA-PACKET-DETAILS-B1
	11032010-BOARD-OF-SUPERVISORS-AGENDA-PACKET-DETAILS-B2
	11032010-BOARD-OF-SUPERVISORS-AGENDA-PACKET-DETAILS-C
	11032010-BOARD-OF-SUPERVISORS-AGENDA-PACKET-DETAILS-D
	11032010-BOARD-OF-SUPERVISORS-AGENDA-PACKET-DETAILS-E

